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Parkson Retail Group Limited (the "Company")
is a leading nationwide lifestyle retail operator
in the People's Republic of China ("the PRC").
The Parkson brand was introduced to the Beijing
market in the early 1990's and has now operated
and managed a diversified collection of retail
formats - including department stores, shopping
malls, city outlets, supermarkets and food &
beverage outlets. As of December 31, 2020, through
the Company's subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the "Group"), the Group operated and managed 40
stores (including "Parkson Beauty" concept stores),
2 Parkson Newcore City Malls, 1 shopping mall,
supermarkets, fashion and food & beverage in over
28 major cities across China.

Localisation and consistent market positioning are
the key strategies for the continuous growth and
success of Parkson. We are tailoring our merchandise
assortments, brand mix and floor space allocation on
a store-by-store basis to better serve our targeted
middle to middle-upper end consumers in every
city that we operate. The Group offers a wide range
of internationally renowned brands of fashion and
lifestyle related merchandises focusing on four
main categories of merchandise namely, Fashion
& Apparel, Cosmetics & Accessories, Household &
Electrical, and Groceries & Perishables, targeting the
young and contemporary market.
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AS OF THE DATE OF THIS REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Juliana Cheng San San

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow
Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Koong Lin Loong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Second Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.0. Box 902
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

5th Floor, Metro Plaza

No. 555 Loushanguan Road
Changning District
Shanghai 200051

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1010, 10th Floor
Harcourt House

39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie, FCG, FCS

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow (Chairman)
Yau Ming Kim, Robert

Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung
Koong Lin Loong
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Yau Ming Kim, Robert (Chairman)
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem

Koong Lin Loong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)

Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited

Second Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN THE PRC
Bank of China

Agricultural Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

Bank of Communications

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN HONG KONG

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong)

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE

www.parksongroup.com.cn
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Guizhou Tongren store opened
in September 2020
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Nanchang Bayi
Guan store opened
in January 2020
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Laos store partially opened
supermarket and food plaza
area in January 2020
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CHAIRMAN'’S
STATEMENT

FREBS

The Board is pleased to present the Group's annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (the “year under review"). Compared to 2019,
the overall performance of the Group in 2020 declined as a result of the
negative impact brought upon by COVID-19 pandemic which the Group has
actively adopted cost control measures to reduce its impact. Meanwhile,
the Group is committed to strengthening its position as a leading
retailer of fashion and lifestyle concepts in China through a diversified
development strategy.

ECONOMIC REVIEW

2020 had been full of challenges and uncertainties for the global market.
The global outbreak of COVID-19 at the start of the year had caused
significant reduction and suspension of social and economic activities
which inevitably caused the global economy to face downward pressure. In
addition to this, the continuous tension of Sino-US trade relations brought
many uncertainties to the global economic and political environment.
Despite these challenges, China's economy had withstood the pressure,
demonstrated strong recovery and had taken the lead in containing the
pandemic. According to the latest data released by the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, China's GDP reached 101,598.6 billion in 2020, an
increase of 2.3% from 2019.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Although China's overall economic environment is gradually picking up, the
domestic retail market is still under pressure. In the first half of the year,
the retail market was the first to bear the brunt of the impact of COVID-19
as local governments imposed restrictions on the flow of people in public
areas, especially in restaurants and department stores, to prevent the
spread of the virus. In the second half of the year, despite having achieved
effective control over the virus outbreak, due to the uncertainty of the
economic environment, Chinese consumers have become more cautious
in their consumption. According to data recently released by the National
Development and Reform Commission of China, the total retail sales of
consumer goods in China in 2020 decreased by 3.9% year-on-year.

However, compared with other markets, the retail market is an industry
with stronger anti-risk capabilities. As the living standards of people
continue to improve, consumption will continue to be the primary driving
force for China's economic growth in the future, and the Group remains
positive about the prospects of the entire industry. To this end, the Group
will continue to strive to improve customer experience through harnessing
consumption trends, in order to fully capitalise on potential opportunities
provided by the Chinese retail market. Meanwhile, the Group will initiate
a variety of operation modes to diversify the income sources, establish
online and offline sales channels, and promote the long-term sustainable
development of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group recorded total GSP of
RMB11,225.6 million (including value-added tax), a decrease of 20.8% from
last year, mainly due to the decline in same-store sales. SSS decreased
by 18.7% during the year under review, mainly due to the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic. During the year under review, the total operating
revenue of the Group decreased by RMB597.7 million or 11.9% to
RMB4,428.3 million, and the overall gross margin for sales fell to 15.3%,
compared with 16.0% in 2019. Operating profit was RMB349.0 million, a
decrease of 26.5% over the same period last year.

Although the Group, like the overall retail market, in 2020, was challenged
by the COVID-19 pandemic and its negative economic impact, the Group
has been actively adopting a number of cost control measures, including
the reduction of rent and operating costs. The Group is also actively
promoting the retail market business and enhancing consumer experience
through diversified channels. For example, during the VIP Day event that
was held, the Group used the latest 'cloud’ technology to introduce a
live broadcast model in 34 stores across the country to fully enhance the
shopping experience for customers. At the same time, through the offering
of high-quality membership services and time-limited benefits to stimulate
consumption, the sales of most of the Group's stores have returned to
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more than 80% level. In the face of adversity, the Group, with its leading
vision and unique retail strategy, is determined to overcome and emerge
stronger from these challenges.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group operated and managed 40 Parkson
stores (including the concept store "Parkson Beauty”), 1 Lion Mall, and 2
Parkson Newcore City Malls, in 28 cities in China; with its supermarkets,
apparel and F&B outlets having evolved into a mature and complete retail
industry landscape.

STRONG ALLIANCE AND COLLABORATION FOR NEW
OPPORTUNITIES

To diversify and strengthen its base, the Group has been actively seeking
different business partners, using flexible business cooperation models
to achieve strong alliances, and exploring new markets and new business
opportunities. In May 2020, the Group sealed its cooperation with Jinjin
Changfa Group, a well-known commercial brand in Suzhou City, Jiangsu
Province, to comprehensively upgrade and renovate Suzhou Changfa
Commercial Building, which has a long history and is located in the core
business district of Gusu District, Suzhou City. The project will integrate
leading fashion lifestyle retail concepts with the "Su" lifestyle experience
to meet the needs of different consumer groups. This cooperation marks
the Group's formal entry into the core market of Suzhou. The strong
attraction of the Suzhou market, the conducive business environment in
Gusu District, and the huge development prospects of the local consumer
service market provide a strong impetus for the Group to locate in Suzhou.
Combining Jinjin Changfa Group's huge customer base with the Group's
rich commercial retail management experience, the Group is confident
that the project will become a new benchmark for "business, tourism and
culture” in Gusu District.

In addition, the Group and Wuzhou Sangi Investment Company Limited
formally signed a cooperation agreement in June 2020 to jointly
build a large-scale urban complex - "Wuzhou Sangi Parkson”, a new
cultural landmark integrating office, residence, hotel, F&B, retail, and
entertainment. Wuzhou Sangi Parkson will serve as the fourth store of the
Group in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, and is scheduled to open
in the coming year. Since Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region is a crucial
gateway for the "Belt and Road" Initiative and an important stop for the
“New International Land-Sea Trade Corridor”,
the Guangxi market has become significant for the Group to drive the
overall development of the retail business into the southwest region.
The establishment of Wuzhou Sangi Parkson is in line with the Group's
development strategy in the region, and will be able to generate regional
synergies and expand its influence to the surrounding areas.

the advanced structure of
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

PROMOTING DIVERSIFIED AND INNOVATIVE DEVELOPMENT

As one of China's leading advocates of fashion lifestyle retail concepts,
Parkson has been committed to building an outstanding reputation,
maintaining its customer base, and attracting new customers, through
diversifying its products and improving consumer experience. During the
year under review, the Group strategically expanded its product categories
to meet growing consumer needs.

The Group pays close attention especially to the development trend of the
beauty market, and implements targeted development strategies for the
promising beauty sector, including cooperation with a number of well-
known beauty brands to launch exclusive products in conjunction with
customized service experiences to attract more young consumers. Among
them, Parkson's self-operated makeup brands namely Parkson Beauty and
Play Up have become immensely popular among young consumers through
differentiated product strategies. Parkson hopes to deepen its image as a
trendy vendor and explore the possibility of more branch stores.

The Group is also actively adopting a variety of modes to improve the
shopping experience for customers. For example, the Group's Lion Mall
together with its boutique supermarkets, Parkson Supermarket and
Hogan Bakery, had participated in the "Singaporean Night Market" held in
Shanghai. This event not only broke away from the traditional sales model,
it also narrowed the gap between the vendor and its customers, allowing
them to interact more closely, and creating a whole new experience.

At the same time, the Group evaluates and adjusts its resources in a
timely manner in order to use them more effectively to achieve diversified
business development. During the year under review, the Group continued
to promote the renovation project of the North Building of Beijing
Fuxingmen Parkson Store, which is expected to be completed in the middle
of 2021. The Group believes that Fuxingmen North Building, being part of
Beijing Financial Street, can meet the demand for office leases in this area
and is expected to bring stable rental income to the Group.

EXPANDING MULTI-CHANNEL SERVICES WITH "020 NEW
RETAIL STRATEGY"

In recent years, advancement of the Internet has accelerated the
development of online retail, with the retail industry having entered a
new business mode of "online + offline” interoperability. In order to seize
the growing opportunities of online retail, the Group vigorously promoted
the "020 New Retail Strategy” and improved the new sales model for
online and offline interoperability. To this end, the Group has introduced
various stimulus measures to promote offline retail business growth
through online channels such as Parkson's official WeChat account and
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mobile shopping mini-programs. In tapping customers' enthusiasm for
consumption, the Group seizes the opportunity to encourage customers to
visit Parkson stores in order to enhance their shopping experience.

OUTLOOK & FUTURE PLANS

With the conclusion of the US presidential election and the Biden
administration coming to power, there is still a lot of ambiguity
regarding Sino-US relations. Along with the ongoing COVID-19 crisis, the
macroeconomic environment is expected to be unsettling in the coming
year. Nevertheless, the Group remains optimistic about the performance of
China's retail industry. As the COVID-19 situation in China stabilizes and
the local retail market moves forward to gradual recovery, consumers are
beginning to regain their inclination to spend. The inability to travel abroad
due to the pandemic has in turn benefited local consumption.

To fully grasp the opportunities brought by market recovery, the Group will
actively study and understand market trends and customer needs, broaden
the product range of Parkson retail stores, and provide customers with a
more diverse array of high-quality products in the future. The Group will
also strengthen online marketing to attract offline retail sales. To this
end, the Group will vigorously implement the "020 New Retail Strategy”,
and strengthen the integration of online and offline retail experience,
through social media networks (such as Douyin, WeChat), VIP projects
and personalized customer services to satisfy retail industry changes and
market demand, and expand market share through high-quality products
and services.

In the face of the Sino-US situation as well as the instability of the macro
economy, the Group is actively looking for business partners of high
standing and repute. Through such cooperation, the Group aims to explore
new business opportunities, strengthen its business portfolio, so as to
consolidate the Group's position as China's leading retailer of lifestyle
concepts.

We believe that with the Group's effective business strategies and extensive
experience in the retail market over the past two decades, we can achieve
sustainable performance in a challenging environment and create long-
term value for shareholders.

| would like to take this opportunity to sincerely thank our employees,
customers, shareholders, suppliers and business partners for their firm
support to the Group over the years. We look forward to such continuing
cooperation in the years to come.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MEEE

Change (%)

25

Operating Results (RMB'000) MERE (ARETT)
Gross sales proceeds' HEMSMIBERE 14313028 13763634 13184983 12560987 10,026,893 (20.200)
Total operating revenues BEWHRE 4,605,892 4,677,243 4,847,808 5026018 4,428,349 (11.9%)
(Loss)/profit from operations Tg (B8 /RE (201901) 83,663 169932 474,484 348,959 (26.5%)
Profit/(loss) for the year ERFIE/ (58 154,129 (133,753) (54,612) (203680)  (236,920) 16.3%
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of BABFAE AEERE,/
the parent (B8 147,257 (135,952) (79,283) (222,751) (250,114) 12.3%
Basic earning/(loss) per share (RMB)? SREXERRN/ (58)
NI 0.056 (0.052) (0.030) (0.085) (0.095) 11.8%
Interim dividends per share (RMB) ShPHEE ARE) 0.020 = 0.030 S - S
Final dividends per share (RMB) SERERE ARE) - - - - - -
Full year dividends per share (RMB) BRE2ERE AR 0.020 = 0.030 = = =

Summary of consolidated

REMBRNANE

statement of financial position (AR&TF )

(RMB'000)

Non-current assets FERBEE 6,888,397 6,467,608 8,024,164 10769,810 11,112,119
Current assets MENEE 6,278,606 6,507,764 4,568,318 4,776,190 3,317,112
Total assets BEE 13,167,003 12,975,372 12,592,482 15,546,000 14,429,231
Current liabilities nEas 3,832,668 6,935,446 3,238,307 4,007,043 3,957,162
Non-current liabilities FEREBE 4,458,543 1,120,821 4,729,325 7,192,624 6,271,059
Net assets BEETE 4,875,792 4,919,105 4,624,850 4,346,333 4,201,010
Represented by BUTFH&IERT

Equity attributable to BABIPNE AR

owners of the parent g 4,821,046 4,873,963 4,509,939 4,230,661 4,122,700
Non-controlling interests JEERER 54,746 45142 114,911 115,672 78,310
Total equity s 4,875,792 4,919,105 4,624,850 4,346,333 4,201,010
NOTES: Bk :

1. GSP (excluded value-added tax) represent the sum of sales proceeds from 1. THEPTISNIRMREE (RS ER) 155k E

direct sales and concessionaire sales, income from providing consultancy
and management services, rental income, credit service income and other
operating revenues.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
is based on the net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
for the year of approximately RMB250,114,000 and the weighted average
number of 2,634,532,000 shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
is based on the net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
for the year of approximately RMB222,751,000 and the weighted average
number of 2,634,532,000 shares in issue during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bl E SRR

FINANCIAL REVIEW
GSP and operating revenues

During 2020, GSP (consists of direct sales, sales proceeds from
concessionaire sales, rental incomes, consultancy and management service
fees, credit service income and other operating revenues) decreased by
20.8% year-on-year to RMB11,225.6 million (inclusive of value-added
tax), mainly due to decrease in total merchandise sales resulting from the
decline in SSS. SSS decreased by 18.7% in 2020.

TOTAL MERCHANDISE SALES

B %50l BR
HEFSMIERE R EE W
“ETTFEHEMSRIRREE (BEEE
HE 5T FIRH & PTISRIR R

HHREEE - EERBBRAUKREAMMEK
B ES) B TFE20.80FE AR 11,22568

B (BEER  FEHRARRAEHET
FERNEmEERENTE S _-F
FRIEHE TFE18.7% -

%Dﬂ gﬁ = nlugﬁ

For the year ended 31 December

HE+-A=+—BALEE

2020 2019 Year-on-

%= —E year change

RMB'000 0/0 of total RMB'000 % of total (%)

{L4EZERY ] R Lb & &

AR®Tx Bt AE®ETT E’\tt(%) (%)

Concessionaire sales B EEHE 6,612,704 71.7% 8,963,992 76.8% (26.29%)
Direct sales HEHE 2,608,000 28.3% 2,712,119 23.20 (3.8%)
9,220,704 100.0% 11,676,111 100.0% (21.0%)

Total merchandise sales decreased by RMB2,455.4 million or 21.0% to
RMB9,220.7 million (net of value-added tax) in 2020. Concessionaire
sales which constituted 71.7% of our total merchandise sales in 2020
decreased by 26.2% as compared to 2019; direct sales decreased by 3.8%
as compared to 2019. The decreased in concessionaire sales in 2020 as
compared to 2019 mainly due to the impact of the outbreak of COVID-19
in early 2020 which has seriously affected the customer traffic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Merchandise gross margin

The Group's merchandise gross margin (a combination of concessionaire
commission rate and the direct sales gross margin) decreased from 16.0%
in 2019 to 15.3% in 2020.

Total operating revenues

Total operating revenues of the Group decreased by RMB597.7 million
or 11.9% to RMB4,428.3 million in 2020. The decrease in total operating
revenues was mainly due to the decrease in the revenue from contracts
with customers, which constituted 82.0% of the total operating revenue
in 2020, decreased by RMB520.5 million or 12.5% compared to 2019. The
revenue from contracts with customers consists of sales of goods from
direct sales, commissions from concessionaire sales and consultancy and
management service fees.

Operating expenses
Purchase of goods and changes in inventories

The purchase of goods and changes in inventories represented the cost
of sales for direct sales. Cost of sales decreased by RMB56.0 million or
2.5% from RMB2,270.5 million in 2019 to RMB2,214.5 million in 2020. The
decrease was primarily due to decrease in our procurement of goods from
third party vendors, resulting from the decreased direct sales.

Staff costs

Staff costs decreased by RMB119.4 million or 17.9% to RMB547.2 million
in 2020 from RMB666.6 million in 2019. This decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in pension scheme contributions, unemployment insurance
and work-related injury insurance as a result of the government policy of
social welfare exemption to support enterprises in response to COVID-19
pandemic. On a same store basis, staff costs decreased by 16.5%.

Staff costs as a percentage of GSP increased from 5.3% in 2019 to 5.5% in
2020.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation decreased by 0.9% from RMB696.7 million
in 2019 to RMB690.4 million in 2020. In 2020, RMB467.8 million of
depreciation expense on the property included in the right-of-use assets
was charged to depreciation and amortisation compared to RMB456.9
million in 2019. On a same store basis, depreciation charges decreased by
6.2%, mainly due to fully depreciated assets in some stores.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E w2 th

Rental expenses

Rental expenses of the Group were a negative amount of RMB13.9
million in 2020, a turnaround decrease of RMB127.9 million or 112.2%
as compared to rental expenses of RMB113.9 million in 2019. Under IFRS
16, rental expenses primarily represent the variable rents we pay to third
party lessors. In accordance with Amendment to IFRS 16 - COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions issued by the IASB on 28 May 2020, the Group,
as a lessee, applying the practical expedient to the rent concessions that
occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, accounted for
a forgiveness or waiver of lease payments as a variable lease payment.
Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has taken active negotiations
with landlords for rental reduction during this challenging period. In 2020,
amount of RMB88.4 million was deducted in rental expenses to reflect
changes in lease payments that arise from rent concessions to which
the practical expedient is applied. On a same store basis, rental expenses
decreased by 116.5% in 2020.

Rental expenses as a percentage of GSP were (0.1%) in 2020, as compared
to 0.9% in 2019.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses which consist primarily of (a) utilities cost; (b)
marketing, promotional and selling expenses; (c) property management
expenses; (d) general administrative expenses; and (e) city development
and educational surcharge, decreased by 20.2% to RMB641.3 million in
2020 from RMB803.8 million in 2019 as a result of further implementing
cost control measures. On a same store basis, other operating expenses
decreased by 12.9%.

Other operating expenses as a percentage of GSP maintain stable as 6.4%
in 2020 as compared to 2019.

Profit from operations

The Group generated a profit from operations of RMB349.0 million for
2020, a decrease of RMB125.5 million or 26.5% compared to RMB474.5
million recorded in 2019.

Profit from operations as a percentage of GSP decreased from 3.8% in
2019 to 3.5% in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance income/costs

The Group incurred net finance costs of RMB470.0 million in 2020 which
represented a decrease of RMB117.5 million or 20.0% compared to
RMB587.5 million in 2019. In 2020, RMB430.0 million of interest expense
on the lease liability was charged to finance costs compared to RMB425.0
million in 2019; and RMB27.0 million of interest income on the net
investments in sublease was recognized in finance income compared to
RMB28.6 million in 2019 under IFRS 16.

Share of profits of joint ventures

This is the share of profits from Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development Co.,
Ltd., a joint venture of the Group. The share of profits decreased to RMB2.0
million in 2020 from RMB13.6 million in 2019. This decrease was primarily
due to the COVID-19-related disruption on operation of the department
store resulting in the decline in sales.

Share of profits of associates

This is the share of results from the Group's associated companies. The
share of profits from associates decrease to RMB1.3 million in 2020
from RMB7.1 million in 2019. This decrease was also primarily due to the
negative impact of COVID-19 disruptions.

Loss before tax

Loss before tax increased by 142.19% from RMB48.6 million to RMB117.7
million in 2020. This increase in loss before tax was primarily due to
decreased revenue.

Loss before tax as a percentage of GSP was 1.2% in 2020 as compared to
0.5% in 2019.

Income tax expense

The Group's income tax expense decreased by 23.1% to RMB119.2 million
in 2020 from RMB155.1 million in 2019, mainly due to the decrease in
taxable profit.

Loss for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's loss for the year increased by
RMB33.2 million to RMB236.9 million in 2020 from RMB203.7 million in
2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E w2 th

Loss attributable to owners of the parent

Loss attributable to the owners of the parent increased from RMB222.8
million in 2019 to RMB250.1 million in 2020.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of RMB1,499.3 million (31 December 2019: RMB2,265.5 million), time
deposits of RMB834.7 million (31 December 2019: RMB1,727.4 million),
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of RMB242.5 million
(31 December 2019: RMB250.8 million) and investments in principal
guaranteed deposits of RMB15.6 million (31 December 2019: RMB250.1
million).

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are mainly denominated in
Renminbi with the remaining denominated in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars
and others.

Total debt to total assets ratio of the Group was 20.4% as at 31 December
2020.

Current assets and net assets

The Group's current assets as at 31 December 2020 was RMB3,317.1
million. Net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2020 decreased by 3.3%
to RMB4,201.0 million.

Information on the financial products

Investment in principal guaranteed deposits refer to the principal
preservation type wealth management products subscribed by the Group
from licensed banks operate in China. As at 31 December 2020, the balance
of these products was RMB15.6 million, accounting for approximately 0.1%
of the total assets of the Group.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss refer to the non-
principal preservation type wealth management products subscribed by
the Group from licensed banks operate in China. As at 31 December 2020,
the fair value of these products was RMB242.5 million, accounting for
approximately 1.7% of the total assets of the Group.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT $E[EIRE

BREFFE AELEIE
ATECEEBATMBE AENEEA

& —HEMARE2228FBETIEMEA
RiE250.1HE T

BB RMBFEER

RN_E_EF+_A=+—H x&EEHE
BEReNIE2EBYARIE1499388 7T
(ZCE—hhE+ZB=+—H8': AR
2,2655E 8 7T) - EHHERARKS47TEE

T (CE-AE+RA=+—H: AR
172748 87m) " BRAAEESEH HE
Bt A ABRZEHMEEARK 42588 T

(ZE—hhE+ZB=+—H: AR
2508E E7T) MERAEFRREARK 1568
BT CE2E—NE+ZA=+—H:  AR¥
250 1B B JT) °

AEBNRERREFSENETZUARE
sHE > HERRI U ET B kEMEE

RIBZZF+_A=+—H x&EH
B EERR R E ELE R 520.4%°

MHBEEREEZFE

N _ETEE+_F=+—H A~EEAW
/}|L3§§%A§m33171§%75 .=
EFEF+_A=+—H AEEEEFER
D33 E ANR1E4201.0B88 T

THMERER
REFRRERTEFBEAETREENF
BIRTRBENRANEBERER- KT

EFE+"A=+—H ZEERGEAA
RE156mET N AREBREEE1%

BRARBESAEREEZHFT AEamZE
MEERAEEBETRHECENFTRIR
TRBNERIEEMER - R _T°F
FE+ZRA=+—HB ZEERNAAEE
mARE24025BA8 T WEAEEBEE
1.7%



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged deposits of RMB700.3
million, pledge trade receivables of RMB211.7 million, pledged buildings,
investment properties and leasehold land with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB2,411.7 million, RMB362.1 million and RMB357.0
million respectively to secure general bank loans. The Group has pledged
unrealized receivables of RMB44.3 million which will be due within 48
months to secure the general interest-bearing bank loans. In addition, the
Group has pledged deposits of RMB31.4 million held in designated bank
accounts for performance guarantee.

Other than the aforesaid, no other assets are pledged to any bank or lender.

Segment information

For management purposes, except for the consumer financing business
carried out under Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. in Malaysia, the Group has a
single operating and reportable segment, which is "Retail".

The revenue and results of retail and financing business are disclosed in
Notes 4 to the financial statements.

Revenue from external customers are mostly generated in the PRC and
almost all significant operating assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
Since revenue from external customers and non-current assets excluding
financial instruments and deferred tax assets of overseas companies
outside the PRC are not material to the Group's consolidated revenue
and non-current assets excluding financial instruments and deferred tax
assets, management believes there is no need to disclose geographical
information.

Employees

As at 31 December 2020, total number of employees for the Group was
5,251. The Group ensures that all levels of employees are paid competitively
within the standard in the market and employees are rewarded on
performance related basis within the framework of the Group's salary,
incentives and bonus scheme.

Treasury policies

The business transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in
Renminbi. Therefore, except for the capital market transactions for
funding needs, there is limited exposure in foreign exchange risk. Hedging
instruments including swaps and forwards have been used in the past
and would be used in the future, if necessary, to ensure that the Group's
exposure to the foreign exchange rate fluctuation and the interest rate
fluctuation is minimized.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRESREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, aged 78, is an Executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Tan Sri Cheng is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. He has more than 45 years of experience in the business
operations of the Lion Group of Companies (“Lion Group") encompassing
retail, branding, food and beverage, credit financing and money lending
services, property development, mining, steel and tyre manufacturing,
motor, agriculture and computer industries. He oversees the operations of
Lion Group and is responsible for the formulation and monitoring of the
overall corporate strategic plans and business development of the Group.

Tan Sri Cheng was the President of The Associated Chinese Chambers of
Commerce and Industry of Malaysia ("ACCCIM") and The Chinese Chamber
of Commerce and Industry of Kuala Lumpur and Selangor ("KLSCCCI")
from 2003 to 2012 and is now a Life Honorary President of ACCCIM and
KLSCCCI. He was also the President of Malaysia Retailers Association
("MRA") from August 2014 to May 2018 and was appointed an Honorary
President of MRA from June 2018 to July 2020. In July 2020, he was
again appointed the President of MRA. He was the Chairman of the
Federation of Asia-Pacific Retailers Associations (“FAPRA") from October
2017 to September 2019, and in September 2019, he was appointed the
Vice Chairman of the FAPRA. He is a Trustee of ACCCIM's Socio-Economic
Research Trust and the President of Malaysia Steel Association.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Tan Sri Cheng's directorships in public companies are as follows:

- Chairman and Managing Director of Parkson Holdings Berhad and
Lion Corporation Berhad ("LCB")

= Chairman of Lion Posim Berhad and ACB Resources Berhad ("ACB")

- Director of Lion Asiapac Limited

- Executive Chairman of Parkson Retail Asia Limited

- A Founding Member and a Permanent Trustee of The Community
Chest, a company limited by guarantee established by the private
sector for charity purposes

Save for LCB, ACB and The Community Chest, all the above companies
are public listed companies in Malaysia whilst Lion Asiapac Limited and
Parkson Retail Asia Limited are public listed companies in Singapore.

Tan Sri Cheng is the father of Juliana Cheng San San, the Executive Director
of the Company.

Juliana Cheng San San, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 28 August 2015. Ms. Cheng started her career with
the Lion Group in 1995 with stints in Singapore and Malaysia. During her
tenure from 1995 to 2004, she held various positions in finance, human
resource, administration and business development. In 2004, Ms. Cheng
was seconded to Parkson China as Cosmetics Manager and thus, begin her
career in the retail industry. She left Parkson China in May 2006 and joined
Chanel (China) Co Ltd as the National Accounts Manager for business
development in the PRC. In June 2010, she re-joined Parkson China as
Regional Director overseeing retail operations in the PRC. She is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. During her more than 25
years with Lion Group, Parkson China and Chanel (China) Co Ltd, she has
accumulated vast experience and knowledge of the retail and branding
industry which enables her to contribute to the Group.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREREREREE

Ms. Cheng graduated with a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce (Management)
from University of Western Sydney, Australia in 1994 and completed a
Program for Global Leadership from Harvard Business School in year 2000.

Ms. Cheng is the daughter of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, the Executive
Director and Chairman of the Company. From 24 May 2002 to 30 June
2014, Ms. Cheng was an alternate director to Tan Sri Cheng in LTC
Corporation Limited (formerly known as “Lion Teck Chiang Limited"), a
public listed company then listed in Singapore.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung, aged 58, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company on 13
November 2014. Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou was a Member of Parliament and the
Deputy Minister of Higher Education Malaysia from 2008 to 2013. He holds
the Bachelor and Master of Arts from University of Malaya, while his Ph.D
was received from the School of Oriental and African Studies, University of
London.

Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou served at University of Malaya from 1990 to 2008
as a lecturer and lastly as Associate Professor. During his tenure in
the university, he had been appointed and held positions as Head of
Department of East Asian Studies, and Director of Institute of China
Studies. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Furniweb Holdings Limited, a public listed company on the main board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 20 September 2017.

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou was a member of the Senate in the Parliament of
Malaysia. He resigned as the Vice President of the Malaysian Chinese
Association (MCA) and Chairman of the Institute of Strategic Analysis
& Policy Research (INSAP) on 2 December 2018. Dato' Sri Dr. Hou is the
Council Member of both University Tunku Abdul Rahman (UTAR) and
Tunku Abdul Rahman University College (TAR UC) and a Guest Professor at
Xiamen University China.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow, aged 72, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 13 November 2014. Dato' Fu was appointed as
Chairman of the Audit Committee on 29 February 2016 and is a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dato’ Fu holds a Master
Degree in Industrial Engineering specializing in Management Science, Post
Graduate Diploma in Education and a B.Sc. (Hons) degree in Physics. Dato'
Fu has 13 years of distinguished services since 1995 in the Parliament
and Malaysian Government as member of the Parliament, Parliamentary
Secretary and Deputy Minister. Before joining the Government, Dato' Fu has
worked in a few multinational companies. After retirement from politics
in 2008, Dato' Fu was appointed as independent director cum chairman in
several listed companies.

Dato’ Fu is currently the non-independent and non-executive chairman
of Tiong Nam Logistics Holding Berhad, public listed company in Bursa
Malaysia Berhad.

He resigned as the Independent non-executive chairman of Fitters
Diversified Berhad and Star Media Group Berhad on 1 July 2019 and 1
March 2021 respectively.

Yau Ming Kim, Robert, aged 82, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 1 January 2007, and is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yau was the Chief Executive
or Managing Director of many major international and local apparel
companies since 1971. From 1998 to 2004, he was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Exporters’ Association, a member of the Executive
Committee of The Hong Kong Shippers' Council and the Garment Advisory
Committee of The Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

Mr. Yau is currently an independent non-executive director of Alltronics
Holdings Limited and Tungtex (Holdings) Company Limited respectively,
which shares are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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Koong Lin Loong, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 22 February 2021 and is the member of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Koong is
qualified as member of ASEAN Chartered Professional Accountants (ASEAN
CPA), the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA), the Certified Practising
Accountants Australia (CPA Australia), the Malaysian Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (MICPA), the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia and
Kampuchea Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Auditors (KICPAA),
and a fellow member of Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia (CTIM).
He is also an associate member of Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants in the United Kingdom (CIMA) and Malaysian Association of
Company Secretaries.

Mr. Koong is an independent non-executive director of Parkson Retalil
Asia Limited (stock code: SG2D81975377 - Q9E), a company listed on the
Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, which is
an associated corporation of the Company. He has been an independent
non-executive director of Oversea Enterprise Berhad (stock code: 0153, a
company listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)
since 2010. He also has been the audit committee chairman - SME
Corporation Malaysia of Ministry of Entrepreneur Development and
Cooperatives in Malaysia from 2016 to 2020. From 2013 to 2018, he
was the member of the audit committee in Widad Group Bhd, formerly
known as Ideal Jacobs (Malaysia) Corporation Berhad, (stock code: 0162, a
company listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad).

Mr. Koong is the practising Auditor of Ministry of Finance in Malaysia,
National Council Member Associated Chinese Chambers of Commerce and
Industry of Malaysia (ACCCIM); Head of Taxation Taskforce cum Chairman
of ACCCIM Small & Medium Enterprises (SMEs) Committee. He is also a
Council Member of CTIM cum Chairman of its Membership Committee,
member of Franchise Advisory Committee, Ministry of Domestic Trade and
Consumer Affairs in Malaysia, Customs Oversight Committee and Sales &
services Tax Technical Committee of Royal Malaysian Customs Department.
Currently, Mr. Koong is the Managing Partner and director of Reanda LLKG
International, Chartered Accountants. He is also the President of Southeast
Asia & South Asia Region of Reanda International Network and the
Chairman of its International Tax Panel. He is also a member of the Practice
Review Committee of MIA.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Juliana Cheng San San, aged 51, has been appointed as the Executive
Director of the Company since 2015. Ms. Cheng oversees the Cosmetics
Division, Branding Division, Merchandising Division and Information
Technology Division of the Group. Ms. Cheng is the daughter of Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem, the Executive Director and Chairman of the Group. Ms.
Cheng completed a Program for Global Leadership from Harvard Business
School in year 2000. Her other biographical details are set out under the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors" above.

Zhou lJia, aged 49, has been appointed as the Chief Operating Officer
of the Group since 2016. Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor degree in
Business Administration from Yuzhou University. In 1995, he joined the
Merchandising Division of Chongging Wanyou Parkson and was promoted
as the Assistant General Manager of Kunming Parkson in 2002. Mr. Zhou
was promoted to be the head of Kunming Parkson, the Regional General
Manager and the Group's Senior Operating Officer in 2004, 2010 and 2014
respectively.

Kevin Yu, aged 58, joined the Group as General Manager of Property/
Mall Management Division in September 2018. He is in charge of mall
construction, asset management, mall operation management and
business development for the Group. Mr. Yu obtained the Master Degree
of EMBA from Tsinghua University. Prior to joining in the Group, he
had been working for multi-national property companies and financial
institutions for over 34 years. His working experience includes property
equity, Merger & Acquisition, investment and development, asset and
property management, sales and marketing, real estate development, and
construction and design, etc.

Li Bing, aged 64, who owned 15-year-working experience in large state-
owned enterprises, graduated from Chonggqing University with a bachelor's
degree in mechanical engineering. Mr. Li joined Parkson in 1996. In 2005,
he was promoted as the head of Nanning Parkson. Then he was promoted
as the head of Parkson in both Guangxi and Guangdong provinces in 2011
and worked as the Chief Operating Officer of the two regions in 2014. After
three years, he took charge of the regions of Guangdong, Guangxi, Hunan
and Jiangxi provinces. In 2019, he was appointed Deputy Chief Operating
Officer of the Group as well as Senior Operating Officer of Southeast
Region.
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Caleb Yang, aged 52, joined the Group in November 2020 as the Vice
COO of the Group. He is responsible for store sales improvement and
adjustment, brand management, etc. Mr. Yang holds a bachelor degree
from Hanyang University, South Korea. Prior to joining the Group, he
served as the managing director of the Korea Eland Group and was
responsible for the omni-channel expansion and operation management of
more than 30 Eland brands in China and Southeast Asia, and the operation
and management of the city outlets projects. He served as the vice
president of Zhongjun Business Management Co., Ltd. and the CEO of city
outlets, the CEO of Goodbaby (China) Commerce Group and the executive
director of Goodbaby International, a Hong Kong listed company, and
was fully responsible for the listed and non-listed business in the Chinese
market.

Zhang Ji Ning, aged 47, has been appointed as the General Manager of
the Qingdao Lion Mall and the General Manager of Qingdao region since
2014. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of retail operation experience.
He obtained his Master of Arts in International Relations from Nankai
University. The program was a partnership between the Flinders University
from South Australia and Nankai University.

Yoong Kang Chee, aged 40, has been appointed as Corporate Officer
of the Group since October 2020, heading up the Corporate Finance
department that oversees accounting, reporting, tax, investment, treasury
and capital management functions etc. Mr. Yoong holds a Bachelor Degree
from Tsinghua University, School of Economics and Management, majoring
in Management Information Systems. He is also a Chartered Financial
Analyst (CFA) charterholder. Mr. Yoong has 15 years of wide-ranging
experience spanning infrastructure, environmental, manufacturing and
consumer industries, where he gained extensive exposure in financial and
business management. He also served as Vice President and Treasurer at
Shanghai Singapore Business Association for a term in 2017, the precursor
to SingCham Shanghai.

Li Zhong Hui, aged 49, has been appointed as General Manager of risk
control division and auditing director of the Group since August 2018. He
graduated from Shandong University with a bachelor degree in Economic
Law in 1992. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li served as the chief risk
officer, general manager of risk control division and auditing director in
NVC Lighting, Tsinghua Unigroup Ltd. and Cedar Holdings.
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Zhang Jin Rui, aged 35, has been appointed as Chief Information Officer
of information technology division since October 2019. He obtained his
bachelor degree in automation technology from Donghua University.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked with The Dow Chemical
Company China and Decathlon China and had been expatriated to Lille,
France in the headquarter of Decathlon Group, to be responsible for digital
transformation technology.

Huang Lu, aged 45, has been appointed as the Director of Marketing
Department since 2016. She obtained her bachelor's degree of International
Business Management from Oxford Brookes University of the United
Kingdom. Ms. Huang worked with Starbucks China and IKEA China as
Marketing Director responsible for marketing and brand building before
joining the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts in
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate
to the Company's records. The Company's corporate governance practices
are based on the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code ("CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Listing Rules").

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied with
the CG Code (to the extent that such provisions are applicable) except
for below deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which
are explained in the relevant paragraph of this report. The Company will
continue to enhance its corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of its businesses and to review such practices from
time to time to ensure that they comply with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the "Model Code"). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the "Employees Written Guidelines") for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As of the date of this report, the Board comprised 6 Directors, including
2 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 3 Independent non-
executive Directors. Below is the list of all Directors.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Juliana Cheng San San

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow
Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Koong Lin Loong

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Ko Desmond has resigned
as the Independent non-executive Director of the Board with effect from
30 November 2020 and Mr. Koong Lin Loong has been appointed as the
independent non-executive Director of the Board after the board meeting
on 22 February 2021.

The Directors' biographical information and the relationships between the
members of the Board are set out in the "Biographies of Directors and
senior management” section on pages 20 to 27.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship among the Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

The Company had not appointed a Chief Executive Officer, certain functions
of CEO have been undertaken by Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, the Executive
Director and Chairman of the Company. The Company has deviated from
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code during the year ended 31 December
2020. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and the
CEO in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic
planning for the Group. The Board further believes that the balance of
power and authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and
is adequately ensured by the current Board which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals with sufficient number thereof being
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules requires the Company to have at least
three independent non-executive directors on the Board, Rule 3.10(2)
requires that at least one of the independent non-executive directors
shall have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise, and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules requires
the Audit Committee to comprise a minimum of three members, at least
one of whom is an independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under rule 3.10(2).

After the resignation of Mr. Ko Desmond on 30 November 2020, the
Company's number of independent non-executive directors as well as
the composition of the Company's Audit Committee failed to meet the
requirements under rule 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this report, after the appointment of Mr. Koong Lin Loong
as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from
22 February 2021, the Company has met the Listing Rules requirements
under rule 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and Rule 3.21.

The Company has received an annual confirmation or confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
as regards independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' RE-ELECTION

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas Code Provision A.4.2 states that all Directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment and that every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Each of the Non-executive Director and the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a term of three years
respectively. All the Directors are subject to renewal and retirement
by rotation once every three years in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and the CG Code.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, (i) Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow has renewed
the letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 13 November 2020; i) Ko Desmond resigned the position
as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 30 November
2020 and thus the letter of appointment has been renewed up to his
resignation date; (iii) Yau Ming Kim, Robert has renewed the letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1
January 2021 (based on the same terms and conditions); and (iv) Koong Lin
Loong has signed the letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years commencing on 22 February 2021.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS
OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board take decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company.

The Board directly and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group's operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company as well as the services and advice from the company
secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Board as a whole is also responsible for reviewing its composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience relevant to
the Company's business.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company's needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director's responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have complied

with Code Provision A.6.5 to participate in continuous professional
development and receive trainings.
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Record of training received by the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2020 are summarized as follows:
Directors Type of Training Note
Executive Directors

Tan Sri CHENG Heng Jem A/B
Ms. Juliana CHENG San San A/B

Non-executive Directors
Dato’ Sri Dr. HOU Kok Chung A/B

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dato' FU Ah Kiow A/B
Mr. YAU Ming Kim, Robert A/B
Mr. KO Desmond (resigned on 30 Nov 2020)  A/B

Note:

Types of Training

A. Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B. Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant
publications
In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory

update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Board meetings are held at least four (4) times a year with additional
meetings to be convened as and when necessary to determine the overall
strategic directions and objectives of the Group and approve quarterly,
interim and annual results and other significant matters.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, eleven (11) board meetings were E"ﬁi_ T EF+_"_RB=+—HIHFE
held and the Directors' attendances are listed below: B BRT+—(MNANESEEE EF

HEFERIMT -

Number of
Board Meetings
Held During
the Director's Number of
Term of Office Meetings
in 2020 Attended
BR-ZEZTHF
ZEEEHA
BIZEEY HEgE
Name of the Directors EEN4 BERY R
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman) B EiEEdx (/) 11 11
Juliana Cheng San San 5 Hff 3 1 1
Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung EEHEMEEBEL 1 1
Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow ZEHTH 11 9
Ko Desmond Ko Desmond
(Resigned on 30 November 2020) RZEBEZEHE
+—BA=+8#&% 11 4
Yau Ming Kim, Robert B3l 1 1
The Chairman had met with the Independent Non-executive Director HZE_TZ _EF+_H=+—HIEE"
without the presence of the other Executive Director during the year ended EfEfIﬁ?ﬁ%HTﬁl#ﬂﬁ%%tﬂr—Z BRT
31 December 2020. BB IERITEEGRE

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive SFEEXFEAG7ERT  BIUIEHITES
Directors and other Non-executive Directors should attend the issuer's REMIEHFITEEHBAHEEZRTAREKR
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of &> UHRBREERBAEMT R
shareholders.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors' attendances at the
Company's general meeting are listed below:

Name of the Directors EENA
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Juliana Cheng San San

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

2 3 31

RFEEER (FE)

EEHEFRBEL

EERERRS

REBEE_TE_ZTF+_RA=+—HLE
B EFHEARARRAGZERNT:

Number of
Meeting
Attended

Annual General
Meeting on

21 May 2020
A—EB-THg

EFBE=-+—H
BITZRE

BERE HLEGEXH

—_ . a
—_

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow EBHEE
Ko Desmond Ko Desmond
(Resigned on 30 November 2020) BB ZE2HF
+—B=+H&D 1 1
Yau Ming Kim, Robert Eizgl 1 1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee. It currently comprises
four (4) members, three (3) are Independent Non-executive Directors
namely Dato' Fu Ah Kiow (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Yau Ming
Kim, Robert and Mr. Koong Lin Loong (appointed on 22 February 2021 in
replacement of Mr. Desmond Ko resigned on 30 November 2020), and the
other member is Non-executive Director, namely, Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok
Chung.

The Audit Committee is required: (i) to advise the Board on the
appointment and retention of external auditor; (i) to review the external
auditor's independence and objectivity; (iii) to review quarterly, interim
and annual accounts of the Group; (iv) to access the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control; and (v) to review the internal audit
function and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year and the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, In-House Counsel, the Compliance
Officer and a representative of the external auditors of the Company shall
normally be invited to attend the meetings. The Company Secretary or her
nominee shall be the secretary of the Audit Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were four (4) meetings MREEZZ_ZF+B=+—HIF

held by the Audit Committee and the attendances are listed below: B rBZEEESRTHARGH HFEE
mAE

Number of

Meetings Held

during the
Member's Number of
Term of Office Meetings
in 2020 Attended

RZEZEHF

ZHEEHRA
#2172 HEEE
Name of the Audit Committee Member BERY RE
Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow BTG 4 4

Ko Desmond Ko Desmond
(Resigned on 30 November 2020) (MZZTZEHF

+—A=+H8&11D 4 3

Yau Ming Kim, Robert E#3) 4
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung EEREMEREEL 4 4

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee had met REBEEZE T _ZTF+_F=+—HILE
with the executive Directors and management of the Company to review > BEZEZETHANTIRNITESKEE
the quarterly, interim and annual results, the interim report and annual EEE BRAEENZTE -FHPEREE
report and other financial, internal control, corporate governance and risk ﬁ,\,\ o HA $Ei&¢r$5¢&/ﬁ\ﬁﬂaﬁ‘% .
management matters of the Group and made recommendations to the EE-tEXEAKAREESE I

Board. The Audit Committee had met with the external auditor without the ﬁ%%ﬁhtﬂﬁ%%% BZEEE T_”:
presence of management and discussed about the interim financial report, IE/BEE 2150 T EINEZHET R > I

its annual audit of the consolidated financial statements and key audit s A BB EREHG SRR

issues. FEBERZUKRERBERZEH
The Group's results for the year 2020 was reviewed by the Audit BZEZEEGEBRAEE_ZTZHFMNE
Committee. &
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, the Company's
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three (3) members, two (2)
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ming
Kim, Robert (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), and Mr. Koong
Lin Loong (appointed on 22 February 2021 in replacement of Mr. Desmond
Ko resigned on 30 November 2020), and the other member is an Executive
Director, namely Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors; and develop the Group's policy on remuneration for its
Directors (including Executive Directors) so as to ensure that it attracts
and retains the Directors needed to manage the Company and the Group
effectively. Directors do not participate in decisions regarding their own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year and at
such other times as its chairman shall require. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Remuneration Committee had one (1) meeting and the
attendances are listed below:

Name of the Remuneration Committee Member

Yau Ming Kim, Robert Ekyel
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem FHHTEEE AR
Ko Desmond Ko Desmond

(Resigned on 30 November 2020)

HINEEEME S

EERERRS

FMEESE

RBELEEATUNRE AR BFHMNE
EgRFH=-Q)EKREARR  EFMm(2)%
HEABIIERNTES  BNEHILE Gr
MEEZTER RALSRELE R —
F_B_+__HEZT BEENR_ZE_Z
F+—B=+HEEEZKo Desmondsc ) »
MBI —ZHEANTES BT RE
ERxe

M

FNEE SR ERAENEERSRERE
BHFHNTE 2REFHNBRRRE
Rt EEEREES , MFIEAER
EX (BRENTES) NHNBR BIbE
REE K FRIRSI R IREPRRES LA
MEEBARBARFER - EFUESHEA
R S B RRIBIR

HNEEEeEFREHRA—REH I
REFEXRNEMEEARERZ -NEE
“Z2TEHF+"RA=+—HLFE M
ZEEEAR—(NREH HEBRUOT

Number of
Meetings Held
during the
Member's
Term of Office
in 2020

R ZEZTHF
ZHEEEHRA
2172 HESR
BERH RE

Number of
Meetings
Attended

RoB-BF

N— =

+—B=+H&D 1 0

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy and

the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors during the year

ended 31 December 2020.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of three (3) members, one (1) of whom
is an Executive Director, namely Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee) and the other two (2) members are Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ming Kim, Robert and Dato' Fu Ah
Kiow.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board on appointment of the directors, so as to ensure that all nominations
are fair and transparent.

The Company has adopted an updated Board Diversity Policy on 20
November 2018 (first adopted on 16 August 2013) which sets out, among
others, a number of aspects of board diversity in reviewing and accessing
the board composition and nomination of directors, as applicable. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse board,
and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and where necessary, agree
on the measurable objectives for achieving on the Board and make
recommendation to the Board.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy on 20 November
2018 which sets out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company with a view to ensure that
the Company's board of directors has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and to ensure the
Company's board of directors' continuity and appropriate leadership at the
board level.

The Board and the Nomination Committee regularly examine the Board's
size and, with a view to determine the impact of the number upon
effectiveness, decide on an appropriate size of the Board, taking into
account the scope and nature of the Group's operations.

The Board comprises a balanced and well diversified members of different

age, cultural background and ethnicity. They provide the Board with the
necessary experience and expertise to direct and lead the Group.
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A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences
in the skills, region and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be taken into
account in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on merit while taking into account diversity.
The Nomination Committee will report annually (if it is necessary) in the
corporate governance report, on the Board's composition under diversified
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of this policy.

The Nomination Committee is satisfied that the Board has the appropriate
mix of expertise to lead and govern the Group effectively and provide a
balance of views.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year and at such
other times as its chairman shall require. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Nomination Committee had one (1) meeting and the
attendances are listed below:

Name of the Nomination Committee Member

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem TR EER
Yau Ming Kim, Robert E#3)
Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow EEPEH

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and has
considered and nominated an individual to the Board for appointment as a
Director.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on 20 November 2018 which
aims to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends
to apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its net
profits as dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

The Board shall take into account the following factors: (a) the Articles
of Association of the Company; (b) the applicable restrictions and
requirements under the laws of the Cayman Islands; (c) any banking or
other funding covenants by which the Company is bound from time to
time; (d) the investment and operating requirements of the Company; and
(e) any other factors that have material impact on the Company.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and shall be subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Dividend Policy will continue
to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be proposed or declared in any particular amount for any
given period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Executive Committee was established by the Board for performing the
functions set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and Employees
Written Guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company's external auditor, Ernst &
Young, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

ARFsEE R

Service Category

ZHAR S
FIERLBURTS

Audit Services
Non-audit service

EERERRS

ZEEMEN &
AANBMBEE_E_EF+"-_A=+—H
LEEEEN B INEZ BN Kk & 5t AT
BRI ESESWMT

Fees Paid/
Payable

eft

ENER
RMB
AR®T

4,273,050
282,951

Total 485t

4,556,001

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group that gives a true and fair view on a going concern
basis and the Board was not aware of any material uncertainties.

The statement of the auditor on their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Auditor's Report on
pages 94 to 101.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness at least
annually. The system has been designed for: (i) safequarding assets against
unauthorised user or disposition; (i) ensuring the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication; and (iii) ensuring compliance of applicable
laws, rules and regulations. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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The Company's risk management and internal control systems have been
developed with the following principles, features and processes:

- Identity significant risks in the Group's operation environment;

- Assess and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group's
business and the likelihood of their occurrence;

- Develop necessary measures to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks;

- Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures and report
to the Audit Committee and the Board regularly.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risk that it is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The management, in coordination with division/department heads, assesses
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans to mitigate
risks in day-to-day operations, monitors the risk management progress,
and provides confirmation to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside information
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group has adopted and implemented an inside
information procedure. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach
of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which include the
maintaining of a good control environment with defined organisational
structure, limit of authority, reporting lines and responsibilities
in accordance with the Company's guidelines and the regulatory
requirements.

The management has confirmed to the Board on the effectiveness of

the risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and provides its findings and recommendations
for improvement to the management and the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls of the Group, for the year ended
31 December 2020, and considered that such systems are effective and
adequate. The annual review also covered the financial reporting and
internal audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant
resources.

Whistleblowing procedures are in place to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company's Directors, officers, senior management
and relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie ("Ms. Yuen") of Tricor Services Limited,
external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as the
company secretary. Its primary contact persons at the Company are Ms.
Juliana Cheng San San and Ms. Emily Li, Head of Legal Department of the
Company. Ms. Yuen has attended over 15 hours' relevant seminars during
the year ended 31 December 2020 pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders' interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders' meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at
shareholders’ meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 79 of the Company's Articles of Association, the Board
may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of the Company
which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Under normal circumstances, the Company will not deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the following:
Address: 5th Floor, Metro Plaza

No. 555 Loushanguan Road

Changning District

Shanghai 200051

China

(For the attention of Chairman of the Board)
Telephone: (8621) 6229-8001

Fax: (8621) 3258-0520

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders'
information may be disclosed as required by the law.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary at the Company's head office and principal place of business,
specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact
details and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general meeting
regarding any specified transaction/ousiness and its supporting documents.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
The Chairman of the Board, all other members of the Board including
Non-executive Directors, Independent Non-executive Directors, and the
Chairmen of all Board committees (or their delegates) will make themselves
available at the annual general meetings to meet shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has not made
any changes to its Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the
Company's Articles of Association is also available on the Company's
website and the Stock Exchange's website.
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The Group entered into the China market in the 1990's and has grown
together with the country for 27 years. During the year of 2020, although
the pandemic brought many uncertainties to global economic environment,
Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") elements have been
embedded into our company strategy, management and daily operations
to ensure fulfilment of our responsibility as a social citizen. We believe
an enterprise dedicated to the well-being of its customers, employees,
communities and the environment will create greater value for its
stakeholders, including shareholders, over the long term.

In the section that follows, we share with you our 2020 ESG Report
prepared in accordance with the £SG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules, covering the period from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2020. The ESG Report covers the main businesses of the
Group in China. Conforming to the requirements in the £ESG Reporting
Guide, the Group has disclosed the Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs") in
environmental and social areas in the ESG Report, covering our department
stores (including supermarket), F&B stores and the centralized kitchen
operated in China in 2020. Compared with 2019, there is no significant
adjustment to the scope for this report.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Reporting Principles
of the £SG Reporting Guide, which include:

° Materiality: The Group identifies key ESG areas to be concerned
through stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment, and
develops specific strategies and improvement plans;

. Quantification: This report presents the key environmental and
social performance indicators in quantitative terms, attaches with
quantitative data descriptions, explains its purpose and impact, and
provides comparative data;

° Balance: This report provides an unbiased picture of the Group's
current performance on ESG management following the principle of
balance;

° Consistency: The data disclosure and statistics methods used for

this report are consistent with those for the 2019 ESG report to
ensure the comparability of information.
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ESG MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

Parkson adheres to the sustainable development strategy and integrates
the concept of sustainable development and management into the
corporate governance structure of the Group. We've set up a three-
tier ESG governance structure comprising the Board of Directors, senior
management and ESG working group, and defined their ESG governance
responsibilities, so as to achieve top-down supervision of ESG matters and
ensure the smooth implementation of the ESG work of the Group.

The Board of Directors takes full responsibility for the Group's ESG
strategies and reporting, formulates ESG management policy, regularly
reviews the ESG-related issues of the Group, identifies and assesses ESG
risks and ensures that the Group has in place appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control systems. Meanwhile, the
Board of Directors regularly reviews the performance of the Group and
the disclosures in the ESG report based on the relevant ESG targets.
In November 2020, the Chairman of the Board nominated Ms. Juliana
Cheng to be the board representative to form a team for the purpose of
establishing the ESG mandate and facilitate the ESG report preparation.

The Group's senior management is responsible for executing ESG risk
management and internal control systems, reporting ESG risks and
opportunities to the Board, and ensuring the effective operation of relevant
ESG systems.

The ESG working group of the Group engages the principal departments of
Parkson, with the head of each department directly reporting ESG-related
risks to the Group and implementing ESG management policies approved
by senior management. Moreover, the ESG working group designates
persons to take the responsibility for ESG management and reporting.

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Group's stakeholders include governments and regulators, shareholders
and investors, employees, business tenants, consumers, suppliers and
community. The Group attaches great importance to communicating with
stakeholders and has established effective communication channels with
stakeholders to learn about their demands and expectation, to discuss and
respond to the corporate social responsibility concerns of all stakeholders,
so as to promote the growth of both sides.
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Stakeholders Expectations and concerns  Communication channels = Communication frequency
FEAER S HAE KRR BEERE BIESAR

Compliance with laws and

. Compliance management
regulations

NPT aREE
B EERER -
Proactive in tax payment . .
Governments and regulators Pay taxes T B4R Multiple times per year
HRREEHE BN TR TR . : BEZR
. . ) Implementation of national
Epidemic prevention and .
control policies
MATRIRBUR
& BB
Return on investment
KE R Announcements and circulars
Corporate governance N RIB K
Shareholders and investors TrEEAR Annual financial reports Multiple times per year
REKRIEEA Information disclosure FEMBRS FFZER
EREE Shareholders' meeting
Responding to epidemic ERAE
BHEEEHE
Protect employee's rights and
Interests Regular meetings and trainings
HEB TG — RN
: - EHEHE R
Career development channel Talent development programme
BERRBE e .

Employees Healthy and safe workin Nz Multiple times per month
BT o . Employee care activities BAZRX
environment 8 TRIEES

BEZE2NITIFIRER -
Epidemic prevention and Intranet websites
piiemie P PO EB 4B
control
=B
Protect rights and interests of
business tenants Daily communication
RIEHEm PR HEER
Business tenants Win-win cooperation Meeting and training Multiple times per month
HE/BR L3 R=k (S & RIE (SIEEEN
Epidemic prevention and Service hotline and emails
control AR 7S BAR T ER 38

& BYE
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Stakeholders Expectations and concerns

Communication channels

Communication frequency

Fz= B A HAZ R RRE BBERE PR ES
Media activities
i
Provide high quality products .ﬁﬁﬂ./ﬁﬁj
and services Satisfaction survey
MERERE N
Consumers RMEEE &R . # E.E . . Multiple times per month
HEE Satisfy the diversified needs of service hotline and emails HAZRX
’ ARFS 2R e ER AR
consamers Social media and corporate
MEHBEEZLTTES .
websites
HRE RS LB
Business visit
Fair and impartial procurement Daily meetin
Suppliers NEANFEBIRE Eyﬁﬁﬁg Multiple times per month
HrER Win-win cooperation _ = (SYSEN
s e A Review and performance
b=ay:s =) T/IE 9
evaluation
B RIFF
Community engagement
fteEan Company's official website
Community Business compliance NEIEH Multiple times per year
HEAR EHBEHR Public welfare activities BEZR
Environmental awareness NEEH
IRREH
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BRI

The Group regularly reviews major issues to align the strategy and
long-term objectives in ESG management and to create value for
stakeholders and the business. We identified four main ESG issues covering
environment, employees, operation and public welfare in accordance with
the £SG Reporting Guide. According to the industry characteristics and
the importance of issues to the business development and stakeholders
of Parkson, ESG issues are arranged in their prioritization through ESG
materiality assessment model to define key issues. All assessment results
are reviewed by the senior management and ESG working team of the
Group.

In 2020, we identified “Climate Change" as a new issue based on the
enormous impact of climate change on economic development, such
as extreme weather events. Given that our business and operating
environment have no significant changes over the last financial year, the
previous materiality assessment will be adopted for other ESG issues.
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Important issues

® Energy
management
FEIREIE

Water resource
management

KEREE
Packaging

materials
2L

® Employment

(2=

® Health and safety

® Development and
training
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® |abor standards
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® Product
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ENVIRONMENT

Parkson upholds the concept of sustainable development, pays constant
attention to and actively responds to the national policies and guidelines
on environmental protection.

AL LR R RS EREAMEDIR
BER BEFEREHRENEE S
RITEBRRNBEBYNAERIE

While establishing environmental protection targets as reducing emissions
and improving resource efficiency, we endeavor to reduce environmental
impacts with the aim to create a green and low-carbon shopping and
dining experience.

BERESTUTREERER  URREE
ZiBERHIRIFRIRE

Parkson complies with the following laws and regulations in the PRC to
guarantee the protection of environment during operation:

i) Environmental Protection Law of the People's Republic of China ) (FPEARAMERIEREL)
i) Law of the People's Republic of China on Energy Conservation i) (PEARAMEBOERE)
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iii)

v)

vi)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste

Emission Standard of Cooking Fume on Food Service (GB18483-
2001)

Resources Conservation

To support the national initiatives and policies on environmental
protection, the Group have formulated the internal policies including
the Parkson Group Energy Conservation Policy and Stores Facilities
Maintenance and Safe Operations Policy. Meanwhile, we have implemented
a series of green actions to achieve savings in energy, water resources and
packaging materials in our daily operations:

Upgrading lighting system: Promote the use of LED energy-saving
lamps and upgrade lightings in shopping malls and supermarkets to
improve energy efficiency and reduce energy consumption;

Upgrading equipment: In response to the call for "energy saving,
environmental protection and low carbon”, we have renovated
the old equipment in time and established a clear opening and
closing schedule on equipment such as air conditioner to avoid
unnecessary waste of resources. Maintenance teams in our stores
also regularly repair facilities and check water valves to avoid
leakage;

Optimizing packaging materials: Follow the rule against excessive
package and encourage the reduction of paper cake boxes usage.
Our boutique supermarkets have replaced non-degradable shopping
bags with non-woven and degradable alternatives since December
2020 to alleviate environmental pollution;

Providing environmental training: Provide regular training to raise
our employees' awareness on resources saving and to cultivate a
culture that values resources.

In 2020, due to the impact from the epidemic and store closures, the
Group's key performance indicators in terms of resource use have dropped
largely compared to that of 2019.
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2020 KPIs on the Aspect: Use of Resources:

ype of resources

Energy consumption in total (in MWh)’

Intensity of energy consumption

HiRER

FERHFEBE ORRE)

(in MWh per square meter)

Water consumption in total (in tonne)?

Intensity of water consumption in total

HEFEKE (1) 2

BFEXBE (W/F75K)

(in tonne per square meter)

Packaging materials used for finished

products in total (in tonne)?

FERHREEE KRBT HXK)

IR « HIERERERS

—ECTFRREAEERARERKIER

TR EEMNERE (1)) °

259,559 316,378 339,835
0.166 0.187 0.194
1,409,951 1,719,174 1,776,753
0.899 1.015 1.015

38 65 57

Note:
1.

The energy sources consumed by the Group mainly include electricity,
natural gas and heating energy during winter. Total energy consumption is
accounted according to electricity consumption, natural gas consumption,
heating energy consumption and the default value of parameters related
to fossil fuel as listed in Annex 1 of the Guidelines on Accounting Methods
and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Public Building Operators
issued by the National Development and Reform Commission.

The Group's water consumption is mainly for domestic use and sourced
from municipal water supply system, which can meet the water demand of
daily operation.

The Group's stores use paper and plastic packages. As the Group is not a
production-oriented enterprise, the packaging material used for finished
products per unit produced is not applicable to the Group.
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Pollution Prevention and Control

We have strictly implemented the Parkson Group Environmental Protection
Policy to improve management of environmental waste such as emissions,
greenhouse gas emissions, waste water and wastes. Waste emissions from
the Group are properly treated before discharging to minimize pollution to
the environment:

° Office and household waste water of the Group is discharged into
municipal sewer system for collective treatment in compliance
with the Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers.

° In active response to the relevant requirements on the Household
Waste Management, the Group has propagated the knowledge of
garbage classification among employees and set up specialized
areas for collection of classified garbage.

° Non-hazardous wastes produced by the Group in its daily
operations are categorized and subjected to collection and
integrated treatment by respective property management
companies.

In 2020, due to the impact from the epidemic and store closures, the
Group's key performance indicators in terms of emissions have dropped
largely compared to that of 2019.

2020 KPIs on the Aspect: Emissions':

SHRmA
ARBIRIEHFRMEEKT > HMBEEINIT

(BEREERRBFRERE) MABHER
BERE BAKNERVENEE SR
DHIRIBRS I REBPTELENFRY
EHMATE KB EENRE

. REBENMAMEFREKHEET
<<3T§7}<}3F7\iﬁE$E—F7J<L7J<'§E:¢>> 2
W ERRHFFATBUS K ERETE
BRI

. AEBBRERE S FNIREEIER
BROHETHETUIRDEETE W
REFANIR D BRERET ;

. rEERREEFMELENES
MR EBSYEEERTE
B R —RIRANGRERE -

BE
19

—ECTE SRBREERERE &
S5 [ 6 H 0 2 R R A0S AR B =
T NEHEBRANKEIE-

—ECTHFHIRYEERREARIER

ype of emissions BE gL

Waste water in total (in tonne) BEk 4R 2 (ME)

Non-hazardous waste emissions in total HEEZEEFEYHERAE S () °
(in tonne) 2

Intensity of non-hazardous waste BEBEEYERE M,/ F5K)
(in tonne per square meter)

Greenhouse gas emissions in total BERBIINEE
(in tCOze) ® (ME-EERES)°

- Direct (Scope 1) greenhouse gas Hiz EE) REREIKE
emissions (in tCOz¢) (M| ERES)

- Energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse — SEJR 1% (%E@ﬂ mERE
gas emissions (in tCOze) B E M|t EE)

Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions B = R AEHERE E
(in tCO2e per square meter) (M| EiREE,/FHXK)

1,307,430 1,554,991 1,610,091
11,675 14,969 27,063
0.007 0.009 0.015
161,112 193,894 207,608
4,691 7,926 8,139
156,421 185,968 199,469
0.103 0.115 0.119
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Note:

1. According to the management's assessment results, the Group does not
generate hazardous waste during its business operation, and therefore KPI
A1.3 hazardous waste does not apply.

2. Non-hazardous wastes include engineering waste, domestic waste, grease
in grease traps, food waste and recyclable waste (waste paper, scrap iron
and plastic waste, etc.).

3. Based on the nature of the Group's business operation, the greenhouse
gas emissions of the Group include direct emissions resulting from natural
gas combustion and indirect emissions resulting from energy consumed
through consumption of heating energy and purchased electricity, so
greenhouse gases include only carbon dioxide (CO2). Greenhouse gas
emissions are presented as COze (carbon dioxide equivalent) and calculated
according to the Accounting Methods and Reporting Guide for Greenhouse
Gas Emissions from Public Building Operators issued by the National
Development and Reform Commission.

4. Except for the content disclosed above, our business operation does not
cause any other significant impact to the environment or consume other
natural resources during our course of operation.

Climate Change

We take climate change risk into account in risk assessment and
management, identify potential impact of extreme weather (e.g. flood and
typhoon) on the company's business activities, establish relevant command
group to deal with flood and typhoon matters, and prepare response and
contingency plans in advance to prevent the damage caused by extreme
weather on business operations and employees' lives.

The Group's engineering department is responsible for issuing weather
warning and prevention requirements, and each store develops relevant
policies based on the local climatic conditions. For example, Hefei Parkson
Shopping Center has established the Hefe/ Parkson Flood Prevention Plan
and the /nstruction on Standard Practice for Flood Prevention, built up
a special flood prevention leading team and an emergency rescue team
to guide the pre-flood preparation, inspection during the flood season,
cooperation with relevant departments and post-flood recovery work,
and formulated corresponding assessment standards to punish or hold
those employees failing their duties accountable. Pursuant to the Pre-
arranged Planning for Typhoon and Flood Prevention, Parkson's boutique
supermarkets immediately have arranged specialists to check the operation
of outdoor equipment in stores, prepared sandbags, pumps and other
emergency rescue equipment, and organised customer evacuation.
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EMPLOYEES

Attracting and retaining talents is one priority of Parkson's sustainable
development strategy and we adopt a "people first" philosophy. Our
corporate culture embraces team spirit, equality, continuous learning,
innovation and commitment, and diversity, improving employees'
satisfaction and sense of belonging.

Compliance Employment

The Group adheres to the following Chinese labor laws in its daily
operations:

i) Labor Law of the People's Republic of China

ii) Labor Contract Law of the People's Republic of China

iii) Law of the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety

iv) Law of the People's Republic of China on the Protection of Minors
V) Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor

The Group carries out a series of regulations covering employment,
compensation, promotion and termination of employees to ensure
compliance in employment. In 2020, the Human Resource department
further improved and refined the internal policies, and implemented
the Administrative Measures for Onboarding and Dismission, the Leave
Management Measures, the Administrative Measures for Staff Attendance
and the Measures of Employee Discipline Violations, in order to maintain
the Group's normal operating order and sound corporate image, while
safequarding employees' legal rights and interests.

We are committed to the principle of equal employment opportunity for
all employees and to providing employees with a work environment free
of discrimination and harassment. All employment decisions are based
on business needs, job requirements and individual qualifications. In
accordance with the Group's recruitment policy, candidates under the
age of 16 are forbidden to be hired, and the Human Resource department
will verify the authenticity of the information provided by the candidates
as required. During the reporting period, the Group had no violations
involving child labor or forced labor.
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The Group ensures that all levels of employees are paid competitively
within the standard in the market and employees are rewarded on
performance related basis within the framework of the Group's salary,
incentives and bonus scheme. All of our employees are entitled to statutory
holidays, including national public holidays, compassionate leave, sick leave
and annual leave. We advocate the philosophy of working efficiently and
living a healthy life. Overtime work of employees is subject to prior written
approval from responsible persons and work hours shall not exceed the
statutory work hours' limit.

As at the end of 2020, the Group had 5,011 employees in China, of which
58.3% were female.

Total workforce by gender

BIENE DB TR

41.7%

58.3%

@® \Vale .
BHET
Female

ZHEET

Total workforce by region

e & R 8 T LB
8.6% 43700
9.4%
26.7%
/// 32.4%
2.8%
6.4%

@ North China ZEJb @ Central China ZEAR

Northeast China B 1t @ Southwest China AR
@ East China ZE& @ Northwest China 751

@ South China /g
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Total workforce by age

BRERENDWETLER

9.7% 20.6%

»

@ Under 30 years
30 BRUTR

30-50 years
30 5 —50 5%

@ Over 50 years
50 R &

69.7%

Total workforce by employment type

RESHEIISNETLES

2.8%

97.2%

@ Full-time
28

Part-time
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Health Care

The health and safety of our employees is crucial to us. We have created
an infrastructure, established mechanisms and procedures to prevent
accidents and help protect our employees and the assets they work with by
following accepted standards and practices. We have in place Work Safety
Management System and Work Safety Management Policies, to provide
clear guidelines on areas including roles & responsibilities, operational
safety and preventive measures, employee rights and obligations, accident
investigations and handling, etc. to our employees:

i) Work Safety Training Policy
ii) Production Safety Inspection Policy

iii) Safety Management Policy of Place of Business, Equipment and
Facilities

iv) Personal Protective Equipment Provision and Management Policy
V) Accident Reporting and Handling Policy

During the 2020 pandemic, we put employees' health at the first place.
We have set up a special emergency response team and formulated the
Guidelines for Work Resumption of Parkson Shanghai Headquarters amid
the Outbreak. We have adopted a series of measures to strengthen the
prevention and control of the pandemic and to safeguard the health and
safety of all employees in all aspects:

v Office building control: All personnel entering and leaving the
building were subject to control measures such as verifying the
permits, registering information and measuring temperature;

v Personal protection: Employees were provided with masks free
of charge and are required to submit written health declaration;
adjust working hours to avoid over-crowding in the workplace or
elevators;

v Office area protection: Temperature detection were set up at
the entrance of office areas on each floor; the office areas were
ventilated and the air conditioning system was switched off;
sterilization was carried out 1-2 times a day on public areas and
objects for frequent contact.
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The concept of safety is continuously reinforced amongst our employees
through a number of channels such as periodic training, fire and
emergency drills, safety campaigns, health knowledge lectures, field
inspections together with landlords, periodic safety inspections and
displays on safety, in order to promote health and safety during work. We
encourage our staff to obtain fire management qualification certificates
and reimburse for related examination fees.

In 2020, Parkson headquarters and several stores carried out emergency
drills for electric shock, chemical hazard leakage and suffocation in
confined space under unified command, so as to improve employees'
emergency response capability and standardize emergency treatment
measures. The centralized kitchen organized training on COVID-19
prevention in February 2020, and the training and emergency planning drill
on site handling for hazardous chemical leakage were conducted in June
2020.

In 2020, there was no working days lost due to work injury, and there were
no employees died due to work from 2018 to 2020.

Capacity Development

Parkson is a learning organization that encourages employees' professional
and personal development as part of our culture. Confronted by the
changes in the retail industry, employee training and development has
become more important than ever. Therefore, we continuously promote
employees' skills to support our transformation strategies.

Through a structured career development program, we assist our
employees to find the intersection between their aspirations and Parkson's
company goals. We offer a vast array of training programs to employees
at different levels, covering orientation to new staff and leadership
training to senior management. In addition, we cooperate with external
training institutions to help our employees improve professional skills and
develop leadership skills. We have also established the /nternal Lecturer
Management System to encourage our employees to act as part-time
lecturers, so as to better motivate them to work actively, showing expertise
and surpass themselves. In August 2020, Hefei Parkson organized regional
trainings including enhancement of employees' ability in organizational
performance, organizational capabilities and operational management,
aiming to improve the team management.

In 2020, the proportion of employees trained in the Group was 76.3%, and
the total training hours for the year were 70,042 hours.
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Percentage of trainees by gender Percentage of trainees by category of employee

RENBSHRINESE DL

41.1%

58.9%

® Male .
BEMHET
Female

THET

Average of training hours by gender

BRI 872 B T R 2

62.1%

RESHEMISNRIEESESL

3.9%

V

34.0%

[ Senior management
BREEE

Middle management

TR EIEE

® Basic level
HEEAE

Average of training hours by rank

R AR E 2 B IO R R R

Seniormanagement

=

e 12 I mufi [
1] E .

Middle management

PR EE 266
FeQaIe 14.8 Basic level
2R ' g s I os
OPERATION s

As a household name with 27 years' experience in China's retail sector,
Parkson places high priority on the quality of the products provided to our
customers and ensures that our suppliers share the same philosophy with
us.

The Group strictly complies with the following Chinese product
responsibility laws in its daily operation:

i) Law of the People's Republic of China on Product Quality

ii) Law of the People's Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests

iii) Advertisement Law of the People's Republic of China

iv) Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China
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Epidemic Prevention and Control

In order to effectively control the development of the epidemic, also
to ensure the health and safety of every consumer, we have actively
responded to national appeals, practically assumed social responsibility,
and positively responded to the policy guidance since the outbreak of
epidemic. In this special period, Parkson's supermarkets remained open,
and endeavored to coordinate the supply of goods, guaranteeing the daily
needs of residents. We tried to build a safe and reassuring “haven” for
the public with the strictest preventive measures, strong psychological
construction and sufficient material preparations.

Parkson's boutique supermarkets conducted all-round disinfection and
cleaning, emphasizing more detailed and deeper disinfection in the areas
with large flow such as elevator, escalator, toilet, etc. We took temperature
for staffs every day, and required them to wear masks on duty, ensuring the
safety and health of every consumer in Parkson.

In order to well manage the food safety during the epidemic prevention
and control period, Parkson's boutique supermarkets strictly conducted the
disinfection and cleaning work, supported the supervision for food safety
inspection, focused on sampling inspection of fresh and imported aquatic
products, inspection of facilities, equipment and tools, and inspection
of personnel and clothing, as well as provided relevant inspection and
quarantine certificates.

In order to prevent mass gatherings, Parkson's online mall also provides
24-hour services to effectively ensure the daily needs of citizens.

Supply Chain Management

The Group is in continuous search for the highest quality merchandise at a
competitive price, to satisfy consumers' increasing demand for high quality
products. We work hand in hand with our suppliers to make improvements
in quality, designs and prices.

The Group has established systems such as the Supplier Management
Policy and the Purchaser and Supplier Management System and formulated
a sound management process. We rigorously review the qualification of
suppliers in selection process, including the business license, trademark
registration certificate, etc., and sign contracts only with those who have
obtained all levels of approvals and met Parkson's requirements; in the
process of cooperation, we adopt various management procedures to
standardize the supply chain to ensure that suppliers and business tenants
are in compliance with relevant national laws and regulations.
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Meanwhile, we attach great importance to the sustainable development
of the supply chain, and convey the concept and requirements of
sustainable development to suppliers through various channels such as the
establishment of the Environmental and Social Risk Management System
for Suppliers and Business Tenants and the supplier review to encourage
their overall development in terms of sustainable development and social
responsibilities. For example, Parkson's boutique supermarkets review
food and non-food product suppliers’ waste disposal, site environmental
management, sewage management, cleaning and disinfection and other
environmental and social risks. If a supplier fails the review, it needs to
make rectification in time or will be judged as an unqualified supplier.

Regarding to the business ethics management of suppliers, we require
each supplier to sign the Letter of Commitment of Integrity for Supplier to
jointly build a frank, honest and trustworthy cooperative relationship for
safequarding the interests of both parties.

As at 31 December 2020, we had 26,054 suppliers, all located in China.

Operational Management

We are committed to implementing high-standard evaluation procedures
to ensure the quality and safety of the products sold.

For the goods in stores, we have formulated the Standard Operation
Instructions for Store Management Department, which establishes
measurement indicators for the quality of various products such as
apparel, household appliances, cosmetics, and imported goods, to check
and evaluate the products in all aspects such as the results of national
quality inspection reports, formaldehyde content, and the consistency
between the testing reports and actual products.

For the goods in Parkson's boutique supermarkets, we have established a
complete management system ranging from product quality acceptance
to treatment of food safety accidents, including the Product Quality
Acceptance Standards, Instructions for the Treatment of Substandard
Products, Complaint Management Process, Process for Handling Food
Safety Accidents, and Store Procedures for Packaging and Recycling
Products, etc. In the quality acceptance process, especially for food
products, we strictly carry out all-round acceptance inspections such
as shelf life inspection, temperature inspection, packaging and cleaning
inspection, and label inspection.
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The Group's own brand "Hogan Bakery" adheres to the principle of "Quality
First, Customers Foremost”, and has prepared the Quality Management
Manual, the Store Food Safety Management Policy, and Process for
Handling Non-conforming Products to ensure product safety and security.
Its centralized kitchen passed the Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point
(HACCP) system certification in August 2020. We control the processes of
procurement, delivery quality inspection and timely disposal of returned
goods in a strict manner. In accordance with HACCP and quality control
requirements, we prepare and implement quality control recording files and
recording forms to ensure the stability and traceability of product quality.
At the same time, we have delivered trainings such as HACCP knowledge
and workshop management in accordance with HACCP requirements. In
2020, customer satisfaction for "Hogan Bakery" reached 98%.

A complete response mechanism is in place to handle product recalls
timely and smoothly. Quality assurance personnel are responsible for the
judgement, removal, and notification of substandard products; quality
safety management personnel are responsible for the feedback and follow-
up of substandard products. In May 2020, "Hogan Bakery" conducted a
product recall simulation drilling to test the ability to deal with product
quality safety issues in a timely manner and verified the company's recall
system. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no products that needed
to be recalled due to safety and health reasons.

The Group strictly implements the Shopping Mall Facilities Maintenance
and Safe Operation Policy and continues to reinforce operation and
maintenance management on shopping mall facilities including elevators,
escalators, firefighting equipment, etc. in order to provide a healthy, safe
and comfortable shopping environment to our customers.

Optimizing the Consumption Experience

We value our customers' experience and demands and constantly
improve our customer relationship through continuous communication
and interaction with customers. In addition, we maintain keen insight
into market development trends and provide new experience and better
services in line with customers' lifestyle to improve customer satisfaction.
From 30 April 2020 to 7 May 2020, the Group held its first member day
activity at 34 stores across the nation, which introduced the “cloud-based
broadcasting” model to create a safe “online shopping” environment and
comprehensively improve Parkson's consumer shopping experience, leading
the new retail model in an innovative manner.
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We also actively respond to customer complaints and strive to transform
customers' complaints into our improvement. We provide consumers
with a full range of online and offline customer complaint handling and
membership services by setting up various customer service channels
such as customer service centers, customer service hotlines, and store
membership groups. Product knowledge and service skill training are also
part of our routine training programs to ensure that our employees can
provide the best service to our customers.

In 2020, we received a total of 4,686 customer complaints, 100% of which
had been answered, and the resolution rate was over 999%.

Privacy Protection

Parkson resolutely safeqguards the rights and interests as well as the
privacy of customers, formulates the Consumers' Privacy Protection Policy,
which clarifies the way, use and purpose of collecting users' information
and measures for protecting users' privacy, to protect users' privacy
from infringement with every effort. We have desensitized the member
information in the membership system and encrypted the member
information. Meanwhile, we have signed confidentiality agreements with
suppliers to prevent the misuse and disclosure of customer information.

Compliance Operation

Parkson conducts strict review over the contents of its advertisements, to
ensure conformity with the Advertisement Law of the People's Republic of
China and other applicable laws and regulations in China.

By continuously strengthening trademark management, Parkson protects
its exclusive rights to use trademarks and does not infringe the trademark
rights of others. The Group has established a complete management
process for trademark registration, renewal, similar trademark monitoring,
disputes, store trademark authorisation, and the legal and effective use
of corresponding brand trademarks by suppliers. As at 31 December 2020,
Parkson registered a total of 304 trademarks.

Parkson has also formulated rules to regulate texts and pictures used in

WeChat official account, so as to ensure that the network information
published does not contain materials without purchased copyrights.
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Business Ethics Management

A transparent and clean cultural environment is essential to a healthy
enterprise culture. Parkson strictly complies with the following
anticorruption laws of China in its daily operation:

i) Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China

i) Law of the People's Republic of China against Unfair Competition

i) Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery

We stick to the principles of fairness, impartiality, honesty and integrity.
Each new joiner of the Group is required to sign the Letter of Commitment
of Confidentiality for Employee, and managers and above are required
to sign the Letter of Commitment of Integrity. During 2020, there was
no irregularities involving corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or money
laundering.

In order to build a frank, honest, trustful and cooperative relationship,
we updated the Rules for Supplier with the Letter of Commitment of
Integrity for Supplier during the reporting period, which is attached in the
supplier contract. The commitment letter has the same legal force as the
main contract and is required to be signed by all suppliers. If a supplier
violates the requirements of integrity and honesty, the Group has the right
to record such supplier in the internal channel blacklist, as well as the
shared inquiry system of China Corporate Anti-Fraud Alliance and Trust
and Integrity Enterprise Alliance. The Risk Control Center of the Group
will strengthen its supervision of procurement activities during its daily
inspection, so as to effectively monitor procurement activities in the whole
process. Parkson maintains a high standard of business integrity and has
joined the Enterprise Anti-Fraud Autonomous Cooperation Organization,
Enterprise Anti-Fraud Alliance and Trust and Integrity Enterprise Alliance.
Parkson adopts a “zero tolerance” policy for corruption or bribery in any
form.
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In December 2020, the
Risk Control Center
organized anti-fraud
trainings for the Board of
Directors and departments,
in order to improve
employees' comprehensive
understanding of fraud
concept, fraud behavior,
and methods to prevent
and defuse fraud and enhance their awareness via the study of various
anti-fraud materials and off-line trainings.

Whistle-blowing policies are published on the homepage of the Group's
official website (www.parksongroup.com.cn). Customers, suppliers, business
partners and employees can report any suspicious event by means of
e-mail, telephone and mailing:

o E-mail: Anti-Fraud@139.com;

. Personal email address of the Chairman of the Group Audit
Committee: akfu28@gmail.com

° Phone No.: +86 21-3258 0566;
° Mobile phone No.: +86 137 9535 5237 or +86 137 9520 2119
° Postal address: The Risk Control Centre of Parkson Retail Group

Limited, 22nd Floor, Metro Plaza, No. 555 Loushanguan Road,
Changning District, Shanghai, China, 200051
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PUBLIC WELFARE

Based on Parkson Group Charity and Public Welfare Activities Management
Policy, the Group carries out various public welfare activities to serve
and benefit the community with a positive attitude. In 2020, some of the
community activities carried out by our stores across the nation are as
follows:

Special Actions to Fight the Epidemic

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the development of the Epidemic has been
drawing every Chinese's attention. As one of the foreign-funded companies
early starting business in China, Parkson Group has always paid close
attention to the development of the pandemic and showed concerns for
the people affected by the pandemic and front-line medical staffs, making
every effort to provide more assistance. On 26 March 2020, the Group held
a donation ceremony at the Shanghai Charity Foundation, and donated
RMB2 million to the Shanghai Charity Foundation for its "anti-pandemic”
special actions, contributing to combating the pandemic.

All staffs of Parkson Shopping Center in Datong, Shanxi spontaneously
donated RMB50,000 for epidemic prevention and control in Pingcheng
district to support the
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government's epidemic
prevention work.
"Hogan Bakery" also
provided free fresh
bread to medical staffs
who were on the front
line of the epidemic
in Shanghai Huashan
Hospital every day until ™,
the epidemic ends.
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Salute to Heroes in Harm's Way

On 20 May 2020, Harbin Taipinggiao Parkson presented meal coupons
and gift certificates to Harbin No.7 People's Hospital, Harbin Geriatric
Hospital, representatives of sanitation workers, representatives of the Lihua
community, police stations and traffic police detachments to show our care
and gratitude to these great social workers who had devoted themselves to
these ordinary jobs.
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Care for Autistic Children

On 17 September 2020, Parkson Qingdao Lion Mall worked together with
Qingdao Disabled Rehabilitation and Vocation Training Centre as well as
some merchants in the mall to launch a volunteer activity of "Love in Lion
Mall, A Happy Day" for autistic children and carried out various interactive
games and activities to help them grow up healthily and happily.
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Actions in Poverty Alleviation and Public Welfare

On 19 September 2020 and 20 September 2020, in response to the
government's call for poverty alleviation, Kunming Parkson cooperated
with Yunnan Intangible Cultural Heritage Protection Center, People's
Government of Ludian County, and Yunnan Embroidery Cultural Industry
Co., Ltd. to launch charitable activities to assist farmers. We invited the
deputy county governor of Ludian County to promote Ludian agricultural
products and handicrafts in the Kunming Parkson's Love Shopping Live
Broadcasting. Meanwhile, we launched a 10-yuan crowdfunding activity
on the Internet to buy books and stationery for the students of Tuoma
Primary School in Shuimo Town, Ludian County. We also held a special
Yunnan embroidery exhibition on the first floor of Kunming Parkson. The
embroidery crafts made by rural women in Ludian and ethnic costumes
provided by Yunnan Intangible Cultural Heritage Protection Centre were
exhibited to help promote the culture of Yunnan embroider.
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The Board (the "Board") of directors (the "Directors") of Parkson Retail
Group Limited (the "Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the
"Group") presents this report to the shareholders of the Company
(the "Shareholders") together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company, incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
3 August 2005, acts as an investment company. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the principal activities of the Group are the operation
and management of a network of department stores in the PRC. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020, which includes an analysis of the Group's performance using
financial key performance indicators are set out in the section headed
"Management Discussion and Analysis" on page 14 to 19 of this report.
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. The principal risks
and uncertainties that the Group may face, particulars of important events
affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the financial
year, and an indication of likely future development in the Company's
business are set out in the section headed "Chairman’s Statement” on page
6 to page 10 of this report. A discussion on the Group's environmental
policies and relationships with its key stakeholders and investors are
set out in the section headed "Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on page 47 to page 69 of this report. An analysis of the Group's
performance indicators are set out in the section headed "Financial
Highlights" on page 11 of this report. The compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have significant impact on the Group is set out in
this Directors' report. The reviews form part of this statement.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 102.

FIXED ASSETS

Changes on the Group's fixed assets are disclosed on note 11 of the
financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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SHARE CAPITAL g 7s

Details of movements in the Company's share capital for the year ended 31 ZAATHE_ZT_EF+_A=+—H1t

December 2020 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. FENKRAEEFBHN M BRI T

290

DIRECTORS BF

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 MEE_ZE_FTF+_A=+—HIEEFE

and as at the date of this report are as follows: RARBEHBEAATESTT !

Executive Directors BITES

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman) MErEEELR (F/E)

Juliana Cheng San San S5 T 3

Non-executive Director ERITES

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung EEHFEMEIEL

Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow EEHEE

Ko Desmond (Note 1) Ko Desmond (F5E1)

Yau Ming Kim, Robert B3

Koong Lin Loong (Note 2) LS BE (HEk2)

NOTES: M 3E :

1. Mr. Ko Desmond who has resigned as the Independent non- 1. Ko Desmondt £ EFHEEE G H I IFH
executive Director of the Board with effect from 30 November TEE BZE_ZF+—HB=+HiE
2020. Ve

2. Mr. Koong Lin Loong has been appointed as the independent non- 2. ALEAEEN S —E_A "+
executive Director of the Board after the board meeting on 22 HNEESS 2R EZTAEETTRY
February 2021. JFRMITES -

Details of the profile of each member of the Board are set out in the ZEFEZMEMNENBERFIBEHNE20E
"Biographies of Directors and senior management” section on pages 20to ZEHE27BIEERSREIEBREE—H o
27.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles of Association of the {RIEXRATI AT ZIZ4ME] (TATI=24H
Company ("AoA"), Juliana Cheng San San and Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok BI)) $13016 B R EEHERR T
Chung shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at TR AABENEZEENBEBEEAE
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Koong Lin  #m{ERE TR EERREEBEE(F-
Loong shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the  {RKIE AT EBIZMMAIFE 11415 FLL BER L F
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company under Article 114 of RAATEIEBENBREBFEAS HigE
AoA. BE TR BERKERBEET-
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiary corporations, which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE COMPANY

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, the Directors were not aware of any
non-compliance by the Company with any relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on the Company.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report, none of the Directors were interested in any business apart from
the Company's business, which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and as at the date of this report,
a permitted indemnity provision as defined in the Companies Ordinance
was in force for the benefit of the Directors. The Company has taken out
and maintained appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential losses
or liabilities which the Directors or officers may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of their duties of their office during the year ended 31
December 2020.

EQUITY LINK AGREEMENT

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and/
or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQ")) which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which any such Director or Chief Executive is
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be entered into the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code, were set out below:

(a) Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of
the Company:

Name of
Beneficial Owner

Nature of Interest Name of Registered Owner

EmtE

B EARE

BEmEAALE
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EERERSITHRABRKN KB
RS R RS

A CECEF+_RB=+—H ARTE
EREETBRAEBRFTEARSFHEEMAE
BEiE (EERBFRPERMN (FBHK
HAEEB)) B BRI MDD KT E#E
(FRBRME) WEE K RE > MBIREE
F KRB EEH EXVER 787 S8 i Fl & A
REKRBRNERRXE (BIERIERE
FRPERAEREXTERABEMESENE
BITBRAEREANEFFENERRR
B) ; WARAXRBIREE S REFEER
35X MEBFENE MR KA ;
FARIBAEETRBENAA T MR
BmAREEWT

@) FAHEEERNEQTREPHE

B

Number and
Class of
Securities
(Note 1)
ke S 4=
AR
(P33E1)

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
(Note 2)

AR HEREAS
Bt
(Mg=E2)

Corporate interest PRG Corporation Limited PRG Corporation 1,438,300,000 54.59%
NEIEEE ("PRG Corporation”) ordinary shares
1,438,300,000
58 AR
Corporate interest East Crest International Limited East Crest 9,970,000 0.38%
NEEm ("East Crest") ordinary shares
9,970,000
P& 58 B
NOTES: Ff=E -
1. Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, together with his wife, Puan Sri Chan 1. R EiEEHREREEZ T EANE

Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har, through their interests and a series
of companies in which they have a substantial interest, are entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the
voting power at general meetings of PHB. Since PHB is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of 100% of the voting power at
general meeting of PRG Corporation through East Crest, pursuant
to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in both the 1,438,300,000
Shares held by PRG Corporation and the 9,970,000 Shares held by
East Crest in the Company.

2. Based on the issued and paid up capital of the Company as at 31
December 2020.
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(b) Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of
the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFQ):

Name of

Associated Corporation

s AR AR

PHB

East Crest

Puncak Pelita Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Properties Holdings

Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam Investment

Holdings Co., Ltd.

Prime Yield Holdings Limited

Corporate Code Sdn. Bhd.

PRG Corporation

Smart Spectrum Limited

Nature of Interest
EEHE

Beneficial interest and
corporate interest
Bamik
AE D

Corporate interest
AR

Corporate interest
AR

Corporate interest
GIE: 3

Corporate interest
AR

Corporate interest
GIE: 3

Corporate interest
AR

Corporate interest
AGIE: 3

Corporate interest
AR

2020 ANNUAL REPORT H$E#RE

Name of
Registered Owner

B EAANDE

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
together with his spouse
Chan Chau Ha alias
Chan Chow Har directly,
and through a series of
controlled corporations

R EEERERARE
BNERNEER KB
B-2IREEE

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

East Crest

East Crest

b) HMEEEERNAQRRBBER (E
EREFRPERY) RERYEF

B

Name of
Beneficial Owner

BnEAANGLH

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
together with his
spouse Chan Chau Ha
alias Chan Chow Har
directly, and through
a series of controlled
corporations

R EBERERH
BB R T 2Rk E
ER REB—%
F2EEE

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

East Crest

East Crest

Number and

Class of Securities

Fickzd =
ity

626,917,128
ordinary shares
626,917,128
R EER

1 ordinary share
1REER

2 ordinary shares
2 BiE

2 ordinary shares
WeEBER

2 ordinary shares
WeEBER

1 ordinary share
1REER

2 ordinary shares
WeEBER

1 ordinary share
1REER

1 ordinary share
1REER

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
R4
BAE

58.74%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



Name of
Associated Corporation

s AR

Park Avenue Fashion
Sdn. Bhd.

Serbadagang Holdings
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Services Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Properties NDT
(Emperor) Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Properties Hanoi
Co., Ltd.

Parkson TSN Holdings

Co., Ltd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd.

Prestasi Serimas Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Credit Holdings
Sdn. Bhd.

Nature of Interest
EEUE

Corporate interest
AEik

Corporate interest
G35

Corporate interest
AEik

Beneficial interest and

corporate interest
BmEmk
PGS

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
G35
Corporate interest
AFki

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
AF)ik

Name of
Registered Owner

BaBEAANDE

East Crest

East Crest

East Crest

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and
through East Crest
REEEERK
i 1BFast Crest

Parkson Properties Holdings
Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Properties Holdings
Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam Investment

Holdings Co., Ltd.

Prime Yield Holdings Limited

Prime Yield Holdings Limited

Prime Yield Holdings Limited

Prime Yield Holdings Limited
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Name of
Beneficial Owner

East Crest

East Crest

East Crest

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
and through East
Crest

RETEBERK
i 1BFast Crest

Parkson Properties
Holdings Co., Ltd.

Parkson Properties
Holdings Co., Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam
Investment Holdings
Co., Ltd.

Prime Yield Holdings
Limited

Prime Yield Holdings
Limited

Prime Yield Holdings
Limited

Prime Yield Holdings
Limited

Number and
Class of Securities

Fickzd =
eyl

250,002
ordinary shares
250,002
R iE

2 ordinary shares
WeEBER

100 ordinary shares
10082 B i@

458,433,300
ordinary shares
458,433,300
R iE

2 ordinary shares
WeEBER

1 ordinary share
1REER

2 ordinary shares
WeEBER

2 ordinary shares
W BiER

2 ordinary shares
WeEBER

2,000,000
ordinary shares
2,000,000
g iER

2 ordinary shares
WeEBER

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
RS
BAE

100%

100%

100%

68.03%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Name of
Associated Corporation

s AR

Centro Retail Pte. Ltd.

PT. Tozy Sentosa

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co.,
Pte. Ltd.

Nature of Interest

EmftE

Corporate interest
AFk

Corporate interest
AFk

Corporate interest
AFik

Corporate interest
AFik

2020 ANNUAL REPORT H$E#RE

Name of
Registered Owner

BaEAANDE

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Centro Retail Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Name of
Beneficial Owner

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Centro Retail Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Number and

Class of Securities
Firkzid (=

KR

2 ordinary shares
(SGD)

2 BiER
(¥77c)

1 ordinary share
(MYR)

1 E B
(HER)

45,000

Series A
common shares
45,000
AR
BiEhk

5,000

Series A
common shares
5,000

AR
BiEhk

30,355,850

Series B
preference shares
30,355,850
RB% 5
BER

82,000,002
ordinary shares
82,000,002
R iER

1 ordinary share
(SGD)

1 E B
(¥77c)

1 ordinary share
(MYR)

1 E B
(MHER)

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
RS
BAE

100%

100%

(in aggregate)
100%

(&)

100%

100%

100%



Name of

Associated Corporation

s AR

Parkson Yangon Company

Limited

Parkson HBT Properties
Co., Ltd.

Idaman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd.

True Excel Investments
Limited

Parkson Branding Sdn. Bhd.

Ombrello Resources Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson SGN Co., Ltd.

Parkson Cambodia Holdings

Co,, Ltd.

Nature of Interest
EEUE

Corporate interest
AEik

Corporate interest
AFik

Corporate interest
AEik

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
AFiki

Name of
Registered Owner

BaBEAANDE

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte. Ltd.

Parkson TSN Holdings Co., Ltd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd.

Prestasi Serimas Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.
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Name of
Beneficial Owner

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Parkson Myanmar Co.,
Pte. Ltd.

Parkson TSN Holdings
Co., Ltd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd.

Prestasi Serimas
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Approximate

Number and  Percentage of

Class of Securities
H5HE
RAER

1,900,000
ordinary shares
1,900,000
R iE

100,000
ordinary shares
100,000
R iE

2,100,000
capital (USD)
% 752,100,000
(%)

2 ordinary shares
WeEBER

2 ordinary shares
e BiER

1 ordinary share
1REER

7,000,000
ordinary shares
7,000,000
R iE

457,000
ordinary shares
457,000
R iE

4,500,000
Capital (USD)
% 754,500,000

(ZEm)

1 ordinary share
1REER

Shareholding
friERA
BAL

100%

(in aggregate)
100%

(&)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Name of

Associated Corporation

s AR

Parkson Edutainment World
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.

Kiara Innovasi Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Haiphong Co.,, Ltd.

Parkson Unlimited Beauty
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Trends Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Private Label
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Trading (Vietnam)
Company Limited

Solid Gatelink Sdn. Bhd.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EREHREE

Nature of Interest
EEUE

Corporate interest
AFk

Corporate interest
GIE: 3

Corporate interest
AF)k

Corporate interest
AE)ki

Corporate interest
AE)ki

Corporate interest
AEk

Corporate interest
AFki

Corporate interest
AFk

Corporate interest
AEiki

2020 ANNUAL REPORT H$E#RE

Name of
Registered Owner

BaEAANDE

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Name of
Beneficial Owner

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Approximate

Number and  Percentage of

Class of Securities

Fickzd =
eyl

1,000,000
ordinary shares
1,000,000
R g iER

35,000,000
ordinary shares
35,000,000
R g iER

5,000,000
ordinary shares
5,000,000
R iER

30,000920
capital (USD)

F% 7530,000,920
(ZE7m)

3,000,000
ordinary shares
3,000,000
R iER

3,000,000
ordinary shares
3,000,000
R iE R

5,000,000
ordinary shares
5,000,000
R iE R

300,000
capital (USD)
& 7%300,000

(&)

3,000,000
ordinary shares
3,000,000
R iER

Shareholding
friERA9
BAL

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



Name of

Associated Corporation

s AR

Parkson Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Investment

Company Pte. Ltd.

Festival City Sdn. Bhd.

Megan Mastika Sdn. Bhd.

True Excel Investments
(Cambodia) Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Fashion Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Branding (L) Limited

(Note 1) (Struck off on
6 July 2019)

Parkson Branding (L) Limited
(1) (RZ2—h

FtARBEH)

Parkson (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.

Nature of Interest
EEUE

Corporate interest
AEik

Corporate interest
G35

Corporate interest
AFik

Corporate interest
AEik

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
AFiki

Corporate interest
AFiki

Name of
Registered Owner

BaBEAANDE

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte. Ltd.

Idaman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd.

True Excel Investments Limited

Parkson Branding Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Branding Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Cambodia Holdings Co.,

Ltd.
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Name of
Beneficial Owner

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co.,
Pte. Ltd.

Idaman Erajuta Sdn.
Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn.
Bhd.

True Excel Investments
Limited

Parkson Branding
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Branding
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Cambodia
Holdings Co., Ltd.

Number and

Class of Securities

Fickzd =
eyl

10,340,000
capital (USD)

}% 710,340,000
(%)

2,100,000
ordinary shares
2,100,000
R iE

500,000
ordinary shares
500,000
R iE R

300,000
ordinary shares
300,000
R iE

1,000

ordinary shares
1,000
R iE

5,000,000
ordinary shares
5,000,000
R B

300,000
ordinary shares
300,000
R iE

1,000

ordinary shares
1,000
R iE

ESEREE

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
RS
BAE

100%

70%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Name of

Associated Corporation

s AR

Parkson Vietnam
Management Services Co,,
Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Asia Pte.
Ltd.

Myanmar Parkson Company
Limited

Dimensi Andaman Sdn. Bhd.

Nature of Interest
EEUE

Corporate interest
AFk

Corporate interest
GIE: 3

Corporate interest
AF)k

Corporate interest
AFik

2020 ANNUAL REPORT H$E#RE

Name of
Beneficial Owner

Name of
Registered Owner

BaEAANDE BnEAANGLH

Parkson Vietnam Co., Ltd. Parkson Vietnam Co.,,

Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar
Investment Company
Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar
Investment Company
Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Asia Pte. Ltd.  Parkson Myanmar Asia
Pte. Ltd.

Megan Mastika Sdn. Bhd. Megan Mastika Sdn.

Bhd.

Number and

Class of Securities

Fickzd =
eyl

100,000
capital (USD)
F% 100,000

(Em)

30,000
ordinary shares
(USD)

30,000
R iE R
(&)

1 ordinary share
(S6D)
1REER
(¥7T)

270,000
ordinary shares
270,000

R iER

30,000
ordinary shares
30,000

R iER

300,000
ordinary shares
300,000

R iER

53,719,999
redeemable
convertible
cumulative
preference shares
53,719,999
k(e
EEY S
BER

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
RS
BAE

100%

100%

100%

(in aggregate)
100%

(&)

100%

(in aggregate)
100%

(&)
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NOTES: FisE -

1. Parkson Branding (L) Limited will be deemed dissolved if its name 1. f#Parkson Branding (L) Limitedfy%4
remains struck off continuously for 3 years from 6 July 2019 but BE-ZE—NEtBBitEE
Labuan Financial Services Authority may apply to the Court on —FREFEE M ERBERAR
or before the expiration of 3 years to have Parkson Branding (L) B BN AZESREBRFEEERA
Limited put into liquidation. R =FE w3z /i m AR s &

Parkson Branding (L) Limited;5 25 o

(c) Short positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of (c) Hﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ;&ﬁ*ﬁﬂ%?i (%
E “q= s 3
the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFO): %E 58 75 R FRE AR BIl) B A o 9 33t
B .

Approximate

Name of Name of Name of Number and  Percentage of
Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Class of Securities  Shareholding
R B4
aECEE B8 RmEtE BRHEARE BRE AR H5HE RER BaL
PHB Corporate interest Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem 40,000,142 3.74%
together with his spouse together with his ordinary shares
Chan Chau Ha alias spouse Chan Chau Ha
Chan Chow Har directly, alias Chan Chow Har
and through a series of directly, and through
controlled corporations a series of controlled
corporations
GIE: 3 REEEERERARE AHEEERERH 40,000,142
BRERNEER RE EBENERNE REER
B-RIREAR B RBB—%
IREER
NOTE: B 5E -
1. Based on the issued and paid up share capital of the Company as 1. UERRBDR _E_EEFE+_H
at 31 December 2020. =+—HBHNBETRBERES

o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save from the above disclosure, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2020 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; nor was the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiary corporations or fellow subsidiary corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT fE[ERE

fREXFIIRBEEIN M _E-TF+_8
Zt+—HB ARABREFHARSTHAER
BERAATDRAEEIE (EERE
RERERAIEXVER) BIR M ~ ERIR D &
BB BEAEAREZESRPERD
SEXVERF7K8E N AN G A B K W3 PR
WDk E (BEREESRBERD
WERBRXREREFNRBEHEA IR
MmIKB)  HAREBHF R IAE R HIF352
15 A 50 A % 1% P $5 B9 B 5C 1 P9 AO 188 2 310 33¢
B HRBERETRANG RS RER
PREVEZ IR A o

AHAEFRBIRD REEEZLH

R EXFIRBEEN RBEE_ZT_ZTF
+TA=+t—HLFEASEEAR[GD
EREFHEZBZEBHRNEF LR
LEBBERRB RN VEEREMESH
m 2 R WEI B ET EERA AR
KRB HERABHEEMAM B LT
FIRMBARITFHE UREEFNES
B ZEBEARmE F LR EREMATE
EEFAREN Z A2 HE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT igﬂxiﬁ"ﬂ%}&*ﬁ A B 10 B #E &
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES Bk

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the Directors are aware, each of the W _IEBE-ZEF+_H=+—H BEEEF
following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, X' U TF&A L (LIFEAATDEEHESIT
had interests and short positions in the Company's shares which falls tobe A B) RAAB RO PHEHEZ L XA
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Y ZB1R# 55 5 R HA S 18 B EXVEB F2 & 53
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO: /\ﬁﬁﬁzliﬁj&ﬂﬁi’\ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%

Percentage of
Shareholding

(direct or

Name of Shareholder Long/Short Positions Nature of Interest Number of Shares indirect)

BRESL

(B

RR%ME/ 4 EmitE Ri?#AE )

PHB Long Corporate interest 1,448,270,000 54.97%
e NElET (Note 1)
(Fyz£1)

Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Long Interest of spouse 1,448,270,000 54.97%
Chan Chow Har Ha [ (Note 2)
BEERUE GE)

PRG Corporation Limited Long Beneﬂmal interest 1,438,300,000 54.59%
e BnfEn [No}\e 1)
(FyzE1)

Chan Kin Long Corporate interest 955,975,517 36.28%
Rt e UNGIL i (Note 3)
(Ff¥z£3)

Argyle Street Management Long Corporate interest 955,975,517 36.28%
Holdings Limited 50 NEER (Note 3)
iEx))

Argyle Street Management Limited Long Investment manager 955,975,517 36.28%
e RERE (Note 3)
(Ff¥z£3)

ASM Connaught House Long Corporate interest 940,584,517 35.70%
General Partner |1 Limited 5= NEER (Note 3)
(Ff¥z£3)

ASM Connaught House Fund Il LP Long Corporate interest 940,584,517 35.70%
wa NEER (Note 3)
iEx))
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Name of Shareholder

L Vg2

Bishan Street Limited ("Bishan")

Wang Hung Roger
FiE

Wang Hsu Vivine H
IREE

GEICO Holdings Limited

Golden Eagle International Retail
Group Limited

Wang Dorothy S L

Wang Janice S Y

HSBC Holdings PLc
(Released on 20 July 2020)
HSBC Holdings PLc

MZB-_EFELRB_+RHER)

Long/Short Positions

e/ %8

Long
He

Long

Long
e

Long
He

2020 ANNUAL REPORT H$E#RSE

Nature of Interest

it A
Beneficial interest and security interest

BamkinfkD

Beneficial interest and trustee

BaBmkZEA

Interest of spouse and beneficiary of a trust

EREnkELERTA

Corporate interest
el

Beneficial interest

Bgr]eficiary of a trust
FER@mA

Bgr]eficiary of a trust
FER@mA

Corporate interest
AR

Number of Shares

Rip#E

933,845,517
(Note 3)
(E)

429,935,500
(Note 4)
(P zE4)

429,935,500
(Note 5)
(P zEs)

421,646,346
(Note 6)
(ED)

421,646,346
(Note 6)
(B

421,646,346

421,646,346

250,000,000
(Note 7)
ED)

Percentage of
Shareholding
(direct or
indirect)
RREDL
(B#E
%)

35.449%

16.32%

16.32%

16.00%

16.00%

16.00%

16.00%

9.48%



NOTES:

PRG Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of East Crest which is in turn
wholly owned by PHB. By virtue of the SFO, PHB is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by PRG Corporation in the Company.

Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har is the wife of Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem and is deemed to be interested in 1,448,270,000 Shares which
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem is deemed to be interested in for the purposes of
the SFO.

According to disclosure of interest filings available on the Stock Exchange's
website, Mr. Chan Kin is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
several corporations which he directly or indirectly controls. Out of these
955,975,517 Shares, 9,645,517 Shares are interests in cash-settled unlisted
derivatives.

Bishan and ASM Connaught House Fund LP beneficially owned 9,645,517
and 11,565,500 Shares respectively. Bishan also held 924,200,000 securities
interest on the Shares among the 933,845,517 Shares it is interested in.

Bishan was held indirectly by Argyle Street Management Limited as the
Investment Manager through ASM Connaught House Fund Il LP, ASM
Connaught House Fund LP and several other controlled corporations. ASM
Connaught House General Partner Il Limited and ASM Connaught House
General Partner Limited were two wholly controlled corporations of Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited. Mr. Chan Kin has 100% control over
Argyle Street Management Limited through his 50.43% control over Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Kin, Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited and Argyle Street Management Limited
were deemed to be interested in an aggregate holding of 955975517
Shares by virtue of the SFO.

The capacities of Wang Hung Roger in holding the 429,935,500 Shares
(Long position) were as to 8,289,154 Shares (Long position) as beneficial
owner and 413,275,346 Shares (Long position) as trustee.

Wang Hsu Vivine H is the wife of Wang Hung Roger and is deemed to be
interested in 429,935,500 Shares held by Wang Hung Roger.
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P 5k -

4.

58

ESEREE

PRG CorporationiZFast Crestfy 2 & /B
‘AE) > MEast CrestX HPHBZ EHER - &
MRBEHRHBE KRG > PHBI IR EFPRG
CorporationE A A B R BN L FHEE
R o

BNEMRMEASTEBEGNET
ERSBFENRBERY BEEREE S
BIEERWR AR #m1,448,270,000
Hxﬁxfﬁ E']fh* &

RIBHZFAEE SN EERESR
RELERRANBREE R LB IFE
BN ABIFIEEMNRS T HEE R T
5235955,975,517 & B D #° 9,645,517 8% A%
MARELTRESEETETARNE

g
m

Bishan/&ZASM Connaught House Fund LPﬁ
BB % #E 9,645,517 K 11,565,5008% A 17

EEBEAETER933,84551 7R (H F »
Bishan7R 52924,200,000/% f% 17 & ¥ 75 1K 18
M o

BishanFHArgyle Street Management Limited
(TEAHTELIR) HEBASM Connaught
House Fund Il LP~ASM Connaught House
Fund LPRBIREMZ I AEBERSS -
ASM Connaught House General Partner Il
Limited 52ASM Connaught House General
Partner LimitedZsArgyle Street Management
Holding LimitedM MK T2 EEAE o
REEELEFBEEIEF 50430 H R
Argyle Street Management Holding Limited &
BAArgyle Street Management LimitedBJ100%
B - JIL  RIBE S K ARG RG> BR
{44 ~ Argyle Street Management Holding
Limited 5zArgyle Street Management Limited
WAR A & 51955,975,517 B & 10 FOFE RS
REEE o

FIBFriE A 429,935,500 B3 19 (17 &)
M 8,289,154/ %10 (IF B) UBREE A
BREH > M413,275,34608 B3 15 (47 &) L
SZEEABMFE

FHEBEATFENET  WEENREE
155 #9429,935,5008% B& 1D #E B HE o
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6. Golden Eagle International Retail Group Limited is wholly-owned by GEICO 6. Golden Eagle International Retail Group
Holdings Limited. By virtue of the SFO, GEICO Holdings Limited is deemed to Limited FHGEICO Holdings Limited 2 B # A ©
be interested in the Shares held by Golden Eagle International Retail Group ERESH KBS A > GEICO Holdings
Limited in the Company. Limited#f2 fEF Golden Eagle International

Retail Group LimitedPTIFHE AR B D
REEE o

7. HSBC Holdings plc, through its controlled corporation, previously acquireda 7. HSBC Holdings plcsCAliE B H = 124 B L

security interest in the shares of the listed corporation by way of a charge. S A U i A E RS PRV IR IR

The charge was released on 20 July 2020 and therefore HSBC Holdings moBRFER _E-EFE+HA-+H

plc ceased to have any security interest, and hence ceased to have any TEAR R » BUHSBC Holdings ple REB#EA £

notifiable interest, in the listed corporation. AR AMABEE LHEZEW
FRIZBET I ERR o

As at 31 December 2020, as far as the Directors are aware, each of the RN _E_EFE+_A=+—H BESMm

following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, M UTFEUAL WA RDEFHRS

was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value TTHABR) ERSEZEFTELEERE AT

of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at (KRR BEVBRIN) EETERRI AR A (FERT R

general meeting of a member of the Group other than the Company: AERBEATRRBREAE LR E) EE10%
A R

Percentage of
Equity Interest

86

Substantial Shareholder Member of the Group Held
FaRE

FERR TEBRE AT Bt

Xinjiang Youhao' Xinjiang Parkson 49%

B R IF WMEaR

Wuxi Supply and Marketing? Wuxi Parkson 40%

I 55 (82 miH AR

Guizhou Shengi Enterprise? Guizhou Parkson 40%

BNMEEE BEINERE

Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Shanghai Lion Property* 71%

EBABEHE LiEE R

Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson® 29%

tBABEXE EENEBHE

E- Land Fashion Hong Kong Limited® Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. 51%
TREEBERRAFS BEATBEREEE (L8 BRAF

E- Land Fashion Hong Kong Limited’ Nanchang Parkson Newcore Retail Ltd. 51%
TREEBRRAB HMERRMEEERRAS

Koh Wee Lit Habitat Blue Sdn. Bhd. 40.55%

Bernice Cheong Nyuk Siew Habitat Blue Sdn. Bhd. 16.67%
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Xinjiang Friendship (Group) Co., Ltd. owns 49% of the equity interest of
Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development Co., Ltd. (“Xinjiang Parkson").

Wuxi Supply and Marketing Group Co., Ltd. owns 40% of the equity interest
of Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. ("Wuxi Parkson").

(i) Guizhou Shenqi Enterprise, owns 40% of the equity interest of
Guizhou Parkson.

(ii) Zhang Pei, Zhang Zhi Jun and Zhang Ya, own 30%, 40% and 30%
of the equity interest in Guizhou Shengi Enterprise, respectively,
representing a 12%, 16% and 12% indirect equity interest in
Guizhou Parkson.

Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai Lion
Property") is a cooperative joint venture enterprise established under the
laws of the PRC between Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai
Nine Sea Industry”) and Exonbury Limited ("Exonbury”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. According to public records, Shanghai Nine Sea
Industry and Exonbury owns 54.79% and 45.21% of the equity interest in
Shanghai Lion Property respectively. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and the
Group are entitled to 71% and 29% of the voting rights in the board of
Shanghai Lion Property respectively under a mutual agreement between
both parties. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and the Group are entitled to 65%
and 35% of the distributable profits of Shanghai Lion Property respectively.

Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson")
is a cooperative joint venture enterprise established under the laws of the
PRC between Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and Exonbury. According to public
records, Exonbury owns 100% of the equity interest in Shanghai Nine Sea
Parkson. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and the Group are entitled to 29%
and 71% of the voting rights in the board of Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson
respectively under a mutual agreement between both parties. Shanghai
Nine Sea Industry is entitled to a pre-determined distribution of income
from Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson while the Group is entitled to 100% of its
distributed profit after deducting the aforesaid pre-determined distribution
of income attributable to Shanghai Nine Sea Industry.

According to public records, Newcore Retail Hong Kong Limited (“Newcore
Hong Kong") has transferred its 51% equity interest in Parkson Newcore
Retail Shanghai Ltd. (“Parkson Newcore") to E-Land Fashion Hong Kong
Limited ("E-Land Hong Kong") on or around 21 July 2020. Upon the
completion of the aforesaid transfer, Newcore Hong Kong has ceased to
be a shareholder of Parkson Newcore and E-Land Hong Kong has become
a shareholder of Parkson Newcore who owns 51% of the equity interest in
Parkson Newcore.
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7. Parkson Newcore owns 100% of the equity interest in Nanchang Parkson
Newcore Retail Ltd. ("Nanchang Newcore"). E-Land Hong Kong owns 51%
of the equity interest in Parkson Newcore, and thus E-Land Hong Kong is
indirectly interested in 51% of the equity interest in Nanchang Newcore.

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 31
December 2020, no other person had an interest or short position in the
Company's shares or underlying shares (as the case may be), which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was otherwise
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company or his/her connected entity
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the financial year 2020 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2020.

No contract of significance was entered into between any member of
the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries corporations or contract of significance for the provision of
services to any member of the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries subsisted as at the end of the financial year 2020 or during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS OR CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report,
there was one (1) discloseable non-exempted connected transaction under
the Listing Rules
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Acquisition of the 30% equity interest in Parkson Credit SDN BHD

On 29 July 2020, Oroleon (Hong Kong) Limited (the "Purchaser"), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the "New SPA") with Parkson Credit Holdings Sdn Bhd (the
“Vendor"), pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally agreed to
acquire the remaining 30% equity interest in Parkson Credit Sdn Bhd (the
"Target Company") at a cash consideration of RM26 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$47,447,400) (the "Acquisition”). Prior to entering into the
New SPA, the Vendor had sold and the Purchaser had purchased 21,000,000
ordinary shares which represent 70% equity interest in the Target Company
at a consideration of RM49 million on 13 September 2018. Therefore, upon
completion of the Acquisition, the Target Company has become an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and ceased to be a connected
subsidiary and connected person of the Company.

The Vendor is a company established in Malaysia whose principal business
is investment holding. The Vendor is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of PHB and therefore a connected person of the Company. As Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem and his spouse are together entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of more than 30% of the voting power at the general
meetings of PHB and PHB is an indirect holding company of the Vendor,
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem is materially interested in the Acquisition and has
abstained from voting on the relevant Board resolution(s) approving the
Acquisition. Juliana Cheng San San, an executive Director, is the daughter
of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and is therefore an associate of Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem and, as such, has also abstained from voting on the relevant
Board resolution(s) approving the Acquisition in accordance with the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company.

None of the "Related Party Disclosures” as disclosed in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules. To
the extent of the above “Related Party Disclosures” constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in the Listing
Rules, the Company had complied with the relevant requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Deed of Non-competition

A deed of non-competition was entered into between Lion Diversified
Holdings Berhad ("LDHB") and the Company on 10 November 2005
(supplemented and amended on 18 September 2007), under which LDHB
has undertaken not to engage, other than through the existing managed
stores, in any business of the retail trade in merchandise in department
stores, supermarkets, hypermarkets, convenience stores, specialty
merchandise stores, supercentres and category killers in the PRC, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan. Pursuant to a reorganization scheme undertaken
by LDHB, LDHB had agreed to consolidate most of its retail business
(including most of its existing managed stores in the PRC) into PHB. In
light thereof, PHB has entered into an identical deed of non-competition
with the Company on 18 September 2007 with respect to those managed
stores acquired from LDHB. In conjunction therewith, LDHB has granted an
indemnity in favour of the Company which will be invoked if PHB fails to
fulfill its obligation under the aforesaid deed of non-competition dated 18
September 2007.

The principal businesses of LDHB are manufacturing and selling computer
and related products, developing property, investment holding and others.
The principal business of PHB is operation of department stores and PHB
is a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected
person of the Company. Both PHB and LDHB are members of The Lion
Group which is ultimately controlled by Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and
hence, LDHB is a connected person of the Company. Save for Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem who has material interest in the aforesaid transaction,
none of the directors have a material interest in the aforesaid transaction
and need to be abstained from voting in respect thereof. Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem is deemed interested in the aforesaid transaction and has been
abstained from voting in any of the resolutions in relation to the aforesaid
transaction.
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Trademark licence agreement

A trademark licence agreement (the "Licence Agreement”) was entered into
between Shanghai Lion Investment (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) and Parkson Corporation on 9 November 2005, pursuant
to which Parkson Corporation granted to Shanghai Lion Investment an
exclusive licence to use certain trademarks, including the "Parkson” and
“Xtra" trademarks for a term of 30 years at the licence fee of RMB30,000
per store per annum. The Trademark was subsequently assigned by Parkson
Corporation to Smart Spectrum Limited on 14 June 2011. All rights,
obligation, and liabilities under the Licence Agreement were therefore
novated by Parkson Corporation to Smart Spectrum Limited on 1 August
2011. The Trademark was further assigned by Smart Spectrum Limited
to Parkson Services Pte. Ltd. on 1 June 2020. All rights, obligation, and
liabilities under the Licence Agreement were therefore novated by Smart
Spectrum Limited to Parkson Services Pte. Ltd. on 1 June 2020.

Parkson Services Pte. Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of East Crest which
in turn is wholly-owned by PHB (and hence an associate of PHB) and its
principal activity is intellectual property holding. None of the directors has
a material interest in the Licence Agreement and needs to be abstained
from voting in respect thereof.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 17 October 2019, the Company as borrower, entered into a facility
agreement (the "Facility Agreement”) in respect of a syndication term loan
facility with an aggregate amount of up to HKD3,900,000,000 (the "Loan
Facility") with a syndicate of banks, as lenders (the “Lenders”) with the
term of 36 months commencing from the first drawdown date or up to 28
October 2022 (whichever is earlier). Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, Tan
Sri Cheng Heng Jem (together with his wife, Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias
Chan Chow Har, who is deemed to be interested in Tan Sri Cheng Heng
Jem's interests in the Company) shall remain to be the largest ultimate
beneficial owner of the Company. In the event that Tan Sri Cheng Heng
Jem (together with his wife, Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har)
ceases to be the largest ultimate beneficial owner of the Company, the
facility available will be cancelled and the Company shall be obliged to pay
all outstanding amounts within 3 Business Days thereafter.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed interest in any of the
Company's listed securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations, in form of money and materials, made by the Group
during the year costed approximately RMB2 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands although there
are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND PENSION SCHEMES

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with
employees. The remuneration payable to employees includes salaries and
allowance/bonuses.

The Group has also made contributions to staff-related plans or funds in
accordance with the local requlations of the PRC: pension plans, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance and
maternity insurance.

The Group has been advised by its legal advisers on PRC law that the above
arrangements are in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group is principally engaged in retail sales, none of its customers
and suppliers accounted for more than 5% of its turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2020. None of the directors or shareholders who
owned 5% or more of the issued capital of the Company for the year ended
317 December 2020 or any of their respective associates held any interest
in any of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out in the
"Corporate Governance Report" under this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been audited by
Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants.

On behalf of the Board
Parkson Retail Group Limited
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Executive Director & Chairman
22 February 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B SRS E

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Parkson Retail Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Parkson Retail
Group Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group") set
out on pages 102 to 248, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Qur responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how

our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BIURHMRSE (8)

FEEZEE
HRBZEFRZREEFNEXRSIE B
AEAHGEMBRERNBEZERASEEN
FR-REFREAESEREERGGY
BHREARERESHENERNERTE
TRE BEETEHZEFTREHERBN
ER-ESH TS —FEESELTEN
AIEH RO MU RE R -

EEERTABREERENERATH
BHRAENEF—HFENEE 81
HZEERAMNEE AL EFNE
ZEERTAREILNESMBREE
RERRARABMRFANEZEF -&F
BEZREFNER SREEETIEEMR
THER SEFTHEBEWHNGRSMBRE
ZERERREHER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RASREEIZEIE
Valuation of deferred tax assets

AR BEEEIGE

BRPHARERZFTENRES X

The Group recognised deferred tax assets amounting to
RMB43,660,000 as at 31 December 2020 for the carryforward
of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which unused tax losses
can be utilised. The forecasts of future taxable profits are complex
and require significant management estimates and judgements, in
particular on the assumptions about the expected future market
and economic conditions in the People's Republic of China (the
"PRC") which impact the future operating performance of those
entities that have carried forward unused tax losses. In view of the
significance of the amount and the level of judgement exercised by
management, we consider this as a key audit matter.
RZZ2_ZEH+_A=+—H> EEBTRAEANEERXR
RERMAERBID AT BARNBEBENDER > EBEH
KA BNIARIBRIELERIAS Z A K 143,660,0007T © K2k
FERRAENBAEEER FEEEBFHEXN G
Fl > CHEMPEARENE (TFFE)) NFERRRKRT IS
REHERNNEBRR AR EZSEEE RN BIRERE
ERNRREEXRF -ENAMSEKREEREFEFIEND
BEEEEERN EERIERA—BARERZEE-

The Company's disclosures for deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses are included in notes 3 and 18 to the financial statements.
B BABRREBENELERESENKESHNMBER
RMIEE3M 180

Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
evaluating management's assumptions and estimates,
such as the revenue growth rate adopted in their
forecast of future taxable profits. We assessed the
historical accuracy of management's assumptions
and the sensitivity analysis prepared by the Company.
We also assessed the disclosures in the financial
statements.
EENBEZEFOEBRRRTEEREME
YRR 5% B {5t > YN FEORI SR R FE SR A ER 4 B9
W B RR EFTEEERBBTFIERZDN
EHEMER BRIMBHOBKEDF -EF
TRsT B B B IR R AV IR B o

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED ERE¥XEEMAEMRAE 095



96

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIEMENEEE (B

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

MEELER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

YFE BE KR R E

REEREE (B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRPHARERERNEES A

The Group operates department stores in the PRC. Having
considered the loss-making performance of certain stores,
management performed annual impairment testing with respect
to the assets of those loss-making department stores with a total
carrying amount of RMB138,196,000 as at 31 December 2020 and
impairment amounting to RMB31,184,000 was provided in the
current year. The impairment testing requires management to make
assumptions to be used in the underlying cash flow forecasts. The
assumptions include expectations for gross margin and growth
rates, as well as the overall market and economic conditions in
the PRC. In view of the significance of the amount and the level
of judgement exercised by management, we consider this as a key
audit matter.
EERNTRECERSE - ZE8ETPHENGBBRE
EEEMZSEREAEENEEETEFERERNE N2
ETEF+A=+—H ZEEEENRERESAR
1%138,196,0007T » B2 E 5T 2R E 5 # A R 131,184,000
ToREBNREEEERMBAERRESRBMFHRR
ZEBRROEHENERRIBRE > WP EEELTHHEL
BRI TER - BN B RS AR EIEE P FH B2 E 4
EEXN EERILRA—IARMBREZSEE.

The Company's disclosure for impairment of property, plant
and equipment are included in notes 3 and 11 to the financial
statements.
B BSRAEYE -BERRFERENKESHNEHFRE
PiEE3FI11 0

Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
evaluating the Group's policies and procedures to
identify triggering events for potential impairment
of assets related to the underperforming stores and
management's assessment on impairment indicators.
We have also assessed the assumptions made by
management, evaluated the methodologies and
discount rate used by the Group with the assistance
of our internal valuation specialists, and compared the
key assumptions used in the impairment assessment
to the historical data of the Group and the external
data in the similar industry. We also focused on the
Company's disclosures about those assumptions to
which the outcome of the impairment test is most
sensitive, that is, those that have the most significant
effect on the determination of the recoverable amount
of property, plant and equipment.
EENEZEFEEEBARRE SE£EEHAUM
HoIEBMEBREFNENETEEREBESH
ZHRERRF  REEERBENRTENT
e BEF A EEERBMIFARRE  LEAEL
HEBENGE TTE SEEFMANATER
FIRE - W ERENERFEANRARERR
B SEEFECHEENBLITENINTBURE
TR -BEZENREHMAE ERAFHZFRR
PREIREE  ZERRIEHNBENREREH
RE > BN R EEY ¥ BB KRR B eI Bl 28
ZEREERTZENRR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BIURHMRSE (8)

REEREE (B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEERER

Impairment of goodwill

BERE

BRPHARERERNEES A

Under IFRSs, the Group is required to perform an impairment
assessment of goodwill at least annually. Management performed
annual impairment testing with respect to the goodwill with a
total carrying amount of RMB1,770,538,000 as at 31 December
2020. This area was important to our audit due to the significance
of the amount as well as the judgement involved in the
assessment. Management's assessment process is complex and
highly judgemental and is based on assumptions, in particular
those relating to gross margin and growth rates, as well as the
overall market and economic conditions. Given the sensitivity of
the assumptions and the level of judgement involved, we consider
this as a key audit matter.

RIFERMHBREER > BEESFEELRET—RE
ERETH - EEEMN _Z-EF+"A=+—HBKE
#RERA ANR1,770,538,000c N E B ETEERERIF - #
R AT RS 5T 5 R H i ZEB D EF T M
EEEZ -BEEENILBEREEM HIFLREAE
BEREREBREL LEHRAREMNXKIBERZNREU
FEER 5 RASTHER R - BN REZNVSRE R HE P R A
EE EERILEA —BRREZEE.

The Company's disclosures for impairment of goodwill are included
in notes 3 and 14(a) to the financial statements.

B SREMEREREE SN B REM EE3M14()

Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
assessing the assumptions made by management,
evaluating the methodologies and discount rate
used by the Group with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialists, and comparing the key
assumptions used in the impairment assessment to the
historical data of the Group and the external data in
the similar industry. We also focused on the Company's
disclosures about those assumptions to which the
outcome of the impairment test is most sensitive, that
is, those that have the most significant effect on the
determination of the recoverable amount of goodwill.
EENEREFEREERERESFEEEN
7 BB 14 18 B B AY 17 B T 5114 B & PR 1E RV 1R
&y BEBMABMAERITRE LRTRE
SHERFAEANERRRE SEEFELHE
MABLATERIN B BB ETEER - EF T 5!
Bt SREHZIRIAMERE ZZTRR
BFHRNBENREREHRE  HRNEED
ZRWCDEEZREEATZENRK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BURMMRSE (&)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BIZBETREE ()

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT fE[ERE

ZH ML B 2 AR & M B iR

B5E (&)

. HESERAFBECE S EENSE
EMFEHAR LREMENNSE
ZERE MEEAFEREAFNIE
MEBNERTHEENS  EMmA 8
BN SEENFEKEENE
FEARRE - HMESBRFEEKX
TEES AL EEZHBEERS
ETRFEAEIERSUHBRE
PRARKE REABNKESR
B RIREFTESHNRER -EFNE
wMOAOERBEEZHEMBKESZ AL
ES R 1Z/&EE o PAT » RERFE 3L
BREEER SEERERFEL
ES L

. LR EMBRENEBEIR &
BRAS (BEKRE) UKRGEEH
BRRESATRBERIZRE

o
c B EEERERIEHIBNHM

BEHNENTEBEENELERE
UEHGEEMBEREERER -5
FEEEEEZNTE -BERHA
T EERESHNEZERKES
WEE-

ESRENZETEBERETRNEX
WstElHERFEAUAREREZERS
HPEREESFEEZDH ) HAEREEERN
EfAIE RTAR o

EETHELZEERXENRH KAEF
ENEAERBIIMEAERERENR 14
REBBIEGERI /G EETFEY
MHFFARGRREMEEUREERNE
R A HERE B MR EXAY 1T BN 5B 82 48
Jif ©



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Melody Lam Siu Wah.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 February 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
EEHRmR

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZT_TF+_F=+—HILFE

2020 2019
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
s AR¥TT AREFIT
REVENUES &= 4 4,009,881 4,568,503
Other operating revenues H & & I 4 418,468 457,515
Total operating revenues RS I TR AR EE 4,428,349 5,026,018
OPERATING EXPENSES RER%
Purchases of goods and changes in inventories ~ REEY MEEEH) (2:214,507) (2,270,490)
Staff costs BT (547,168) (666,641)
Depreciation and amortisation T EE e 1 5 (690,353) (696,674)
Rental expenses HEMA% 13,917 (113,933)
Other operating expenses Hm&K S (641,279) (803,796)
Total operating expenses SR 4R EE (4,079,390) (4,551,534)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS KEFHE 348,959 474,484
Finance income RRE WA 6 99,922 75,411
Finance costs =9 %N 6 (569,909) (662,878)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAL A M E518 -
Joint ventures e 15 2,027 13,594
Associates & NE 16 1,299 7,074
Gains on disposal of property, plant and H:'n%%% F“%Ez
equipment, net REHIPIS  HEE - 43,703
LOSS BEFORE TAX MAIEs8 5 (117,702) (48,612)
Income tax expense FrigMiFsz 9 (119,218) (155,068)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBE (236,920) (203,680)
Attributable to: UTIEBES :
Owners of the parent ISYNCIIZIE =N (250,114) (222,751)
Non-controlling interests JEFERRRE 13,194 19,071
(236,920) (203,680)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BRAFREERES
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT FriBE AFEMLEAEEIE 10
Basic BN (RMB0.095) (RMB0.085)
(AE¥0.0957T)  (AE™0.08570)
Diluted 58 (RMB0.095) (RMB0.085)
(AR¥o0.0957t)  (AR#0.0857)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SFOREIER

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_TF+_B=+—HILEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—hF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRT AREBTRE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEFHE (236,920) (203,680)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hth2mEUA
Other comprehensive income that TE LB HARE AT A

may be reclassified to profit or loss in BENHBEEERN

subsequent periods: Hh2mEmEA :
Exchange differences on translation of MBE BN EBREE Y

foreign operations ERERE 86,489 (61,526)
Other comprehensive income that will not be TUEBAEETE

reclassified to profit or loss in BENEEEENEM

subsequent periods: 2HEEA :
Exchange differences on translation of MBS ARRELEZ

the parent EREHE 64,602 (9,828)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEREHEMEZEHRA

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 151,091 (71,354)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEZEBARE

FOR THE YEAR (85,829) (275,034)
Attributable to: MFIEE ML -

Owners of the parent BASRAEA (99,023) (294,105)

Non-controlling interests JEFERGRE 13,194 19,071

(85,829) (275,034)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
EaREIRE

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

2020 2019
—E_THF S — L
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥EFT AE®BFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE 1 3,287,490 3,449,090
Investment properties KEYE 12 420,428 303,292
Right-of-use assets EREEE 13(a) 3,815,672 3,629,374
Goodwill EES 14(a) 1,770,538 1,770,538
Other intangible assets HihmEE 14(b) 14,450 21,515
Investments in joint ventures REErENKE 15 19,748 26,934
Investments in associates REE AN E 16 42,938 41,769
Trade receivables FEW & 5 78 20 97,184 78,482
Time deposits EER 24 729,880 787,899
Other assets Hth&EE 17 648,027 433,331
Deferred tax assets IR IBE 18 265,764 227,586
Total non-current assets ERBEELEZE 11,112,119 10,769,810
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories =78 19 425,055 384,041
Trade receivables &I B 5 I8 20 263,475 265,536
Prepayments and other receivables TR ®RIE K H At
i E O] 21 766,340 420,812
Financial assets at fair value through BARNBERE
profit or loss BHEZ#FHFABRZ
THEE 22 242,472 250,761
Investments in principal guaranteed deposits REGERKE 23 15,600 250,050
Time deposits EHIFR 24 104,846 939,482
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIBEEZEEY 24 1,499,324 2,265,508
Total current assets TRENE EAREE 3,317,112 4,776,190
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade payables FEfS B 5 R IE 25 (979,721) (1,136,563)
Other payables and accruals H A& 7R IE K FE 5t
IHH 26 (598,919) (637,769)
Contract liabilities BREE 27 (629,237) (685,792)
Interest-bearing bank loans TEIRITEM 28 (1,134,253) (1,011,588)
Lease liabilities HEAER 13(b) (556,092) (474,677)
Tax payable FEHIRIE (58,940) (60,654)
Total current liabilities MBI EEAEER (3,957,162) (4,007,043)
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) MBEE/ (8% BE (640,050) 769,147
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
SFEMBRAR (8

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

2020 2019
“BIRF  TNF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTRE

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES MEERTETERE 10,472,069 11,538,957
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Interest-bearing bank loans sTEIRITEM 28 (1,816,306) (3,013,883)
Lease liabilities HEaE 13(b) (4,151,702) (3,865,554)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEaE 18 (303,051) (313,187)
Total non-current liabilities FERBEELELE (6,271,059) (7,192,624)
Net assets EEFE 4,201,010 4,346,333
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the parent FABIMAB AEEER
Issued capital BEETRA 29 55,477 55,477
Reserves H 30 4,067,223 4,175,184
4,122,700 4,230,661

Non-controlling interests JEPERG == 78,310 115,672
Total equity K 4,201,010 4,346,333

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem Juliana Cheng San San

Director Director

BB EESR 55 Hit i

BE BFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeEEEmR

Year ended 31 December 2020 E(ZE

TEIERES A=+ HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATRB AL
PRC Asset Non-

Issued reserve Exchange revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital funds reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity

BEEfh
BERks  TEAEE ERGE 1 RERF &t EEkER agm
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTRE ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR  ARETR

(note 29)  (note 30 (a) (note 30 (b))

(Mizk29) (W30 (a) (HzE30 (v)
At 1 January 2020 KZEZ5%-F-H 55477 288,685 (505,969)" 291412°  4141056" 4,230,661 115,672 4,346,333
Profit{loss) for the year EEFIE/ (BB - - - - (250,114) (250,114) 13,194 (236,920)

Other comprehensive income for the year: EEEMRERA

Exchange differences related to foreign operations BB EBRELNERER - - 151,091 - - 151,091 - 151,091
Total comprehensive income for the year EE2ANALE - - 151,091 - (250,114) (99,023) 13,194 (85,829)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests ISR R (13E34(all)

(note 34(a)(i) - - - - (8.938) (8.938) (33,345) (42,283)
Transfer to the PRC reserve funds BRTHELNES - 2,934 - - (2,934) - - -
Dividends paid to non-controling shareholders BERRRERS - - - - - - (17211) (17.211)
At 31 December 2020 RZ$-FF+ZB=+-H 55477 WIHI9T (34878 251412 38T900° 4122700 78310 420100
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
SamEHR (R

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_TF+_B=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAGMAAERE
PRC Asset Non-
Issued reserve Exchange revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital funds reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity
BEEfh
BERS  TEAEE ERGE 1 RERF &t ke agn
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR
(note 29)  (note 30 (a)) (note 30 (b))
(Mizk29) (k30 (a) (HzE30 (v)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-h&E-B-H 55477 285,769 (434,615) 251,412 4,366,723 4,524,766 14911 4,639,677
Profit{loss) for the year EEFIE/ (BB - - - - (222,751) (222,751) 19071 (203,680)
Other comprehensive income for the year: EEEMRERA
Exchange differences related to foreign operations R EBRELNERER - - (71,354) - - (71,354) - (11,354)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2AMALE - - (71,354) - (222,751) (294,105) 19,071 (275,034)
Transfer to the PRC reserve funds BRETENES - 2,916 - - (2916) - - -
Dividends paid to non-controling shareholders EffFERRERE - - - - - - (18,310) (18,310)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE+ZR=+-H 55477 288,685 (505,969) 251,412 4,141,056 4,230,661 115,672 4,346,333
* As at 31 December 2020, these reserve accounts comprise the consolidated ~ * KRB _EBF+_B=+—H > Z%H#
reserves of RMB4,067,223,000 (31 December 2019: RMB4,175,184,000) in BREARGETBERREZTANEGS
the consolidated statement of financial position. AR #4,067,223,0007C (ZE—H &
+-B=+—H: AK#4,175,184,000
7o) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
SFEBERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZT_TF+_F=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—EEHF —Z2—NEF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B = AR¥FT AE®BFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESEHESEN
RERE
Loss before tax A (117,702) (48,612)
Adjustments for: MU T BIBEEHRE .
Share of profits of joint ventures and associates ~ FEfh & & P E K
= l/NST RN (3.326) (20,668)
Finance income RRE U A 6 (99,922) (75,411)
Finance costs =90 6 569,909 662,878
Depreciation and amortisation 7 EE e 4 £ 5 690,353 696,674
Losses/(gains) on disposal of items of property, HEYZE B R
plant and equipment, net EHEE
(PR12) » %8 5 5,341 (43,703)
Impairment of inventories EERE 19 2,846 198
Impairment of trade receivables FEW B Z R IE R & 5 9,299 14,871
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FE(I FRIE e H At fE
prepayments and other receivables WERIERE
CRLE#[a) 5 20,816 (43)
Impairment of intangible assets mLEERIE 5 1,652 -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME--BER
1B RE 5 31,184 -
COVID-19-related rent concessions from lessors 2R B HFH A B9
COVID-19
AR T R % (88,429) -
Sublease gains recognised in other income REAR AR
EIBEME (25,144) -
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss EER (Fr18) E18 (1,956) 24,295
994,921 1,210,479
Increase in other assets Hn&E EE (87.044) (70,607)
Increase in inventories F BN (43,860) (34,156)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEW & 5 #hia
(g R (52,418) 22,890
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and TET R I8 K H fth FE UK
other receivables IE dgm) R (36,153) 32,495
Decrease in trade payables FEAS & 5 I8 (156,842) (218,203)
Decrease in other payables and accruals H R IE &
FESTIEE R (72.197) (34,049)
Decrease in contract liabilities sHasEE L (56,555) (96,597)
Decrease in long term payables £ HAFE I R IE R D - (57,323)
Cash generated from operations KEEFEENRE 489,852 754,929
Income tax paid BRI (125,031) (153,028)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHEEN
HEMEFEE 364,821 601,901
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

mFalEHER (F)

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_TF+_B=+—HILEE

2020
—E_S4g

—_—<—=F

RMB'000
ARBFT

2019
“E-NEF

RMB'000
ARBT T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REESHEEMN
HERE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME -BEKR
plant and equipment REMSNIE 557 89,695
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYME -BER
equipment and investment property REREEYE (160,765) (131,504)
Dividends received B S 9,343 15,274
Interest received BUH R 76,941 81,725
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BARBESEER
through profit or loss HEEt ABH
TRYE AR 8,289 293,832
Decrease in investments in principal RAEEREE R/
guaranteed deposits 234,450 414,730
Decrease in time deposits with BARRBEIAE
original maturity of more than 838 =188 1 E HA
three months when acquired FROR D 892,655 389,624
Income tax paid on investing activities MEEEFENMZ
P8 (44,215) (12,645)
Proceeds from subleases EBHEMSMIA 62,212 62,833
Loan to a joint venture E—XaE b
RENER (450,000) -
Net cash flows from investing activities KREFHEEN
REMEFER 629,467 1,203,564
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ REFBIEEMN
HERE
Increase in an amount due to the ultimate FE RARZERAE]
holding company FRIEIE N - 4,886
Net proceeds from bank loans IRITERFAEMIBEFEE 248,279 3,465,426
Repayment of bank loans EBERIBITEM (1,153,842) (3,566,172)
Interest paid [SENEURS (142,324) (227,616)
Payment of lease liabilities HEEENMR (651,759) (730,556)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests We BB IR Rt = (42,283) -
Distribution to non-controlling shareholders DIRTIEERR AR R (17.21m) (18,310)
Net cash flows used in financing activities RMEEEPTAN
REREFER (1,759,140) (1,072,342)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
maRERER (F)

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZT_TF+_F=+—HILEFE

2020 2019
—E_EHF —E—-NEF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B s AREFT AR¥EFIT
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRAEEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS GREZL) 181075 %8 (764,852) 733,123
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~EHINREE K&
BEEEBY 2,265,508 1,544,354
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEFH s 8 P (1,332) (11,969)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNIRER
END OF YEAR REEEY 1,499,324 2,265,508
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS EEROR
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITAE R 24 1,222,247 788,901
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity B& A FRF/RA ZIHE H
of less than three months when acquired AE=EAN
IR EHTER 277,077 1,476,607
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the RERERMT
statement of cash flows RERIREEEY 24 1,499,324 2,265,508
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAE5ER R MIGE

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Parkson Retail Group Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 August 2005. The
Company has established a principal place of business in Hong
Kong in Room 1010, 10th floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the operation and
management of a network of department stores mainly in the
People's Republic of China (the "PRC"), and engaged in credit
services in Malaysia.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Parkson Holdings
Berhad ("PHB"), which is incorporated in Malaysia and listed on
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:
Place of

incorporation/
registration

and business Paid-up
Name ML/ capital
AR R R AT E R BRRAE
Changzhou Lion Food and Beverage The PRC RMB25,000,000
Co, Ltd. ™ FE A #25,000,0007T
ENEEESERAR
Guizhou Tongren Parkson Retail Co., Ltd." The PRC RMB 10,000,000
BN EREERRAR e A K #10,000,0007T
Jiangxi Parkson Shopping Centre The PRC RMB30,000,000
Management Co., Ltd.* ] A E #30,000,0007T
IEERENFOERERAR
Suzhou Parkson Changfa Commercial The PRC RMB50,000,000
Management Co., Ltd. **** ] AR #50,000,0007C
BEMNERREBELERARAT
Wuzhou Fashion Parkson Business Management ~ The PRC RMB30,000,000
Co, Ltd. H A #30,000,0007T

ENEHEREREEERAT

REKREEEH

BEEBEEEERAIN_ZTZTH
FNB=-HEREESHEMMILS
BIRAB -ARBNEENETEE
MBS BEBEFESLITEINRE

BAE10121010FE

FERB XEBXTE2EREAR

AR (THEL)

KErhEEREE

MEE > RN ERADREEER

F5 o

EERR AR ERRB RE
48 Y2 RGN B ZParkson Holdings Berhad
(TPHBY) » A— RN ER AR
I ABE WRERARESFR

ZFRET

AR B AT AR
TABMBATRFBLT

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

KA
BEFST
Direct Indirect
E# EiEE
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Principal activities

TEEH

Food and beverage
management services

EREERE

Operation of department
stores
KeRsE

Property management

NEEE

Operation of department
stores
)

Operation of department
stores
KEREE

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBE¥EEBIRARF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

il CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1l

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

AR REBEH (&)
BERMBARNER (&)
AR BABFBWMT © (&)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
EAF LG
REBSL

Paid-up

Indirect

Name B capital Direct

R

BRRE

Ei%

ik

Principal activities

TEEH

Jiaxing Lion Retail Management Co., Ltd. *** The PRC USD51,500,000 - 100 Investment holding
FESHBLEEERAT HE 51,500,000 7% REER
Shanghai Shengda Retail Management The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co, Ltd. ™ i AR #1,0000007T REER
FERREEEERRAR
Shanghai Shengrui Retail Management The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Co, Ltd. *** w A B #100,000,0007 BREER
FEREREEERRAR
Qingdao Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co,, Ltd. *** F A #20,000,0007T stores
FEEREEERAR REFERE
Shanghai Lion Food € Beverage The PRC RMB4,000,000 - 91 Food and beverage
Management Co., Ltd. **** ] A #4,000,0007T management services
LERNEERERERAR BENEERE
Shanghai Lion Parkson Management The PRC RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Consultant Co., Ltd, *** I A E#10,000,0007C and management
RERREEEEAERAR services
REAAREERE
Shanghai Shihong Supermarket Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of gourmet
FEEEEmARAR i A #10,000,0007T supermarkets
mEBERh
Shanghai Delight Food € Beverage The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Food and beverage
Management Co,, Ltd."** & A E#1,000,0007T operation
FRBRERERERAR - E 23 S
Chenzhou Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB4,990,000 - 100 Operation of department
Development Co., Ltd.*** ] AR #£4,990,0007C stores

WNEEEEBEERERAH KeRaE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

AR REBEH (&)
BERMBARNER (&)
AR BABFBWMT © (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Name

PR

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Paid-up
capital

BRRE

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

NG
BEFST
Direct

Ei%

Indirect

%

Principal activities

TEEH

Hunan Changsha Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 QOperation of department
Development Co., Ltd. **** ] A #10,000,00075 stores
MERIHHEREEERERAT REFERE
Shanghai Delight Food Co., Ltd.*** The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Food operation
LEBIRERERAT HE AR #5,000,0007T LEem
Shanghai Lion Cosmetics Co., Ltd.* The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Wholesale and retail of
LFERELURABRETAR H A #1,000,0007T cosmetics and related
products
1588 m B AR E it 2
REE
Shanghai Parkson Food & Beverage Manage The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Food and beverage
ment Co,, Ltd.* & A B #1,000,0007T management services
LRERRERERERAR BENEERY
Kunming Hogan Food & Beverage The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Food and beverage
Management Co,, Ltd. **** ] AR #1,000,0007C operation
RARSHENEEERAR &R
Qingdao Parkson Beer City Property The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property management
Management Co., Ltd.**** H A #10,000,0007T MEEE
EEERBBRNEEERRAR
Liupanshui Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB 15,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
ENABKEREEERERAR HE AR #15,000,0007 stores
LEREE
Jinan Lion Consultant Management The PRC 1S$5,000,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Co., Ltd. & 5,000,000 7T and management
ERRNEEAEEERAR services
REBAREERE
Tianjin Parkson Shopping Mall Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB500,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
("Tianjin Parkson")** & A B #500,000,0007T stores and property

RRBRBEXESERAT (REEE)

management

KEREERYZEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

il CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1l

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

AR REBEH (&)
BERMBARNER (&)
AR BABFBWMT © (&)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

114

Name

R

Place of

incorporation/

registration
Paid-up
capital

BRRE

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

FATFIREM
BEFSLT
Direct

Ei%

Indirect

ik

Principal activities

TEEH

Shanxi Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 QOperation of department
LEEREEERERAT HE R #50,000,00075 stores
REFERE
Qingdao No.1 Parkson Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB233,340,000 - 95.91 Operation of department
EEE—BRARAH HE AR #233,340,0007T stores
LEREE

Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co., Ltd. ** & A E #40,000,0007T stores

ERERENERERAT REFERE

Dalian Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 QOperation of department
Co., Ltd. ** ] AR #40,000,0007C stores

AERHOEBEEERARAT REFERE

Panzhihua Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co, Ltd. ™ H AR 20,000,0007T stores

BRIEEREERRAR LEREE

Qingdao Lion Plaza Retail Management The PRC RMB500,000,000 - 100 Property management
Co, Ltd. (“Qingdao Lion Plaza")*** e A E #500,000,0007T MEEE

FEEHEGHEERARAR
(TEELHESR)

Qingdao Parkson Shopping Plaza The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co, Ltd. ™ H AR 30,000,0007T stores

EERREMESRERAR LEREE

Shanghai Shijie Fashions Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Sale of apparel

LERERESRAT HE A #10,000,00075 HEMRSE

Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial The PRC RMB28,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co, Ltd.* F AR 128,000,0007T stores

BERBOREZRERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Name

PR

Shaoxing Shishang Parkson Retail
Development Co,, Ltd. ***

RERHEREEERERAT

Shantou Parkson Commercial Co,, Ltd. *

LETEREEERAT

Kunshan Parkson Retail Development
Co,, Ltd. ™
ELRHEREEBRAT
Zigong Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. ***
HERRBEERAT

Changzhou Shifeng Retail Development
Co., Ltd. ™
ENBEBEERERAT

Changshu Parkson Retail Development
Co,, Ltd. =
PRERBEEEERAT

Guizhou Zunyi Parkson Retail
Development Co., Ltd. ***

ENBEERBEERERAT

Lanzhou Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. *

BN B EBEARAR

Changzhou Lion Food and Beverage
Co, Ltd. =
ENEEESRAERAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business Paid-up
ML capital

BERT
The PRC RMB20,000,000
H AR 120,000,0007T
The PRC RMB8,000,000
H A #8,000,0007T
The PRC RMB40,000,000
H B #40,000,0007T
The PRC RMB10,000,000
H AR 110,000,0007T
The PRC RMB25,000,000
H AR #25,000,0007T
The PRC RMB15,000,000
H B #15,000,0007%
The PRC RMB12,500,000
H AR #12,500,0007T
The PRC RMB20,000,000
H AR #20,000,0007T
The PRC RMB25,000,000
H B #25,000,0007T
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1. QAFRREREH (@)
BERMBARNER (&)
AR BABFBWMT © (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
EAF LG
REBSL
Direct Indirect

Ei% %

Principal activities

TEEH

Operation of department
stores
PN

Operation of department
stores
KeRaE

Operation of department
stores

KeRaE

Operation of department
stores
PN

Sale of apparel
HERE

Operation of department
stores

KeRaE

Operation of department
stores
PN

Operation of department
stores
KeRaE

Food and beverage
management services

BEREERE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

il CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1l

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

AR REBEH (&)
BERMBARNER (&)
AR BABFBWMT © (&)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

116

Name

R

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Paid-up
capital

BRRE

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

FATFIREM
BEFSLT
Direct

Ei%

Indirect

ik

Principal activities

TEEH

Anshan Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 QOperation of department
BUBEHEERERAA HE A #10,000,0007T stores
REFERE
Zhangjiakou Parkson Shopping Mall The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co, Ltd. ™ H AR 30,000,0007T stores
RROABRENERERAR LEREE
Sichuan Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Development Co., Ltd. * ] A E #30,000,0007T stores
T e R EEERERAT REFERE
Hefei Parkson Xiaoyao Plaza Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100 QOperation of department
SRERBEESRERAR H A EE #8,000,0007T stores
REFERE
Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping Centre The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co, Ltd. ™ H AE#10,000,0007T stores
BULKEBEEMRLERAT LEREE
Guizhou Shengi Parkson Retail Development Co., The PRC RMB17,000,000 - 60  Operation of department
Ltd. = F AR #17,000,0007T stores
EMRTEREEZRARAT REFERE
Parkson Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. * The PRC US$30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
SHRREEERAH HE 30,000,000 7T REER
Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. The PRC US$16,680,000 - 100 QOperation of department
("Beijing Parkson')* ] 16,680,000 7T stores
ERBEERARAA (EREH) REFERE
Kunming Yun Shun He Retail Development The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co, Ltd. * H AR 30,000,0007T stores

ERZIENRXERARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

AR REBEH (&)
BERMBARNER (&)
AR BABFBWMT © (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Name

PR

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Paid-up
capital

BRRE

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

NG
BEFST
Direct

Ei%

Indirect

%

Principal activities

TEEH

Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co,, Ltd. * The PRC RMB8,500,000 - 100 QOperation of department
IAARPLURAEEERAR HE A E 18 500,0007T stores
REFERE
Anshan Lung Shing Property Services The PRC US$1,050,000 - 100 Property management
Co., Ltd* H 1,050,000% 7T MEER
BUEBRMEREERAR
Xi'an Chang'an Parkson Store Co,, Ltd. *** The PRC RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
BZRZBRAEERAT HE AR #10,000,0007T stores
REFERE
Xi'an Shidai Parkson Store Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB15,000,000 - 100 QOperation of department
BZEABRBERERAR HE A #15,000,00075 stores
REFERE
Shanghai Xinzhuang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Development Co,, Ltd. * & A E #20,000,00075 stores
FEEHAREEZRBRAR LEREE
Shanghai Lion Parkson Investment The PRC US$500,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Consultant Co., Ltd. * ] 500,000% 7T and management
LERERESEHAERAR services
REBAREERE
Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. ** The PRC S$12,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
LENEREESERAR e 12,000,000 7% stores
LEREE
Shanghai Honggiao Parkson Development The PRC RMB16,800,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co., Ltd. * & A E #16,800,0007T stores
FRIEEREEERAR REFERE
Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB80,000,000 - 60 QOperation of department
BH=FRRESERAR HE A #80,000,00075 stores
REFERE
Xi‘an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB32,500,000 - 100 Operation of department
BRI EARERERAR HE A B 1£32,500,0007T stores

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBE¥EEBIRARF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. RARAKREERER (@)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BRMBARNEN (&)
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) KRB ABINFERUT | (B)

Place of Percentage of equity

incorporation/ attributable to the Company

registration FATFIREM

and business Paid-up RET DL
Name ML capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
SRR SR AR St B BRRE B B FEXEH
Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
EEBRARRESERAT HE AR 135,000,0007T stores

NS
Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. ** The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
REERARERERAD HE A #30,000,0007T stores
KEBEE

Hanmen Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BEEBERAA i BT BREER
Victory Hope Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
FEBERAT i BT BREER
Great Dignity Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
REERERRA i 28T BREER
Sea Coral Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BRERRAF i BT BREER
Wide Field International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
BEERERAR i 28T BREER
Parkson Food & Beverage Ventures Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 91 Investment holding

B BT BREER
Exonbury Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
HEENBRAR i 28T BREER
Step Summit Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
EBERRT i BT BREER
Hong Kong Fen Chai Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BEEERREERAT i BT BREER
Shunhe International Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
JERERKEEERAT i 10,0007 7T BREER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

AR REBEH (&)
BERMBARNER (&)
AR BABFBWMT © (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Name

PR

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
MM,
SR AR St B

Paid-up
capital

BRRE

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

NG
BEFST
Direct

Ei%

Indirect

%

Principal activities

TEEH

Creation (Hong Kong) Investment & Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Limited B 10,00087T REER
BIE (B8 REXRARRA
Capital Park (HK) Investment & Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Development Limited A 87T BEER
I (B8 REEXRERRA
Malverest (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
& (&%) BRAF i BT BEER
Oroleon (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
i BT BEER
Releomont (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
FEE (58) BRAD i BT BEER
Leonemas (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
R (B#8) BRAS i BT BEER
Huge Return Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
HBLERERRAR i BT BEER
Parkson Lao Sole Co., Ltd. Laos [AK20,000,000,000 - 100 Wholesale and retail trade
ZH £20,000,000,0007% HEMBE
Parkson Business Commerce Sole Co., Ltd. Laos [AK20,000,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
£ £20,000,000,0007T stores
KerarE
Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. ("Parkson Credit") Malaysia RM30,000,000 = 100 Provision of money lending
ERAET 25 4$30,000,0007T and credit services
REBEREERS
Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 - 100 Operating as a licensor for
ERFAER MER1007T the brand of "Franco”
1EA T Franco | IEHI

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEBE¥EEBIRARF

119



120

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR RME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

il CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Name

R

Parkson Retail Laos Holdings Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Investment Pte Ltd.

Rosenblum Investments Pte Ltd.

Parkson Supplies Pte Ltd.

Parkson Venture Pte Ltd.

Releomont International Limited

Leonemas International Limited

Favor Move International Limited

HEERARAR

Jet East Investments Limited

ERRAERAF

Bond Glory Limited
EHMERAT

Choice Link Limited
BRERAT

Wide Crest Limited
BEEERAT

Victor Crest Limited
RIEBRAT

2020 ANNUAL REPORT $E#RE

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
AL,

ot i R AR 2

Malaysia
ERAET

Singapore

N

Singapore

N

Singapore

N

Singapore

N

British Virgin Islands
HERUHEE

British Virgin Islands
HERUHEE

British Virgin Islands
HERUHE

British Virgin Islands
HERUHE

British Virgin Islands
HERUHE

British Virgin Islands
HERUHEE

British Virgin Islands
HERUHEE

British Virgin Islands
HERUHEE

Paid-up
capital

BRRE

RM1
HERITT

$$10,000,000
10,000,000%7 3% 7T

S$2
pLiid)Ibo

$$100
100HT 03K 75

$$14,800,000
14,800,000 13K 75

Uss$2
2ETT

Uss$2
2ETT

US$1
(ES

US$1
(ES

US$1
(ES

US$1
(ES

US$1
(ES

US$1
(ES

1l

AR REBEH (&)
BERMBARNER (&)

AABMBASNFHBMT © (4

Percentage of equity

FATFIREM
BEFSLT
Direct

Ei%

attributable to the Company

Indirect

ik

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

TEEH

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

il CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1l

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

AR REBEH (&)
BERMBARNER (&)
AR BABFBWMT © (&)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Name

PR

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Paid-up
capital

BRRE

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
EAF LG
REBSL
Direct Indirect

Ei% %

Principal activities

TEEH

Lion Food & Beverage Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands RMB4,000,000 = 91 Investment holding
HERUHE B #4,000,0007C REER
Grand Parkson Retail Group Limited British Virgin Islands HK$0.5 100 - Investment holding
BEBXEERAE HERUHE 0587 REER
Global Heights Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
FREREFRRAE HERUHE E REER
Asia Advancement International Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
BEERERAH HERUHE 50,0005 7T REER
Creation International Investment & Development British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited HBRLHE 50,000% 7% REZR
AEERREERERAT
Golden Village Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
EHEEBRAA HERLES 50,0005 7T REER
Lung Shing International Investments & British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Limited et 50,000 7T BEER
ERERREERERAT
Capital Park Development Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 - 100 Investment holding
HEEYHS 2ETT BREER
Malverest Trading International Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100 Investment holding
HEEYHS 2ETT BREER
Oroleon International Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100 Investment holding
HEEYHS 2ETT BREER
Duo Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
EEEYHS (ESH BREER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law

*¥

registered as a Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture enterprise
under PRC law

registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise under
PRC law

FARK

registered as a limited liability company under PRC law

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the "IASB") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial instruments which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Going concern basis

The Group reported net current liabilities of RMB640,050,000 as
at 31 December 2020. The unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB1,499,324,000 as at 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2020, the Group's capital commitment in respect of the
capital expenditure for its construction in progress to be incurred
in the coming twelve months was RMB143,642,000. The Group
incurred a net loss of RMB236,920,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020. These circumstances may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1

Going concern basis (continued)

RAMNEE (B
FHERERE (B

Management has prepared a cash flow forecast of the Group for
the next twelve months based on the existing situation, the future
events and commitments of the Group. Management considered
that the Group will have adequate working capital to meet its
obligations, and therefore the financial statements of the Group
have been prepared on a going concern basis. Measures and
estimations have been taken into consideration by management,
including and not limited to:

(a)

The Group's syndicated loans of RMB2,746,981,000 are
secured by mortgages over the Group's properties with a
total carrying amount of RMB2,967,255,000 and pledged
deposits with a carrying amount of RMB700,314,000.
After considered the fair value of these pledged assets,
management believes that the pledged assets are sufficient
to cover the outstanding balance of the loans in full.

The Group has been actively negotiating with banks and
financial institutions to obtain additional loans to replace
the existing RMB2,746,981,000 secured syndicated bank
loans and to supplement its operating cash flows. Based
on the communication between the Group and the banks,
among others, up to the date of approval of the financial
statements, the Group expects to obtain additional
loans amounting to approximately RMB3,000,000,000.
Nevertheless, the confirmation of the loans is subject to the
final contract between the Group and the banks.

The Group has been actively negotiating long term leases
with potential lessees for one of its investment properties
located in Beijing Financial Street, which has been in the
process of asset enhancement since the end of 2019. This
enhancement is expected to finish, and the property will
be ready for rental in the middle of 2021. In the opinion of
management, the potential rental income would contribute
to the Group's operating cash flows in the coming twelve
months.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Going concern basis (continued)

(d) The Group continues to focus on the improvement of
its retail business operation, including opening new
department stores with competitive advantages, closing
those non-performing department stores, placing more
focus on the fashion and beauty division and improving its
“online + offline" sales model. In addition, considering the
expected recovery of economy of China from COVID-19, the
business operation of the Group is expected to be recovered.

Should the Group fail to realise its plans to improve its financial
position, adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation
that assets may need to be realised at amounts other than those
currently recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020. In addition, the Group may have
to provide for further liabilities that might arise. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2020.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR RME (48)

31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 2.2

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSs for the first time
for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material
and IAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are described below:

(a) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
"Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework
did not have any significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT fE[ERE

B BRRIREZEE

AEECRAFENMBRERER
RE-E-NFHEREZHSHE

LUK P EESTBIR R B R 5 %

U

I PR B 5 e 5 22 B EBNTE

53%% (BFT )
B PR A 3 3R 5 22 ) FIFERENE
H95% BR g st &R

395 K B PR 75

REERH75%

(CHEN
RISk S 28 COVID- 1976 R0 % 61
$165% (BT x) 2 (EEZHFD)
BB G ERE 1SRN EAMNTE

PR & 5t 2ER Fe5t
(CHEN]

%%ETIB%EZL?’KW%/—%EU E’] |“$f'f$l]
FEWT

(a) —\FHBEREZHS
if/—rr (ML HEZR)) 85 AR
MBREREATENEE
B BiRis 5| UM R
RFEHEGTIE -G
R WIRMHIRE T &7 LIER
EZ:@%%/EE'J BSEREES
RSt E R G M BRI
SH -ARICHEREERE
BENMIESIUREERERE
BB E & M FESOARZE « TR
BEBRE BEKTENHETE
MR HAFBRE Z A - BESHIE
R IFAH—IEER] BHEFE
SRS B ZE A E E'J
RS SR E o BERIER T
E‘Jﬁ%lﬁ’]ﬁﬁ?{ﬂkﬂ&%fﬁ
EFERERTE-



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 2.2
(continued)

EEHRRKEZEE (8

(b)

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continuing to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs
and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group, as the Group did not have any business combination
transaction in 2020.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

M RME (48

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

(continued)

() Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with
an alternative risk-free rate ("RFR"). The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting
to continue during the period of uncertainty before
the introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

(d) Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only
to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments
results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration
for the lease immediately preceding the change; (ii)
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is
no substantive change to other terms and conditions of
the lease. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application

permitted and shall be applied retrospectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 2.2
(continued)

EEHRRKEZEE (8

(d)

(e)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly
lease payments for the leases of the Group's office buildings
and retail stores have been reduced or waived by the lessors
as a result of the pandemic and there are no other changes
to the terms of the leases. The Group has early adopted the
amendment on 1 January 2020 and elected not to apply
lease modification accounting for all rent concessions
granted by the lessors as a result of the pandemic during
the year ended 31 December 2020. Accordingly, a reduction
in the lease payments arising from the rent concessions of
RMB88,429,000 has been accounted for as a variable lease
payment by derecognising part of the lease liabilities and
crediting to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information
is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information, or both. The amendments did not
have any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
which are applicable to the Group's operation and that have been
issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3
Amendments to IFRS 9,

IAS 39, IFRS 7,
[FRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to |AS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current’*®

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
[llustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 412

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

s As a consequence of the amendments to IAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align
the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC-Int 21
if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or
IFRIC-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on
the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 address
issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide
a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount when accounting
for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the new
basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as
a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement
is met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements to
understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity's financial instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are
not required to restate the comparative information.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and foreign currencies based
on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate ("HLIBOR"), the Kuala
Lumpur Interbank Offered Rate (“KLIBOR") and Loan Prime Rate
announced by national interbank funding center(“"LPR") as at
31 December 2020. If the interest rates of these borrowings are
replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply this
practical expedient upon the modification of these borrowings
when the "economically equivalent” criterion is met and expects
that no significant modification gain or loss will arise as a result of
applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate
or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10
and |IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
The amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify that
if an entity's right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period
if it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises
the proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost of those
items, in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity
first applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract as well as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable
to the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS
41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

° IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other's behalf. An entity applies
the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

° IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative
Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying IFRS 16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is
included as part of the Group's investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
the statement of profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment,
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or group of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its wealth management products at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the

fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3- based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/famortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's

family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful
lives for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 35 - 45 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Equipment and fixtures 5 - 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements,
buildings and storage facilities under construction or renovation
works in progress which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment or investment properties when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the
expected useful life.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement of disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for intangible assets with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The principal
estimated useful lives for this purpose are as follows:

Computer software 5 years
Licence 10 - 14 years
Franchise agreement 10 years
Trademark 10 years
Customer relationship 5 years

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 42 - 45 years
Property 2 - 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Leasehold land

Leasehold land represents land use rights paid to the
PRC government authorities. Land use rights are carried
at cost and are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the respective periods of the rights ranging
from 42 to 45 years. When the leasehold land cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,
the entire leasehold land are included in the cost of the
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED EHREE%&EEERAR 147

MEERME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

24 FEZHHBEHME (@)

HE (&

FEEFSEABA ()

@) EREEE
EREEENEER®K A
(BMERMEERMERZH
Hi) sl - R BEERAAE
L AE 7] 2R 5T B R AR AR (E
BEStE UREHMFEMR
EaRFHAR - ERREE
NRABEEEINEES
B BEENTRERMN
A DRI RE B HAS 2 AT 1E
AR & I TR B WERY 1E
HHEER -EREEERE
BOEN R B EGE R E
RER UBREESE) AT

BOR
FEE L 4T AR
LY/ES 2FE 05

HEEEENEA RRER
TAEREE T AER S A
RERFEERETE RIERE
ENGE R ERERH BN

.
Bo

HELH

A& 1 #3150 A [ BT i R
S2 AR 3 6 PR A o 3 (E
RS A AR ABR » WA 7 RAREF
NFNREASFENPABEANZE
BERIBm AR REEL
WARBEELIMRIEFERZ
Br DB BI22HEE L
HMAREIEAYE BB RRE
HMEREET R T RIEF
R ASIE T ©



148

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.q., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
() Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value-assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement date, the
cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
lease payments and related payments (including the initial direct
costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. The finance income on the net investment
in the lease is recognised in the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as
a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition
exemption, the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for "Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Reqgular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes wealth management products which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's statement of financial position)
when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a "pass-through" arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 60 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs as detailed below.

Stage 1 -Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 -Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 -Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and lease
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
consumables and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of merchandise is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is determined based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Coupon liabilities

Coupon liabilities are recognised as a reduction in revenues upon
granting of bonus points to customers in accordance with the
announced bonus points scheme. The Group estimates future
redemption of bonus points based on its historical experiences.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liability relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values where there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

(b)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer.

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers
with rights of return. The rights of return give rise to
variable consideration.

Provision of concessionaire sale services

Revenue from the provision of concessionaire sale services
is recognised upon the commission rate of the gross
concessionaire sales which was recognised upon the
delivery of goods.

Provision of consultancy and management services

Revenue from the provision of consultancy and
management services is recognised over the scheduled
period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income (continued)

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Promotion income and minimum guaranteed sales commissions
are recognised according to the underlying contract terms with
concessionaires and as these services have been provided in
accordance therewith.

Credit card handling fees, administration fees and service fees are
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Display space leasing fees and equipment leasing income are
recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees' basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Pension scheme (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, each of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is required to participate in a retirement
benefit scheme organised by the local municipal government
whereby the Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions. Contributions
made to the defined contribution retirement benefit scheme are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the note 35 to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which is
different from the functional currency of the Company - the United
States dollar. The Company's consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi because management considers that a
substantial majority of the group companies are in the PRC and
the Group primarily generates and expends cash in Renminbi.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are currencies other than Renminbi. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of the
entities in the Group are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss is translated into Renminbi
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Renminbi
at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Renminbi at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the
Group will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming
year, which is a critical judgement that has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The assessment of the going concern assumption
involves making a judgement by the directors, at a particular point
of time, about the future outcome of events or conditions which
are inherently uncertain. The directors consider that the Group
has the capability to continue as a going concern and the major
events or conditions, which may give rise to business risks, that
may individually or collectively cast a significant doubt upon the
going concern assumption are set out in note 2.1 to the financial
statements.

Identifying performance obligations in sale of goods and
commissions from concessionaire sales

The Group recognises revenue when a performance obligation is
satisfied when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customer on sale of goods and commissions from concessionaire
sales. For contracts with customers, the Group determined that
the performance obligations of for loyalty points programme are
capable of being distinct. The Group allocates the transaction price
to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or
services underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service to a customer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into sublease contracts for its department
store business and lease contracts to earn rentals. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the investment properties and right-of-
use assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the investment
properties and right-of-use assets, that it retains substantially all
the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases or finance leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the
lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease term for
the lease of a property which has a short non-cancellable period of
three years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Tax provisions

Determining tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is assessed
periodically to take into account all the changes in tax legislation
and practices.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with the expected future
market and economic conditions in the PRC and tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2020 was RMB43,660,000
(2019: RMB34,905,000). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2020 was RMB1,405,311,000 (2019:
RMB1,274,346,000). Further details are given in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at
the end of each reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite
lives are tested for impairment annually and at other times when
such indicators exist. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm's length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit based on assumptions, in particular those relating
to gross margin and growth rates, as well as the overall market and
economic conditions in the PRC and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details, including a sensitivity analysis of key assumptions, are given
in note 11 and note 14(b) to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units based
on assumptions, in particular those relating to gross margin and
growth rates, as well as the overall market and economic conditions
in the PRC and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2020 was RMB1,770,538,000
(2019: RMB1,770,538,000). Further details of the impairment
testing of goodwill are given in note 14(a) to the financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and other
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and other receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns (i.e., by service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the retail
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer's actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables and other receivables is disclosed in notes
20 and 21 to the financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group "would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary's functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group
and makes a provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of
each reporting period and makes a provision against obsolete and
slow-moving items. Management reassesses the estimation by the
end of each reporting period.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets recorded in the statement
of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they
are determined using valuation techniques including the discounted
cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. The
judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation and amortisation

The Group has estimated the useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets (other than goodwill) to be 2 to 45 years,
after taking into account their estimated residual values, as
set out in the principal accounting policies above. Depreciation
and amortisation of items of property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
(other than goodwill) are calculated on the straight-line basis over
their expected useful lives. The net carrying amounts of items of
property, plant and equipment, investment properties, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill) as at 31
December 2020 were RMB3,287,490,000 (2019: RMB3,449,090,000),
RMB420,428,000 (2019: RMB303,292,000), RMB3,815,672,000
(2019: RMB3,629,374,000), and RMB14,450,000 (2019:
RMB21,515,000) respectively. Further details are given in notes 11,
12, 13 and 14(b) to the financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

4.  REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND 4. W~ HKE U A K 3 EB
SEGMENT INFORMATION =t o]
Revenues =
An analysis of revenues is as follows: WA

2020 2019
—EIEFE _—_EB-hF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETET

Revenue from contracts with HEHEE SN 7
customers (a)
Sale of goods from direct sales BEiHE R 2,608,000 2,712,119
Commissions from BHHEHERS
concessionaire sales (b) 1,014,160 1,429,023
Consultancy and management B REERBTE
service fees 10,763 12,263
3,632,923 4,153,405
Revenue from other sources =8ty A g
Gross rental income HEBEBA 317,618 357,952
Credit services EER 59,340 57,146
376,958 415,098
4,009,881 4,568,503
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND 4. Wz~ EMEE IRk 5 3
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) BE (@)
Revenues (continued) = (%8)
Notes: B 5E
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers — disaggregated (a) KEEEAHNKGE — A
revenue information =g
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ZE_EF+"-H=+—H
IEFE

Commissions Consultancy

Sales of from and

goods from concessionaire management
direct sales sales services Total

R EIR AR
BEHER HERE EEREE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFT AREFT AREFT

China South region A B 7 6 1,337,994 479,176 1,053 1,818,223

China North region FREL 36 E 584,777 348,474 - 933,251

China East region RS 658,493 186,253 9,710 854,456

Overseas PN 26,736 257 - 26,993
Revenue from contracts REER AN E

with customers 2,608,000 1,014,160 10,763 3,632,923

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_E—-—HhE+_B=+—H

IEEFE

Commissions Consultancy

Sales of from and

goods from concessionaire management
direct sales sales services Total

R E IR R
HEHER HERE EEREE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBF ARBF ARBFR

China South region A 2] 7 6 1,348,861 625,594 2,811 1,977,266
China North region AL 36 &6 682,023 535,499 1,741 1,219,263
China East region e ER Ef 681,235 267,930 7,11 956,876
Revenue from contracts REFR SN WG

with customers 2,712,119 1,429,023 12,263 4,153,405
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rEERRMEE (8

31 December 2020 —ZE-ZF+"FH=+—H

4. REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenues (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

()

Commissions from concessionaire sales are analysed as

follows:

Wk X
BH

e ﬁﬂ%%ﬁu&ﬁ%

Weat (&)

MEE

(b)

(&)

HAEEHEREINNOT

2020 2019

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AEBEETIT

Gross revenue from concessionaire sales 45 ZF MBS & 42k = 6,612,704 8,963,992

Commissions from concessionaire sales 45 sFrEBEINEMS 1,014,160 1,429,023
Performance obligations (c) BHEE

Sale of goods and commissions from concessionaire sales
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customers.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations were RMB629,237,000 as at 31 December
2020 (2019: RMB685,792,000), which are all expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts disclosed
above do not include variable consideration subject to constraint.

Revenue recognised in the current period with an amount of
RMB685,792,000 (2019: RMB782,389,000), that were included in
contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND 4, IgzE -~ HMEE e A K7 5
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) Bk (@)

Revenues (continued) = (%8)

Other operating revenues B & m

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E—hF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT

Credit card handling fees ERFFEE 28,456 48,685
Promotion income R IH U A 56,736 72,306
Electricity and water fees BEMKE 86,054 126,934
Administration fees T E R 96,031 89,404
Display space and equipment leasing income &8 G & EHEHEEUWA 52,826 61,783
Service fees RFBEHR 19,492 25,897
Government grants (Note) T Bh (F %) 14,027 8,953
Other income arising from the recognition of FESREEFH E1% & F2E
net investments in subleases EENEMKA 25,144 =
Proceeds from settlement of 7B ECOVID- 1948 B (R PR BB FR
COVID-19 related insurance claims FTigs1E 8,000 =
Other income Hk A 31,702 23,553
418,468 457,515
Note: =
Various local government grants have been granted to reward the Group NEBEM T BNETZIEME ) LR
for its contributions to the local economy and relieve the Group's burdens B E 2 i1 4R 7 1Y = B 1 R B AR £E [ B
of its operational challenges related to COVID-19. There were no unfulfilled COVID-19tE8RMN S B BN E K - ZE
conditions or contingencies attaching to these government grants. BRI EM A R EIRGH N IAS
IHo
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31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

176

REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group has one major operating
segment, which is "Retail”. The Group operates department stores
mainly in the PRC. Revenues arising from this segment include sales
of goods in direct sales, commissions from concessionaire sales,
consultancy and management service fees and rental income from
tenants.

Besides, the Group provides consumer financing business which
is carried out by Parkson Credit in Malaysia, and its revenue and
results are disclosed under "Others" in the table below:

Wz ~ B AT = U 7 AT 53 BB
ﬁ*‘l‘ (/\ﬁ)
SEPE R
HEEBEKR AEEEES —@EX
BRENE BNIEE) cAEHTE
RARKSEEE RBE LD B
WamBiEEEHERE S EEH
ERS - BAKEERBERAR
HEEFWA

IESh > A& B2t FParkson Credith?
EXRACHENHESMER  H
W R AR T RIEM I TE N FE

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_S_EF+_A=1+—HLEE Retail Others Total
gE Hith Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETR ARETR

Segment revenue pax-ilea
Operating revenues L& s 4,369,009 59,340 4,428,349
Segment results DEEE (120,694) 15,450 (105,244)

Reconciliation: #

Corporate expenses hEMAZ (12,458)
Loss before tax 1R AIE B (117,702)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_Z-NF+ZA=1+—HLEE Retail Others Tota\
& Hit st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR AR%ETR

Segment revenue SERUER
Operating revenues & e 4,968,872 57,146 5,026,018
Segment results NEEE (42,650) 9,779 (32,871)

Reconciliation: #ifk

Corporate expenses hER% (15,741)
Loss before tax REIEE (48,612)

Revenue from external customers are mostly generated in the PRC
and almost all significant operating assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Since revenue from external customers and non-current
assets excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets of
overseas companies outside the PRC are not material to the Group's
consolidated revenue and non-current assets excluding financial
instruments and deferred tax assets, management believes there is
no need to disclose geographical information.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT $E#RE

A 5N BB B 5 0 Wi B R o
B MAKBEANICEEEY
i B B © BB B 3R 9 B0 5 A
i RIPMBEE (FEEPEHINE
INARE BT ARBIERAL D
HAREEAWERIETDEE (T
oEeRTARELREAR K
LREA BEERDBARED
BEK -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

LOSS BEFORE TAX 5. IRAIEE

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBEMRBIBERETYENRS (5t
AN THIEERER

2020 2019
—ECEHF —T—NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Cost of inventories recognised as BRARINEERE

expenses 2,214,507 2,270,490
Staff costs excluding directors' and BIRA FEEEEK

chief executive's remuneration: BEIITEMD) !

Wages, salaries and bonuses TITE FisRIEA 449,757 488,148

Pension scheme contributions BIRESETEIMHER 12,212 58,193

Social welfare and other costs R e E A 78,372 110,065

540,341 656,406

Directors' and chief executive's EEREEIHTE

remuneration i <& 7 6.827 10,235

547,168 666,641

Depreciation and amortisation HTEE R 5 690,353 696,674
Impairment of trade receivables FEW B 5 I8 R E 20 9,299 14,871
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of ~ F& 15 RRIE Kz EL{t FE UK

prepayments and other receivables MIERE (REREE) 210 20,816 (43)
Impairment of property, plant and M- RRE KRR ERE

equipment n 31,184 -
Impairment of intangible assets #HLEERE 14(p) 1,652 =
Foreign exchange differences, net B = RE B (1,956) 25,719
Lease payments not included in the KRETAHEBBFEN

measurement of lease liabilities ER=ENEA 74,512 113,933
COVID-19 related rent concessions COVID-1948RAFE £ R =

from lessors (88,429) =
Rental expenses HERX (13,917) 113,933
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31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

5.  LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 5. MAIEE (@)

2020 2019
—ECEHF —T—NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT

Losses/(gains) on disposal of items of ~ HEYZE - HEKREZHEH

property, plant and equipment, net B8 () P58 5,341 (43,703)
Auditor's remuneration ZE BN & 4,273 3,913

Gross rental income in respect of KEYENHESEWA

investment properties (786) (3,807)
Lease income in respect of sublease of AL EFAEIE Y EE
properties under operating leases: HENESWA
Minimum lease payments * =R~ (217.,439) (254,723)
Contingent lease payments ** o ATH & (99,393) (99,422)
(316,832) (354,145)
Total gross rental income SEtESEW A (317,618) (357,952)

Direct operating expenses arising from BEENIREYEREEEN

rental-earning investment properties ~ EIEAEE R 1,335 664
* Minimum lease payments of the Group include pre-determined * rEERBEESEEEREHE R
rental payments and minimum guaranteed rental payments for TRIRTE S 17 a% B S AATE S B gAY
lease agreements with contingent rental payments. RIEFE
e Contingent lease payments are calculated based on a percentage e AR BEERBEEREN
of the relevant performance of the tenants pursuant to the rental AERBREXGETERKME
agreements. Fo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

FINANCE INCOME/COSTS 6. RMBUWA

2020 2019
—ECEHF —T—NEF

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARETT ARET T

Finance income: BEUWA
Bank interest income RITHBUA 65,412 33,809
Gain on redemption of Bl AnEBEFE
financial assets at fair value BEZHT ABEm
through profit or loss ERE E W 5,713 11,497
Change of fair value of BARBESE
financial assets at fair value BHEBF AR
through profit or loss EMEBEEZAR
BEED 22 1,789 1,515
Finance income on the net HEHEREFEN
investments in subleases MEWRA 27,008 28,590
99,922 75,411
Finance costs: BB RS
Interest on lease liabilities HEAaRZHE (429,898) (425,040
Interest on interest-bearing FFEBITER K
bank loans and other borrowings HMmERZFE (140,011) (237,838)
(569,909) (662,878)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR RME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

7- DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7.
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors' and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules"), section
383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EXE - HEHNTERSRITH
AEfE
RIEESBHMEXZMBRABES
EHRA (TEHRA)) - FEBAT
&5 55383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (KR (E KA E]
(WEEEMDER) HAEH 28
ENEENERITEFEMEN
T

2020 2019

—EZTHF T hEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARET T

Fees e 1,219 1,499
Other emoluments: HAMENE

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and other e R TEA R Efthg A
benefits 5,608 8,736
6,827 10,235
(a) Independent non-executive directors () WIUIEHITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FHRRBIFRITESZMN

the year were as follows:

RS

2020 2019

—ECEHF —E—hEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥EF T AR#F T

Mr. Dato' Fu Ah Kiow EERNEBRE 210 223
Mr. Ko Desmond Ko Desmond4c4E (IR —_E _E &

(resigned on 30 November 2020) +—B=+H8&D 193 223

Mr. Yau Ming Kim, Robert B854 210 223

613 669

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EE -BHEHWTERSHRITH

EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) AEBE &)

(b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors and the () BITESF -FRTEERE
chief executive ERITE

Salaries,
allowances, Pension
bonuses and scheme
other benefits contributions

EE AR
AR Bk g
ik H g7l stEIfR &3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBFRT AREFTR ARBTR ARET=®

2020 “ETEF
Executive directors: HITES:
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem R EEER 202 3,008 - 3,210
Ms. Juliana Cheng San San =it 202 2,592 - 2,794
404 5,600 - 6,004
Non-executive director: FEHITEE
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung ZEHEAES
Bt 202 8 - 210
606 5,608 - 6,214
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31 December 2020 —ZE-ZF+"FH=+—H

7.  DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EE -BEVITERSHRITH
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) AEBiE (@)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the () BITES -FRTEERE
chief executive (continued) ERITE (B

Salaries,
allowances, Pension
bonuses and scheme
Fees other benefits contributions Total

HERE

TEALR BikE
e HthaH| st &at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARET:

2019 “2-NF
Executive directors: HiTEE .
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem B EEER 215 3,008 - 3223
Mr. He Dong @%%E
(re-designated on 5 May RZB—NE
2019 and resigned on 31 1E®E El g T
October 2019) WHRZE—NF
+B=+—H
#) m 1,559 - 1670
Ms. Juliana Cheng San San B L 215 2,400 - 2,615
541 6,967 - 7,508
Non-executive directors: FRTES .
Mr. He Dong ﬂ%?ﬁi
(re-designated on =ty ==
5 May 2019) AR ARERD 74 405 - 479
Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung ZEHEAES
Bt 215 8 - 223
289 413 - 702
Chief executive: BEHIE:
Mr. Chong Sui Hiong RInELE
(resigned on 1 February 2019) MRZEB—NE
—_A—H#A - 1,356 - 1,356
830 8,736 - 9,566
There was no arrangement under which any directors or the BE_Z-ZEHF+"HA=1+—HIt
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration FEMERTNEEXEFERNTE
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil). MENREBENEEAMEMmIELEE

ML (CT—NF  H) o
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DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7.
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MEERME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

Five highest paid employees (c)
The five highest paid employees during the year included

two executive directors, details of whose remuneration are

set out above. Details of the remuneration for the year of

the remaining three (2019: three) highest paid employees

who are neither a director nor chief executive of the

Company are as follows:

#re RR S TEAL R EAth 2R

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and
other benefits

EF BRERITERSRITH
AEME (B

IaESHMES

FRELRSFHHESERE
MBATES HM 158
REX -FEEHF=% (T
T-NE: =% ReoFME
B (REMIFFARBESE T
FEREHNTE) B EF15W
TS s

2020 2019
—ECEHF

—EF—NEF
RMB'000
AREEFTT

RMB'000
ARBFT

8,273 7,523

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

B = F LT BB & & #r
MES (LIFEE > TFIFER
HITE) WAZWT :

Number of employees

EBEARK

2020 2019

HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,683,280 to
RMB2,104,100)

Over HK$2,500,000
(equivalent to RMB2,104,100)

2,000,00078 75 2 2,500,00078 75
(HBER A KR 11,683,28070
= AR #2,104,1007T)

2,500,000 ¢ (FHEN AR
2,104,1007T) M E

—E-8F —T-hE

—_——=

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no key
management personnel (as defined in IAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures) other than the directors and the five highest
paid employees as disclosed above.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to participate in
the employee retirement benefit scheme operated by the relevant
local government authorities in the PRC. The PRC government is
responsible for the pension liability to the retired employees. The
Group was required to make contributions for those employees who
are registered as permanent residents in the PRC and are within the
scope of the relevant PRC regulations at rates ranging from 14%
to 21% of the employees' salaries for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

The Group's contributions to pension costs for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB12,212,000 (2019:
RMB58,193,000).

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on the profit
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Under the relevant PRC income tax regulations, except for a certain
preferential treatment available to certain PRC subsidiaries and the
joint venture of the Group, the PRC companies of the Group are
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on
their respective taxable income. During the year, four PRC entities
of the Group (2019: seven PRC entities) obtained approval from
the relevant PRC tax authorities and were entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15%.

Malaysia profits tax has been provided at the rate of 24% (2019:
249%) on its taxable income.

No provision for Hong Kong, Singapore and Laos profits has been
made for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong, Singapore
and Laos for the years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —ZE-TF+"FH=+—H

9.  INCOME TAX (continued) 9. PRSI (&
An analysis of the provision for tax in the consolidated statement SR EEmRNINBEEEN DU
of profit or loss is as follows: B

2020 2019

RMB'000 s 000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Current income tax KEAFT1SHR 167,532 166,336
Deferred income tax (note 18) IRIEFTISHR (BPsE18) (48,314) (11,268)
119,218 155,068
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit FEREAATRE KIS B AT K
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries (or jurisdictions) ESRIERZR (S EH&E) i ETEMR
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are KT EMRA (BB FIBZER
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a MBERAYREERREFTENRE
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to FZHHEE URBEBRRE BIEE
the effective tax rates, are as follows: ME) HERKRENHIRNOT !
2020 —ETRHF
British
Cayman Virgin
Singapore Islands Islands Malaysia Laos PRC Total
Y]
#in mane Eaae EABE £ T i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% AREFT % AREFT AREFR % AREFT % AREFR % AREFR % AREFR
(Loss)profit befoe tax 10 (58) /713 (13905) (192) (115,464) (1.264) 16,081 (3,740) 1382 (17,702)
Toxat the satutory taxrate.~ HARREAENRE (229 165 (135) 170 - - - - 3,859 2%0 (748) 200 346 250 1028 (09)
Taxceffect of preferentia BERENRETE
taxates - - - - - - - - - - - - (088  (1593)  (22,088) 188

Profits and loses atrbutatle  SECERBEAT

to joint ventures and LR EREE

associates (42) 03 - - - - - - - - - - (768) (55.6) (810) 07
Tax losses not recognised HRBERNREEE - - 135 (17.0) - - - - 61 04 748 (200) 77438 56033 78382 (66.6)
Texosses previousy recognised, & ATRERRTIRE AT

now reversed HEHE - - - - - - - - - - - - 11,602 839.5 11,602 (99)
Taxlosses previouslynot AV RBEME

recognised, now recognised  BEZNHBER - - - - - - - - - - - - (4650)  (3365) (4,650) 40
Expenses not deductibl for tax Rl FfEIEHIAIER

B 233 (168) - - - - - - 946 59 - - 9l oL 12833 (108)

Fffect of withholding tax on the AEMHEHBAZ
distributable profitsof the WAL

Group's PRC subsidiaries il g - - - - - - - - - - - - 42236 3,056 42,236 (35.9)
Adjustments in respectof  FAEHRMBRE

current tax of previous fEHHEE

oerods - - - - - - - - (20 - - 286 1893 85 08)
Tax charge for the year KEEREZH - - - - - - - - 2,935 183 - - 116283 84140 119218 (101.3)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

9.  INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FrEMBEX (@)
2019 —_F—hE

Cayman
Singapore Islands Malaysia

LE : BiED

[Lossoroft bfore tax i (58) /A3 (5509 (1002 (255,234) [1.890) 9102 (7.115) 213030 s8612)
Taxat thestatutory taxrate.~ RACREHENHE (308) 165 (170) 170 - - - - 2,185 %0 (1423) 200 53257 250 5941 (1089)
Tax effect of preferential BERENRETE

taxates - - - - - - - - - - - - (g5 (164) (34859 1

Profts and losses attibutable  —KAEREREE
toajoint venture and NARERARER

associates v} 05 - - - - - - - - - - (5127) (24 (5,154) 106
Texlosses not recognised W REERNTBER - - 1 (170) - - - - 164 18 143 (2000 73780 47 75537 (153)
Taxlosses previously recognised, & ATRERRTIRE AR

now reversed HESE - - - - - - - - - - - - 2658 12 265 (55)
Taxosses previously not FREREEMRD

recogrised, now recognised  FEsRAIRIERS - - - - - - - - - - - - (n879) (56 (mem) 144
Expenses not deductible for tax R ] B{EIEAABN

35 935 (170) o = o - - - - - o - nem 56 12812 (264)

Effect of withholding tax on the AEMFEINEAE

distrbutable profis of the AT EAEH

Group's PRC subsidiaries B E - - o ® 5 a - - - - - - 8218 LY 6218 (1301)
Adjustments in respect of SR BEnSHRE

current tax of previous fEHiEE

periods - - - - - - - - (1,202) (132) - - 986 05 (216) 05

Tax charge forthe year KEERBRH - - - - - - - - 1147 126 - - B 73 15068 (3190)
The share of tax attributable to the joint ventures and associates EEPERBE AT EMLMRIED R
amounting to RMB375,000 (2019: RMB2,484,000) and AANRM3750007T (ZEE—NF A
RMB(266,000) (2019: RMB1,027,000), respectively, is included in EE #£2,484,0007T) K A R #(266,000) 75
“Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and associates” in the —E—HE . AR ¥1,027,0007T)
consolidated statement of profit or loss. ERGEEaRANIELEERER

BMEABDF B REEI AR
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY 10.
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on

the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,634,532,000 (2019: 2,634,532,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

MEERME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

AT ERERAE AEWN
BiREE
EREXAEBDLIREERNS AT
ZTEREDA AEMGEIELN
FEARABETZERMNE LY
£02,634,532,0000% (Z & —HEF :
2,634,532,0008%) 5t & o

RBEE_ZT_TER_FT-—NE
+TZR=+—HLEEE - AEEL
mOETEEREEER

BREXA KRB EBENSGELRE
THIRE -

2020

2019
—T—NF

RMB'000
AREF T

—E-SF

RMB'000
ARBFT

Loss &518

Loss attributable to ordinary mﬁé%%’é%%ﬂx&}%ﬁ%
equity holders of the parent, BIENSAEEERER
used in the basic and diluted B ARBLEIR

loss per share calculations

(250,114) (222,751)

Number of shares
RiIP&E
2020

—v—vﬂi
'000

av

Shares

Fig

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year used in
the basic and diluted loss per share
calculation

AR EEREARES
BIRIENE BT HER
T

2,634,532 2,634,532
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR RME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

11.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

11.

ME BB K

Land and Leasehold Motor Equipment Construction
buildings improvements vehicles and fixtures in progress Total
THkET RENZRE "E REREE ZRIR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTFT ARBTT AEBFT AEBTFT
At 1 January 2019, net of RIZ-NE—F—-R>
accumulated depreciationand B EHTERAE
impairment 2,751,615 268,197 3,663 128,635 742,309 3,894,419
Additions NE - 53499 3n 14,558 45,563 113,992
Transfer to investment REMERA (zt)
properties (note 12) (273,663) - - - - (273,663)
Transfers from construction AR TREA
in progress 246 23,049 - 3,549 (26,844) -
Disposals HE (51,726) (2,797) (386) (10,573) - (65,482)
Depreciation charged FRRESH
during the year (81,230) (112,552) (1,136) (25,258) = (220,176)
At 31 December 2019 and RIB—h%E
1 January 2020, net of +ZA=1+-8k
accumulated depreciationand ~ —R-FE—F—H>
impairment R RAMERAE 234524 22939 2513 110911 761028 3,449,090
Additions NE - 60396 520 28657 24196 113,769
Transfer to investment REMERA (HzH2)
properties (note 12) (43,144) - - - - (43,144)
Transfers from construction HEETIEREA
in progress - 28,682 - 12576 (41,258) -
Disposals HE - (1,669) (1) (415) = (5,898)
Depreciation charged FRRERE
during the year (71,853) (98,947) (770) (23573) - (195,143)
Impairment provided FNEERE
for the year B (26986) B (4,198) = (31,184)
At 31 December 2020, netof ~ RZBZFE
accumulated depreciationand ~ +ZA=+—H8"
impairment ENBRRMERAE 2,230,245 190,872 2,186 120221 743,966 3287490
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11.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

11.

MEERME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

ME BB Kt (8)

Land and Leasehold Motor Equipment Construction
buildings improvements vehicles and fixtures in progress Total
TikETF EMRKE "E RERKE TRIR Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTFT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT AEBFT AEBTFT
At 31 December 2019: RIB-N#E
+ZA=t+-8:
Cost A& 2,770,761 1,594,874 19387 408,729 761,404 5,555,155
Accumulated depreciation and ~ REFTERBE
impairment (425,519) (1,365478) (16,874) (297,818) (376) (2,106,065)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,345,242 229,39 2513 110911 761028 3,449,000
At 31 December 2020: RZEZZE
+ZA=+-8:
Cost A& 2,716,356 1,615,243 19,256 411,835 744342 5,507,032
Accumulated depreciationand ~ REHTERA(E
impairment (486,111) (1,424371) (17,070) (291,614) (376) (2219542)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,230,245 190,872 2,186 120221 743,966 3,287,490

All of the Group's land and buildings are located in the PRC.

In consideration that the business of five subsidiaries of the Group
had been loss making in recent years and it was not considered
probable that profits would be available in the foreseeable future,
an impairment loss of RMB31,184,000 (2019: nil) was recognised
for property, plant and equipment of these five subsidiaries in 2020.
As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amounts of the related
property, plant and equipment were RMB9,156,000.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the buildings with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB2,411,730,000 (2019: RMB2,292,600,000)
were pledged to secure the Group's bank loans (note 28).

Impairment testing of property, plant and equipment

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment of each
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by the executive directors. The
pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 14.0%.

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

The following describes the key assumptions of the cash flow
projections:

The bases used to determine the future
earnings are historical sales and average
expected growth rates of the retail market in
the PRC.

Revenue:

Gross margins: Gross margins are based on the average
gross margins achieved in the past few
years immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market

development.

The bases used to determine the values
assigned are the cost of inventories
purchased for resale, staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation, rental expenses and other
operating expenses. The value assigned to
the key assumption reflects past experience
and management's commitment to maintain
the operating expenses to an acceptable
level.

Operating expenses:

Discount rates: Discount rates reflect management's
estimate of specific risks relating to the

relevant units.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT fE[ERE

11.

ME B ER=RE (&)

N_E_EF+_B=+—H K
H R EL A AR 152411,730,0007 (Z
T— N F AR K2,292,600,0007T) B9
BFEEH AXEEIRITERIR
HER (Psk28) ©

W2 ~ R B T 5% fha B iR (E R o

BEREELFBEUZYE -BERR
EHNRWEIZERBEERBER
Ben=millEc Ben=E41
BRBERITESEHERELFH
BN EBEEFL RERERA
BB AR AT HT IR 4314.00°

ARHEEREENEERR
RIS RERANEERER !

BREEARELEBFNB
%E%LE% €L
MERTEZE TS
m$ﬁﬁ%%§$°

EHE EMELRERIETE
BEEERHBEMER
HFHEEFESE %
TEHM E N ERTER
MIZEEMER -

KERY . ANETECEBEDN

HEASHEBEMEA
NEBERE BT
A NTEREBHE AL
A REMKERS -
ZEETBENETE
RE& & MR R B &
EEERKCERT#
R A =2 K B9

Sk

DEO
FRKR: HRIXRBREEER
HRAMEUAERNG
E R BRBIEET o



11.

12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 11.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of values in use of property,
plant and equipment of the respective cash-generating units,
management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of
the above key assumptions would cause the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment of the relevant units to materially
exceed their recoverable amounts.

MEERME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

ME B ER&fE (&)
BRESHBRE
MAEEREELEBEUZYE K
FPhuENEREBE T EEE
BELREFNEERRLESER]
FEHIREE) REAMEBLZYE
iP5 e 5% e 2 BRI B 3= B 7 EL A X
[E]& 8-

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. REME

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E—NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFIT

At 31 December: R+ZB=+—H:
Cost [N 529,900 392,839
Accumulated depreciation FotirE (109,472) (89,547)
Net carrying amount R E 420,428 303,292

A reconciliation of the net carrying amount of investment
properties at the beginning and end of the year is as follows:

FEPRERNEEYENRET FE
HERIOH ¢

2020 2019

_E_THF “Z—NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTFT AE®BFT

Net carrying amount at 1 January R—B—HNREZFE 303,292 30,293

Depreciation e (8,664) (664)

Addition RE 82,656 =
Transfer from owner-occupied property BABRME MsEn)

(note 11) 43,144 273,663

Net carrying amount at 31 December R+_A=+—HNEEZFE 420,428 303,292
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

12.

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's investment properties were revalued at approximately
RMB3,000,000,000 on an open market, existing use basis on 31
December 2020 by the Group. The investment properties are all
situated in the PRC, and either under renovation or leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details of which
are included in note 13 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the building with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB362,142,000 (2019: RMB286,800,000) was
pledged to secure the Company's bank loans (note 28).

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property and
other equipment used in its operations. Leases of property generally
have lease terms between 2 and 20 years. Other equipment
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually
of low value. There are several lease contracts that include variable
lease payments, which are further discussed below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. & @
The Group as a lessee (continued) EEEAEABEAN (@
(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) (EFEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets rEBEGHESEENKREE
and the movements during the year are as follows: DU R A< E BN ¢

Leasehold
land Property Total

HE L ME 5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTRT AR®TR AR®TR

As at 1 January 2019 RZE—hFE—F—H 394,497 3,836,781 4,231,278
Additions arising from new leases ~ HIEHEEEMNFE - 20,538 20,538
Depreciation charged during the year ZSEEITE & (13,312) (456,900) (470,212)
Decrease arising from lease term BEKFEBRELNR D
modification - (134,080) (134,080)
Decrease arising from lease term BEKZRIEEENR D
termination - (14,519) (14,519)
Decrease arising from sublease HREESHD - (3.631) (3.631)
As at 31 December 2019 and AT —NF
1 January 2020 +-B=+—H8k
“E-®F—HA—H 381,185 3,248,189 3,629,374
Additions arising from new leases ~ FEEEENARE - 578,660 578,660
Depreciation charged during the year ZSEEITEEH (13,310) (467,823) (481,133)
Increase arising from lease term HERRE L EEE
modification - 112,617 12,617
Decrease arising from lease term HEEHFRRE EEERRLD
termination - (919) (919)
Decrease arising from subleases HEEEENRD - (22,927) (22,927)
As at 31 December 2020 KRZB_BF+_A=+—H 367,875 3,447,797 3,815,672
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the Bi#EB ANESHEA42E45
leased land from owners with lease periods of 42 to 45 EFHNEE L HEEE LS
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the — XA BEAERBILE
terms of these land leases. T ENERRIEHTE M

EIERR e

At 31 December 2020, the leasehold land of Beijing AT ECTEF+_RA=+—
Parkson with a net carrying amount of approximately H> IR EREEEENAA
RMB357,037,000 (2019: RMB369,900,000) were pledged to R #£357,037,00075 (Z&—H,
secure the Company's bank loans (note 28). F 1 AR #369,900,0007T) FIFE

ETHEER  HAERTERT
B R (5E28) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR RME (48

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

13. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

13. &8 @)

FEBERKEA (B

b HEERE

Eo (I

HEEENREERFRNE

2020 2019
—EIEF —ZE—hE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AEEFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HMEREE 4,340,231 4,770,431
Additions arising from new leases HEEEENAE 568,614 20,512
Accretion of interest recognised FARESBIF] SIE M
during the year 429,898 425,040
COVID-19 related rent concessions 7k B 8 A B9COVID-1948
from lessors REFE R % (88,429) =
Payments (EN (651,759) (730,556)
Increase/(decrease) arising from EEKRIENEER
lease term modification i, Geizb) 121,737 (134,080)
Decrease arising from lease term FAEEFRIEEEN R D
termination (990) (14,170)
Exchange realignment BE 2 SH L (11,508) 3,054
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-B=+—HH
FREE 4,707,794 4,340,231
Analysed into: DU -
Current portion BPERER 3 556,092 474,677
Non-current portion JEEPHREB o> 4,151,702 3,865,554

HEEEITHEIEBBER
PERA SR R MY 5E30 9 BR -

The maturity of analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 38 to the financial statements.

A0 B S R R Y EE 2. 2P 3R
B AEEERFHRWEIRR
BIREERF169% (BFT ) >
WEMREREE S AR HA
ARERRETYEEEM
RYZFBGEREZRR -

As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the
Group has early adopted the amendment to IFRS 16
and applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent
concessions granted by the lessors for leases of certain
properties during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. & @
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBEAEEAN (@
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases () FIEmTRHERIZEE
are as follows: AF -

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—hF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT

Interest on lease liabilities HEEENH R 429,898 425,040
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 1 B E EMITE & 481,133 470,212
Expense relating to short-term leases BRI ENAS 8,518 18,435
Variable lease payments not included TEst A HE&EFEM
in the measurement of lease liabilities PIEBEE R 65,994 95,498
COVID-19-related rent concessions R B HH A BICOVID-19
from lessors TR EE R (88,429) =
897,114 1,009,185
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. #HE @

The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBEAEEAN (@

(d)  Variable lease payments (d)  EEHAENK
The Group leased a number of the retail stores which AEBHEHFZEZEER  HAp
contain variable lease payment terms that are based on the BEERAERZEENSE
Group's turnover or profit before tax generated from the RN ELRRAINEN
retail stores. There are also minimum annual base rental AEEENRER-ZEMR
arrangements for these leases. The following provides ENTERBEFEEAMEER
information on the Group's variable lease payments, BEe PR E AN ERE &
including the magnitude in relation to fixed payments: HEMRPNER  gFHE T

TR BERRREE

2020 Gt 3 3

Fixed Variable
payments payments Total

BIEMR AWM a5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTRT AR%TR

Fixed rent ElE & 252,706 - 252,706
Variable rent with FEREBNRNTEES
minimum payment 423,511 14,831 438,342
Variable rent only EEIE-Fik - 51,163 51,163
676,217 65,994 742,211
2019 —= A

Fixed Variable
payments payments Total

BIE[™ AR izt
RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETR

Fixed rent EEHE 288,647 - 288,647

Variable rent with FERBNRBNTEREE
minimum payment 467,620 31,548 499,168
Variable rent only EEIE-Yik - 63,950 63,950
756,267 95,498 851,765
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

LEASES (continued)

MEERME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

13. &8 @)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(e) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are
disclosed in notes 31(c) and 33(b), respectively, to the
financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 12) and right-
of-use assets in the PRC under operating lease or finance lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to
15 years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

() Operating leases
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB317,618,000 (2019: RMB357,952,000), details of which
are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted fixed lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as
follows:

FEBERKEA (B
) FHERRTMHBEERERE

REFEMEE B R ARKIR
SME D BB RS RRMT 5
31(c) K233(b) I EE ©

FEEMFERHAA
AEERBEEHENMERAER
HETHBAEEREYE (W:E12)
RERBEE MEMBNEEHRR
TR IsF - HERMREEZXKA
FXfiREE WIREERNIRT
TRETERE T AR -

U}

REBRERNERANHES U
A& AR 1317,618,0007T (Z
Z—h& : AR 357,952,000
7o) 0 SRR E N B B R RN 5
50

N ZEZIEFF+ZA=1—
B AEE R R IABR A
HEFNAORHBEKERE
FEW B >R AL IR B & M & I &
W

2020 2019

—E-TH “E-NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBEFT

Within one year — &R 238,154 179,729
After one year but within two years —FEBERMERN 138,636 127,820
After two years but within three years MEBER=FR 66,742 69,804
After three years but within four years —FEAEROEFRN 46,196 51,359
After four years but within five years MEBERAEFER 20,570 37,075
After five years HEE 39,057 48,619
549,355 514,406

In addition to the above, the annual contingent rental
amount is calculated on a percentage of the turnover or net
profit of the respective tenants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

13-

LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
(9) Finance leases

13k

The carrying amount of net investments in the subleases
and the movements during the year are as follows:

HE (@)

AEEEABEA (B

@ EEEE
WEERESENRAER
EREEIT

2020
—EEH
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
i AR¥TT AEEFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—HBREE 298,787 328,518
Additions arising from new leases HHEEEERNARE 49,639 4,512
Accretion of interest recognised FAREEF] S IE 0
during the year 27,008 28,590
Decrease arising from lease term MR ERFIE L E L/
modification T (1,669) =
Proceeds from subleases EiEEEmIE (62,212) (62,833)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+—B=+—B8
IREE 311,553 298,787
Analysed into: DIAT -
Current portion BNEAEE 21 54,755 40,877
Non-current portion JERDHREB > 17 256,798 257,910
At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted fixed lease AT ETEBEF+ A =+—

B> ARE B R AR R HAE R 5 A
HERHNAHERERS

payments receivable by the Group in future periods under
non-cancellable finance leases with its tenants are as

follows: FE U B9 >k G 3R & E M B 9 R
mTE

2020 2019

—ECEH “E-NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR%F T AREFTT

Within one year —&FR 80,918 61,988

After one year but within two years —FBRERREA 73,575 62,273

After two years but within three years MEBER=ZFEAN 76,680 61,632

After three years but within four years —FEEROEFRN 72,676 62,785

After four years but within five years MEBERAEER 63,996 59,876

After five years AFEE 23,548 80,848

391,393 389,402

bR EXCPRESN  FE AR E
BREHEPIEREI AT B
E—BotsE-

In addition to the above, the annual contingent rental
amount is calculated on a percentage of the turnover or net
profit of the respective tenants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

14. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. BERHMEREE
(a) Goodwill ) @BE
The movements of goodwill are as follows: EENEENT

2020 2019

—EEHF “Z—NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥EF T AR#F T

Cost BN 2,254,533 2,254,533

Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 5t 85 KRB (483,995) (483,995)

Net carrying amount FREZEE 1,770,538 1,770,538
Impairment testing of goodwill DAY

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the
following cash-generating units:

HENRAEEPEET
REEEBM:

2020 2019
—TITHE Z2—hEF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B = ARET T AE®BFT
Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. S P B B L A
BEERRE (] 381,682 381,682
Asia Advancement International BIEREBREAR
Limited (i) 315,225 315,225
Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. BEREEZERE
BRRF (iii) 297,097 297,097
Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping 8 1LIK 51 55 B5 B& 4
Centre Co., Ltd. FLERAR (iv) 272,743 272,743
Nanning Brilliant Parkson MERHEREE
Commercial Co., Ltd. BRAE (v) 155,066 155,066
Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza AL IS RES
Co., Ltd. BRAF (vi) 111,104 111,104
Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza B ERERES
Co., Ltd. BRRF (vii) 91,478 91,478
Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza &R B R EYES
Co., Ltd. BRRF (viii) 72,491 72,491
Lung Shing International PREFERG SR
Investment & Development HRAT
Company Limited (ix) 59,003 59,003
Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. (%) 14,649 14,649
1,770,538 1,770,538
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rEERRMEE (8

31 December 2020 —ZE-ZF+"FH=+—H

14. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(a) Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Notes:

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of one department store in Nanchang, the PRC.

Asia Advancement International Limited and its
subsidiaries principally engage in the operation of one
department store in Kunming, the PRC.

Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. principally engages
in the operation of three department stores in Beijing and
Harbin, the PRC.

Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping Centre Co., Ltd.
principally engages in the operation of one department
store in Anshan, the PRC.

Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd. principally
engages in the operation of three department stores in
Nanning, the PRC.

Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages
in the operation of one department store in Xi'an, the PRC.

Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages
in the operation of two department stores and one
supermarket in Mianyang, the PRC.

Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza Co., Ltd. principally
engages in the operation of one department store in
Shenyang, the PRC.

Lung Shing International Investment & Development
Company Limited and its subsidiary principally engage in
property investment and holding in Anshan, the PRC.

Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. principally engages in the
provision of money lending and credit services in Malaysia.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

14. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14. B2 REMEFREE (&)

(a)  Goodwill (continued) () @& W
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) 21 B 18 B 5 (#8)
Notes: (continued) MisE @ (48)

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by the executive directors. Apart from Parkson Credit Sdn.
Bhd., a newly acquired subsidiary in 2018, the pre-tax discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 14.0%. The pre-tax
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections for Parkson
Credit Sdn. Bhd. is 24.5%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.0%, which was the same
as the long term average growth rate of the industry.

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

The following describes the key assumptions of the cash
flow projections:

The bases used to determine the future
earnings are historical sales and average
expected growth rates of the retail
market and credit services in the PRC
and Malaysia, respectively.

Revenue:

Gross margins: Gross margins are based on the average
gross margins achieved in the past few
years immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market

development.
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EREGEEBUMNAIUREIEEET
REFHBERESREREAE
B REREEATRIBERITE
EEHERE R SR EE
HH{EE o FRParkson Credit Sdn. Bhd.
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MEBAE) % RBERSTERN
R AIITER = 214.0% ° Parkson
Credit Sdn. Bhd IR &R EFERIAIE
FBRETITIRE A24.50c BH A E
RIS R ERIZ 1 & %2.00%
HE > EHEXRNRIAFHERRE
GiEIE

B ERFEEN L ZR

MR R RERANE

AR

EREERRR
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HEXIHEURSD
B H PR R AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IMGE (4R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

14.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(a)

Goodwill (continued)

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

(continued)

Operating
expenses:

Discount rates:

The bases used to determine the
values assigned are the cost of
inventories purchased for resale, staff
costs, depreciation and amortisation,
rental expenses and other operating
expenses. The value assigned to the key
assumption reflects past experience and
management's commitment to maintain
the operating expenses to an acceptable
level.

Discount rates reflect management's
estimate of specific risks relating to the
relevant units.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of values in use of the
respective cash-generating units, management believes
that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key
assumptions would cause the carrying amounts, including
goodwill, of the relevant units to materially exceed their
recoverable amounts.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

14. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14. B2 REMEFREE (&)

(b)  Other intangible assets (b) HhEREE
The movements of other intangible assets are as follows: HithEREENSSHUT

Computer Franchise Customer
software Licence * agreement™ Trademark **  relationship *** Total

BERE  GEE SEEREC BE EFME af
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ABBTR ABETR ARBTR ARETT ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2019, net of RIE-hE

accumulated amortisation —A—B &1k

and impairment Rt EHRAE 339 2932 = = 23866 27,137
Amortisation provided FREHEE

during the year (269) (415) - - (4.938) (5,622)
At 31 December 2019 and RI2—NE

1 January 2020, net of +ZA=t-Bk

accumulated amortisation “ECEE

and impairment —B—8 &k

RetEERAE 70 2517 - - 18,928 21515

Amortisation provided FRBHEE

during the year (61) (414) - - (4.938) (5:413)
Impairment provided FRHERE

during the year - (1,652) - - - (1,652)

At 31 December 2020, net of RIEZEE
accumulated amortisationand ~ +ZA=+—H>
impairment TREEER
R 9 451 - - 13,990 14,450
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

14. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14. B2 NEMEFREE (&)

204

(b)  Other intangible assets (continued) (b) HthEREEE (@)
Computer Franchise Customer
software Licence agreement Trademark relationship Total
YeF
RS e "EhnE [E1 ERMG L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 31 December 2019: RIB-NE
+ZA=1+-H:
Cost %N 19,420 28,678 6,177 36,009 24,689 114973
Accumulated amortisationand Bt RIAE
impairment (19.350) (26,161) (6,177) (36,009) (5,761) (93,458)
Net carrying amount REFE 70 2517 - - 18,928 21515
At 31 December 2020: RIEZ5E
+ZB=1+-H:
Cost %N 19,420 28,678 6,177 36,009 24,689 114973
Accumulated amortisationand Bt RIAE
impairment (19.411) (28227) (6,177) (36,009) (10,699) (100,523)
Net carrying amount REFE 9 451 = = 13,990 14,450

*%

The balance was all from the licence right of "Hogan".
"The Library Coffee Bar", "Quiznos" and "Johnny
Rockets", was fully impaired in prior years. In view
of the underperformance of the business of "Hogan",
an impairment loss of RMB1,652,000 (2019: nil) was
recognised for the license of "Hogan" in 2020. As at 31
December 2020, the recoverable amounts of the related
intangible assets were RMB451,000.

Franchise agreement and trademark were fully impaired in
prior years.

A subsidiary acquired by the Group in 2018 had
established relationships with its customers through
contracts, for a period of 5 years commencing from 2018.
The amount represents the fair value of the customer
relationship acquired by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

15.  INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 15. MAEEBETLENIKRE

2020 2019
“EBITF EThF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT

Share of net assets ELEEFE 19,748 26,934
Loan to a joint venture B—XEaEbERENER 450,000 -
Analysed into: DWW -
Current BPERER 250,000 =
Non-current JEBNHREL 3 200,000 -
As at 31 December 2020, the loan to a joint venture, Jiaxing Gold RIE_EFEF+__H=+—H R
Lion Real Estate Co.Ltd. is unsecured, interest-free and have no —XEeE P (ZESMEERZ
fixed term of repayment. The current and non-current portions BRAT) IRENERAERITF 2
of this loan are disclosed in notes 21 and 17 to the financial EREETEERMAR ZERED
statements, respectively. In the opinion of the directors, this loan B R JEBNHR SR 93 20 Bl A E ﬁfgiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
will be repaid in the foreseeable future according to the loan HURITIRE - ERDA ZENF
agreement and therefore is not considered as part of the Group's BIEEFHENUREBREE W
net investments in this joint venture. THEALRERRZEELENZF

BEZ e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IME (R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

15.  INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 15.

Particulars of the Group's material joint ventures are as follows:

RAEEEENKE (B
FEBEZRERLEFBOT

Percentage of

BETHEENEAL

206

Place of
registration

Registered  and
capitals  business
R
AMES RKEME FMEEED
Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development RMB20,000,000  The PRC
Co,, Ltd. ("Xinjiang Parkson") ARKE &
NERRTFEREEERERRAE 20,000,0007C
G -E=129)
Jiaxing Gold Lion Real Estate Co., Ltd RMB100,000,000  The PRC
(‘Jiaxing Gold Lion") ARE  HE
EEHEMERZRRAR 100,000,0007T
(T=BLH)

Although the Group has ownership of more than half of the voting
power of Xinjiang Parkson, the joint venture agreement establishes
joint control over the subject entity. The joint venture agreement
ensures that no single venture is in a position to control the
activities of the entity unilaterally.

Although the Group has ownership of less than half of the voting
power of Jiaxing Gold Lion, the joint venture agreement establishes
joint control over the subject entity. The joint venture agreement
ensures that no single venture is in a position to control the
activities of the entity unilaterally.

Both Xinjiang Parkson and Jiaxing Gold Lion are considered as
material joint ventures of the Group and accounted for using the
equity method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 15.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Xinjiang Parkson adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

RAEEEENKRE (B)

TERBAERFTETBRNYFTE
ko EmME St BERINEMERFY
ABURHREVHFREANKRE

financial statements: B :
2020
- ol 3- 3
RMB'000
AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents BERIEEEEBY 118,942 147,295
Other current assets HMRsEE 25,389 21,284
Current assets REEE 144,331 168,579
Non-current assets ERFMEE 53,744 78,229
Financial liabilities, including trade, TRHAa% 8EE5
other payables and provisions ELth & 7008 R #3515 (90,777) (101,327)
Other current liabilities HEMREmas (41,680) (42,523)
Current liabilities mEmaE (132,457) (143,850)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (26,897) (50,145)
Net assets BEEFE 38,721 52,813
Reconciliation to the Group's interest REFRSEEREN
in the joint venture: e B -
Proportion of the Group's ownership KNEEFRARELL A 51% 51%
Group's share of net assets of the rEBRLEEREXEETE
joint venture 19,748 26,934
Total operating revenues S AR EE 131,997 172,262
Purchases of goods and changes RESYRIFEEE)
in inventories (59,769) (65,256)
Depreciation and amortisation T EE R 48 (26,473) (26,021)
Operating expenses KSR (39,618) (47,828)
Finance income RE WA 3,660 5,129
Finance costs BB A (5,087) (6,760)
Tax 18 (735) (4.871)
Profit and total comprehensive income FEMNBREEWALLLE
for the year 3,975 26,655
Share of profit of the joint venture EEEEhENE 2,027 13,594
Dividends received B UG B 9,213 15,177
Share of tax attributable to the joint venture FE{L & {>2EFRTE (375) (2,484)

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BRE%ZmaMma= 207



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

15.  INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 15, REZEEENRE (@)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TRBPAEEFMZES N HE
in respect of Jiaxing Gold Lion adjusted for any differences in B EMEEBEMNERNERER
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the HENAHREMHFRERANERRT
financial statements: & :
2020
“ETEF
RMB'000
AR®TT
Inventories =78 2,358,582
Current assets MBEE 2,358,582
Other payables Hh e FRIE (250,000)
Current liabilities REERE (250,000)
Other payables HAERIE (2,108,582)
Non-current liabilities FERBARE (2,108,582)
Net assets BEZFE -
Reconciliation to the Group's interest REBREELENERER
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's ownership REE T B LA _ 22.5%
Group's share of net assets of the AEBEGESELEESETE
joint venture -
Operating expenses KSR -
Profit and total comprehensive income FEMNBREEIN AL

for the year -

Share of profit of the joint venture e EEENHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. MREZEATINIRE

2020 2019
—BIERF EAF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Share of net assets before impairment i RERIEEFE 60,520 59,351

Impairment of investments in associates REE AR RERE (17,582) (17,582)

Share of net assets BB EFE 42,938 41,769
Particulars of the material associate are as follows: BEEMEATNEBOT

Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ interest
registration attributable  Principal

Registered capital and business to the Group  activities

AEMAL L, KEEREMN
AR AR E FRE#EER

AfMER B Bt FEER
Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. RMB80,000,000  The PRC 49  Operation of
("Parkson Newcore") AR 180,000,000 HE outlet stores
BRATEHEEE (LR BRAT A8 B A
=)
Parkson Newcore, which is considered a material associate of the BB H (ELE L EIERIFR
Group, is engaged in operating and managing outlet stores, and is ) Wl AR RNEREENBE A
accounted for using the equity method. B U A ETE R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IME (R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

REEARNKE (8)
TREBLEFARABENMBE
ko EmME St BERINEMERFY
ABURHREGEMHRERAN
AREE

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Parkson Newcore adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

210

2020 2019
—E-TH “E—NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AEEFIT
Current assets BB E 221,455 192,061
Non-current assets ERBEE 393,323 454,714
Current liabilities Vit ZIE=N=| (205,365) (199,873)
Non-current liabilities FEREBIE (326,860) (366,482)
Net assets BEFE 82,553 80,420
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in AEERBE AN
the associate: Mm@ HER
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEBPTA LA 49% 499
Group's share of net assets of the associate Z<EEEE(L I E AT EEFE 40,451 39,406
Carrying amount of the investments KENIRHEE 40,451 39,406
Gross revenues pllog 740,889 902,270
Profit and total comprehensive income FEMNBREZEIALELE
for the year 2,133 14,108
Share of profits of the associate JE {5 Bt = N B A 1,045 6913
Share of tax attributable to the associate (L E AT HRIE (157) (1,018)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MEERME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. MEEATNKE (&)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information TRRBEAEEERNMS L AEE
of the Group's associates that are not individually material: WNE = A TN ST ER -

2020 2019
—ECEHF —T—NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Share of the associates' total
comprehensive income

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's ~AEBERBEABIKREN

Share of the associates' profit for the year — FE{L B /A B FEEFH 254 161
EEBE AT 2B ALELE

254 161

SREAR(E 2,487 2,363

investments in the associates

OTHER ASSETS

17. HthEE

2020 2019
“BITF  ZThF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT  ARBTR

Long term rental deposits
Loan to a joint venture
Lease prepayments related to

R £EE 80,158 =
B—REEPERTNER 15 200,000 -
BT EEENEENR

variable leases 111,071 175,421

Net investments in the subleases EHERE R 13(g) 256,798 257,910
648,027 433,331

Net investments in the subleases represent net investments in HHELEFEEAEREAD
the leases by the Group as an intermediate lessor, among which NEHEBEANBEEKRERRE  ©F
a long term portion of RMB256,798,000 was included in other SFAEMBEENRERABS ARE
assets (2019: RMB257,910,000) and a short term portion of 256,798,0007T (ZE—HF | AR
RMB54,755,000 was included in prepayments and other receivables 257,910,00070) st AT RIBR

(2019: RMB40,877,000).

HMEWRIBEBNEHEBD ARK
54,755,0007C (ZE—HF : ARHE
40,877,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR RME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year

are as follows:

18. EBERBEBEERAEE
KEERIERIESEEREENED)
mr

Recognised
in the
Balance at consolidated Balance at
31 December statement of 31 December
2019 profit or loss 2020
R-EB—hE RIZ2-ZF
+=A +=8B
=+—H# BERiEE =+—HH
fEER AR TEER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR+ AR®BTT ARET®
Deferred tax assets: FIEFTEES E
Depreciation e 1,903 191 2,094
Accrued other expenses  FEEtE B 6,416 (5,533) 883
Right-of-use assets and ~ FABEEE K
lease liabilities HEaRE 177,580 35,535 213,115
Accrued coupon fESHBESEE
provision 6,782 (770) 6,012
Tax losses MIEEE (a) 34,905 8,755 43,660
227,586 38,178 265,764
Deferred tax liabilities: EERIEEE !
Depreciation e (8,137) 2,091 (6,046)
Fair value adjustments W EEHT B AT
arising from FTEAR
acquisition of NAEERAE
subsidiaries (241,050) 6,066 (234,984)
Withholding taxes AR (b) (64,000) 1,979 (62,021)
(313,187) 10,136 (303,051)
(85,601) 48,314 (37,287)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

18. BIEMBBEERERE (B)

Recognised
in the
Balance at Effect of Balance at consolidated Balance at
31 December adoption 1 January statement of 31 December
2018 of IFRS 16 2019 profit or loss 2019
RZE—N\F RIE—NF
+ZF BMEREE RIZ-IE +-B
== REZEA —A—H BREGE =+—H
MR ST E MagEs  BERER A ER
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B ARBTT ARBTr ARETx ARETx AR%T:
Deferred tax assets: ELEREEE
Depreciation neE 2,085 = 2,085 (182) 1903
Accrued other expenses FETEMBES 3,906 - 3,906 2,510 6,416
Accrued rental expenses s &Y 160,882 (160,882) - = =
Right-of-use assets and FREEEK
lease liabilities HEER - 157,551 157,551 20,029 177,580
Accrued coupon provision EstBESEE 6,823 = 6,823 (41) 6,782
Tax losses MIBEE (a) 12,880 - 12,880 22,025 34905
186,576 (3.331) 183,245 44341 227,586
Deferred tax liabilities: EERIESE !
Depreciation neE (10,141) - (10,141) 2,004 (8,137)
Fair value adjustments arising U BEIT B AR
from acquisition FIEEN
of subsidiaries AREERE (247,116) - (247,116) 6,066 (241,050)
Compensation for BN RE
policy-based relocation fEE (9,440) - (9,440) 9,440 -
Withholding taxes BINH (b) (13,417) - (13,417) (50,583) (64,000)
(280,114) - (280,114) (33,073) (313,187)
(93,538) (3.331) (96,869) 11,268 (85,601)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

18.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

()

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses arising from overseas subsidiaries of RMB20,086,000 (2019:
RMB15,298,000), including amounts of RMB12,970,000 (2019:
RMB9,230,000) that will expire within three years, RMB1,317,000
(2019: RMB1,062,000) that will expire within seven years and
RMB5,799,000 (2019: RMB5,006,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits, respectively, or tax
losses arising from the PRC subsidiaries of RMB1,385,225,000
(2019: RMB1,259,048,000) that will expire within the next five
years; as it was not considered probable at 31 December 2020 that
taxable profits would be available against which such tax losses
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of
5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2020, deferred tax liability of RMB62,021,000
(2019: RMB64,000,000) has been recognised for withholding
taxes. Other than that, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's
subsidiaries and joint ventures established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries and joint ventures will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB5,328,241,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB5,636,819,000).
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Z—HE  ARH15,298,0007T)
(BEBR=ZEREHEN AR
12,970,0007c (ZE—HE : AR
#9,230,0007T) ~ B HY £ E R EHF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVENTORIES

MEERME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEHF —T—NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Merchandise P& MR 411,829 366,245
Consumables JHEE S 21,934 23,658
Impairment PEAED (8,708) (5,862)

425,055 384,041

The movements in provision for impairment of inventories are as
follows:

FEREREBENESNT -

2020 2019
—EIEF EAF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTRT

At the beginning of the year == 5,862 5,664
Impairment losses recognised BB EEE 2,846 198
At the end of year FR 8,708 5,862

Included in the above provision for impairment of inventories is
the provision for individually impaired inventories of RMB8,708,000
(2019: RMB5,862,000) with a carrying amount before provision of
RMB21,687,000 (2019: RMB13,437,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

216

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. BB ZFIE
2020 2019
—EBE_THF —Z2—NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETFIT
Current BN ER

Third party B5= 267,790 266,949
Joint venture e 328 194
Associate AN - 350
Impairment BAE (4,643) (1,957)
263,475 265,536

Non-current JEENER
Third party B=5 99,627 85,388
Impairment BB (2,443) (6,906)
97,184 78,482
Total 4Ect 360,659 344,018

Trade receivables mainly arise from purchase by customers with
credit cards and credit services arise from loan receivables. The
credit period of trade receivables is generally one month. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Among the balance, RMB281,900,000 (2019:
RMB260,184,000) are with an interest rate ranging from 9% to
19%, depending on the payment term of loan receivables, while
others are interest-free.

Included in the Group's trade receivables as at 31 December
2020 were amounts due from the Group's joint venture and an
associate of approximately RMB328,000 (2019: RMB194,000) and
nil (2019: RMB350,000), respectively, which are attributable to the
consultancy fee income of the Group. These balances are unsecured
and interest-free.
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20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, Parkson Credit's trade receivables
of RMB211,673,000 (2019: nil) and unrealised receivables of
RMB44,279,000 (2019: nil) which will be due within 48 months,
were pledged to secure Parkson Credit's bank loans in Ringgit
Malaysia ("RM") (note 28).

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

20.

MEERME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

FEWE Z w18 (&)

N EEF+_"H=+—H">
Parkson CreditfEUWN B 5 I8 A R 1
211,673,0007c (ZE—NFE | &) Kk
IR FE U R IE A R #644,279,0007T (Z
E—HF T B4sEBERNEER
ZERIECILIE > AParkson Credithy
IRITEREEFR EUMETHE (T
S45)) sHE (fF5E28) ©

RBREHER REREHRRNGRES
BREEBZERKESZRBAZRE DT
LI

2020 2019
—EBE_THF “E-NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR%F T AREFTT

Within 1 year —F LR 263,475 265,536
1to 2 years —EWE 66,224 64,537
Over 2 years MEM 30,960 13,945
Total e 360,659 344,018

The Group applies the general approach for the impairment of trade
receivables. Under the general approach, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date based on three stages to measure
expected credit losses. The Group determines whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of
trade receivables or whether an asset is considered to be credit-
impaired and, hence, whether it needs to provide for 12-month
ECLs or lifetime ECLs. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rEERRMEE (8

31 December 2020 —ZE-ZF+"FH=+—H

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. FEWEZRIE (@)
In the situation where no comparable companies with credit ratings EEEHNBEBEEERIINAIEL
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated by applying WANTINERT BIERERERH
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of MWESLEBEDR KABEEL A
the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions HE R EEBIE BIE X &K H
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. Set ?}él—/(}iﬁ? B AR 0T Ko 7R 2R 4% 575 14K 5
out below is the loss rate applied on the Group's trade receivables NIERA (WER) - AEAUBLERA
where there were no comparable companies: BEINER T REBREWRE S HIE

PRBERZEBEREFHHNMT :

As at 31 December 2020 R-E-Z2HE+-"HA=+—H

Lifetime Lifetime

ECLs - not ECLs -

credit credit

impaired impaired

12-month financial financial

ECLs assets assets
R A FEHA

EEE FRATER

1288 —J¥EE FEEE-

FEHfEE BE EERE

BE  SHEE SHEE

Expected credit loss rate REEEEEEX 1.09% 2.13% 8.54% 1.93%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) IREEE (NR¥BTT) 268,118 67,888 31,739 367,745
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHREEES
(ANEEFT) 2,931 1,446 2,709 7,086
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—hF+B=+—H

Lifetime Lifetime

ECLs - not ECLs -

credit credit

impaired impaired

12-month financial financial

ECLs assets assets
FRATEH

EEFE FRATEHE

@R —JFEE FEBEE-

FBHAEE BE EERE

B STHEE SHEE

Expected credit loss rate REEEEEX 0.84% 8.25% 37.95% 2.51%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BRE4EE (AR TT) 320,650 20,358 11,873 352,881
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  FEERfE Bk548

(ANEETT) 2,678 1,679 4,506 8,863
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. BEWEZHIE (&)
Under the general approach, an impairment analysis is performed BE—MMAHE REREHPRE
at each reporting date based on three stages to measure expected = EREERETRES T UstETE
credit losses. Set out below is the movements in the loss allowance HEEBER AEBEKEZHIE
for the impairment of the Group's trade receivables: BEZBEEEESHETINT
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-FTHF+=-H=+—H

Lifetime Lifetime

ECLs - not ECLs -

credit credit

impaired impaired

12-month financial financial
ECLs assets assets

FRATEL

5818 FRAFEH

128 —FEE FEEER-
BHEE miE EERE
B THMEE IWEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBBTR ARBTRH AREFR

At the beginning of year F1] 2,678 1,679 4,506 8,863
Impairment losses RERE 253 (233) 9,279 9,299
Write-off 16z - - (11,076) (11,076)
2,931 1,446 2,709 7,086

As at 31 December 2019 N-ZE—hhE+-"B=+—H

Lifetime Lifetime

ECLs - not ECLs -

credit credit

impaired impaired

12-month financial financial
ECLs assets assets

FRATEH

=EEE
128 —3FEE
REEE mE EERE
BiE EREE THEE a5t
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

At the beginning of year FE4] 149 3,760 3,266 7,175

Impairment losses B R E 2,529 (2,081) 14,423 14,871

Write-off s = - (13,183) (13,183)
2,678 1,679 4,506 8,863
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IME (R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. FE{OFIEREHEWRIE

2020 2019
—E-E —E-hE

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT

Lease prepayments related to BRI SHEMRH

variable lease payment FERHES 76,430 76,369
Rental deposits HEkE 94,898 97,283
Advances to suppliers ER 5 154,248 74,272
Prepaid tax TBRIE 23,479 16,234
Interest receivables FE U A B 20,601 24,786
Other prepayments HMEMNRIE 45,082 47,269
Net investments in the subleases HIRERE T 13(g) 54,755 40,877

Loan to a joint venture B—REERERMEN
e 15 250,000 =
Other receivables Hith e TIE 75,559 51,618
795,052 428,708
Impairment allowance REEE () (28,712) (7,896)
766,340 420,812
Less: Lease prepayments o EMEE (76,430) (76,369)
Less: Advances to suppliers B AR R TR (154,248) (74,272)
Less: Prepaid tax o FEMIRE (23,479) (16,234)
Less: Other prepayments B HMEARIE (45,082) (47,269)

Financial assets included in StAH MW RIER R
other receivables TREE 467,101 206,668
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

21.  PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. FRAMIRIAREMEWTRIE (&)
Note: B EE
(a) The movements in the provision for impairment of prepayments (a) T8 1 =0 I8 B H At & USURR T8 Rl B 1

BRETHMT :

and other receivables are as follows:

2020 2019

—EIETHF —E2—NF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETIT

At the beginning of the year F4] 7,896 7,939
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) FEERE (RESERE)

for the year 20,816 (43)

At the end of the year FxR 28,712 7,896

For financial assets included in other receivables that are credit- MRS HIALIREEREN
impaired at the reporting date, the loss allowance is measured at AEMERZREBEBNEMEEM
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The loss rate are estimated by SOREBERENFERATER
EEBIENEET 2 BEET
SEREBNEL BB H
BABEEL A& EUR
B SE, A1 AK 0E Re R 2R AR AR S BN TR
B NBR) R B _TE+—
B=+—BMEBEEXR6.1% (=
T—f 4 { 3.8%) ©

BRAREBESEEHEEHA

applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss
record of the Group or adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The
loss rate as at 31 December 2020 was 6.1% (2019: 3.8%).

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR  22.

LOSS HEZzEMEE
2020 2019
—EITHE Z—hHF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTFT AE®BTT
Wealth management products BMER
Balance at 1 January BN— B — B4R 250,761 544,593
Addition during the year FRRE 201,150 1,757,513
Redemption during the year FEREEMD (211,228) (2,052,860)
Change in fair value of financial assets at AR BET= B HEH)
fair value through profit or loss SFABRZEMEEL
NABEES 1,789 1,515
Balance at 31 December R+ _B=+—Hi4&ER 242,472 250,761
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

22.

23

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS (continued)

The wealth management products are managed by licensed
financial institutions in the PRC to invest principally in certain
financial assets, including bonds, trusts, cash funds, bond funds
or unlisted equity investment issued and circulated in the PRC in
accordance with the related entrusted agreements.

The investments are measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The gain on the change in fair value of
RMB1,789,000 (2019: RMB1,515,000) is credited to “Finance
income” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

INVESTMENTS IN PRINCIPAL GUARANTEED DEPOSITS

22.

23.

RARBESIEEHEEHHA
HuzETMEE (B
ZEEYERBETEF RS RIEE
REEREEHRER TE2REAE
RETEMEE SERPEET
Ekn@zEs -t -HEEE A
FRETHFLTREKSE -

RBEHR ZERERZAAEE
2 -AnBEZEFHRGE AR
1,789,00070 (ZE—HF : AR¥
1,515,0007T) BEst Ar & BmER AN
MR E AL ©

FREEHKE
2020
—ECEHF

2019
—EF—NEF

RMB'000
AREF T

RMB'000
ARBFT

Investments in principal guaranteed deposits 175 EIFFREIRTT IR ASTERR

in licensed banks in the PRC K&

15,600 250,050

These investments in principal guaranteed deposits have terms
of less than one year and have an expected annual rate of return
of 2.33% (2019: 3.53%) on average. Pursuant to the underlying
contracts or notices, the investments in principal guaranteed
deposits are capital guaranteed upon the maturity date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS

MEERME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

ReRkREFEVREHFR

2020 2019
ZECEF “E-NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT
Cash and bank balances RE R IRITAER 1,222,247 788,901
Short term deposits with original maturity of BARRBIHBFRE=1ES
less than three months when acquired MR ERER 277,077 1,476,607
Short term deposits more than three months BB =188 B E—EH
and less than one year W HRTE RN 104,846 939,482
Long term deposits REAFR 729,880 787,899
2,334,050 3,992,889
Less: Pledged short term time deposits B BT EBITERIERAEN
for interest-bearing bank loans WG ERREFER - (400,118)
Less: Pledged long term time deposits A st BIRITEMEERN
for interest-bearing bank loans R RHBERRER (700,314) (787,899)
Less: Pledged short term time deposits A EEEEARN
for performance guarantees EIFERATE TR (1.850) -
Less: Pledged long term time deposits B EEERARD
for performance guarantees IR RATEHETER (29,566) -
Less: Non-pledged short term time deposits & : FEABRR B ZIFAHEE
with original maturity of more than three =188 B EIK PG HIE HA
months when acquired E (102,996) (539,364)
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 1,499,324 2,265,508

The cash and bank balances and time deposits of the Group
denominated in Renminbi amounted to RMB2,309,646,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB3,965,223,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's time deposits with a carrying
amount of RMB700,314,000 (2019: RMB1,188,017,000) were
pledged to secure the interest-bearing bank loans as detailed
in note 28. In addition, the Group has pledged deposits of
RMB31,416,000 held in designated bank accounts for performance
guarantee.
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RIEZEF+"A=1+—H"&
EERERBITERURERER
UANREHER AR #2,309,646,000
7T (ZTE—NF : AR13,965223,000
7T c ANREATEHRBRAEME
& SR > AR IR P Y SNEE E I R )
)S’zm@ EEANESERE &&E
BESBEREETINEEEN
%Eﬁh)\%ﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁi?%ﬁ\ﬂﬂ 5 & o

N _E_EFE+_B=+—H =&
SEEEEASARKM700,314,0007T
(ZE2—h%F : AR®1,188,017,000
7t) WEHGFEARERTF > A5t EiR
TEREER (MK F28sEa) o
I REBEHBIEFEETRARKE
31,416,0007C ° PRI EIRITIRAIF A
EEBEHE R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. BENEZME
An ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: e E ZRIBRIBRE DT ¢

2020 2019
“EBITF  ETNF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRT AREBTRE

Within 3 months =EB R 934,718 1,059,831
4 t0 12 months WE+_@A 28,140 48,663
Over 1 year —F= U E 16,863 28,069
979,721 1,136,563
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HthFEHIERESTIER

2020 2019
it St 3.3 —E-NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTT ARBT T

Rental payables RS 13,259 19,532
Other tax payables HEIRIE 48,951 44,793
Deposits from suppliers HEEZE 143,864 145,924
Construction fee payables FEIRERE 90,987 55,327
Accrued salaries and bonuses [ 5137 & R TEAL 29,469 46,023
Provision for litigation settlement EEFTREABEE A (a) 10,000 10,000
Accrued interest FEstFI B (b) 8,906 11,219
Other payables and accruals HAMRERIE R
FEETIEH (b) 253,483 304,951
598,919 637,769
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued) 26. HthEMREREFIER (@

Notes: B 5E

(a) The balance represents the provision for litigation settlement, (a) EREENEAERRRWEB AR
payable to a fellow subsidiary of the Group. P E NN = e

(0) Other payables and accruals included a one-year loan to Parkson (0) HMmEMTRIELRESBEE®E
Credit granted by PHB with an aggregate amount of RM3,000,000 PHB#Z FParkson Credithy— 2=
(2019: RM3,000,000), equivalent to RMB4,852,000 (2019: B AR5 %873 PR 5 $3,000,0007T
RMB4,886,000), which is due in April 2021 and accrued interest (Z=—HF : MFEHF3,000,000
of RMB307,000 (2019: RMB208,000) with a fixed interest rate of 70) (FEER AR 14,852,0007T (=
6.18% (2019: 6.18%) per annum is included in accrued interest. F—HE . AR K4,886,0007T)) °

R-IZE-_—FEMARHE UKEE
TEEF XK A6.18% (ZE—NF .
6.18%) BIFESTF] B A R #307,000
7T (ZE—HF : AR208,000
7o) BEtAESRIE o

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. BHNEaE

2020 2019
—E_EHE —E—NE

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTRT

Advances received from customers BWER AN 611,161 664,126
Provision for loyalty point programme B BT B B 18,076 21,666
629,237 685,792
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 28. :tEIERITEM
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
—ECE “ET-hE

+-A=+-H +-A=+—A

Maturity RMB'000 Maturity RMB'000
AEBFR IR AREBETT

Current
BNA
RM secured bank loan 2021 161,731 2020 25,479
MERHENBIERRTER —EZ-F _ECEE
HK$ secured bank loan - - 2020 173,786
LUETTEHENERERITER _E_EFE
HK$ current portion of long term 2021 2020
bank loans - secured —EZ-F 969,522 _T-ZHE 781,137
LUBTTEHEN RBERTERN
B D —E A
RM current portion of long term
bank loans - secured
MERENRBRTERD 2020
RREAER  — B 47 - - B ZE 31,186
RMB current portion of long term
bank loans - secured
MARKSENRBRTERN 2021
B — B IR & 3,000 = -
1,134,253 1,011,588
Non-current
JEEDHA
HK$ secured bank loan 2021-2022
LUBTTEHEM B EIRRITER 2022 “E-—fF
—E”C 1777459 " 2,923,891
RM secured bank loan 2021-2022
UMERENERERITER T
- - ETEF° T 89,992
RMB secured bank loan 2022-2025
MARBHENERRRTER —ECCE
E_T°RE 38,847 - -
1,816,306 3,013,883
2,950,559 4,025,471

226 2020 ANNUAL REPORT $EFE#RE



28.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

FFRIRITER (@
2020 2019
—E-EE

—E—-NE
RMB'000
AR¥ET T

RMB'000
ARBFT

Analysed into: DWW -
Within one year or on demand —FERIIFEK 1,134,253 1,011,588
In the second year = 1,785,459 1,063,125
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEZEFHE
(BiEEREWF) 30,847 1,950,758
2,950,559 4,025,471

Notes:

(a) Banks' credit facilities amounting to RMB64,600,000 (2019:
RMB99,300,000) had not been utilised as at the end of the
reporting period.

(b) The Group's bank loans are secured by:

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

mortgages over the Group's investment property situated
in Beijing, which had an aggregate carrying value at the
end of the reporting period of RMB362,142,000 (2019:
RMB286,800,000);

mortgages over the Group's buildings, which had
a net carrying value at the end of the reporting
period of approximately RMB2,411,730,000 (2019:
RMB2,292,600,000);

mortgages over the Group's leasehold land, which had
an aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting
period of approximately RMB357,037,000 (2019:
RMB369,900,000);

the pledge of certain of the Group's time deposits
amounting to RMB700,314,000 (2019: RMB1,188,017,000)
at the end of the reporting period; and

the pledge of trade receivables of RMB211,673,000 (2019:
nil) and unrealised receivables of RMB44,279,000 (2019:
nil) which will be due within 48 months, at the end of the
reporting period.

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BREHRZEEERAR 227

Fe5E -

RITEERE AR 164,600,0007T
(Z=2—h%F : AE%99,300,000
7o) REREHIRH R EA ©

AEFERRTERBLUTEEE
AR

0] FEBMURIERHNEKE
YR HPR RS HR
ANE@DEEAARKE
362,142,0007% (ZE—H
F . AR #286,800,000
70) 5

(ii) AREFEBFNIER A
REREAARNEKRETFE
A# AR #2,411,730,000
T (CTE—NE: AR
2,292,600,0007T) 5

(i) AEBBEES T HIKE
HERBREHARMWIRmE4E
B4 N R1357,037,000
T(ZE2E—AE: ARK
369,900,0007T) ;

(iv) AEBETERERDN

B HRBRERRNE

A4 A\ R 1700,314,00070

“E-NAEARK
1,188,017,0007T) 5 K

(v) RREPER AR
211,673,00070 (Z&F—H,
F | NEWRESRIE
& AN R#E44,279,0007T (Z
T—NF . E) WRER
FEULFRIE (7 48@ B AN
EH) BB -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued) 28. EEWRITER @)
Notes: (continued) fisE : (48
(0) The Group's bank loans are secured by: (continued) (o) AEENRTERBUTERE

1w (@)

fZB-BE+-A=+—08"
()~ (i)~ ()R (v BRI
75 8 38 7T A R 5 4R 1T BT8R0
B2 5 REE VR EARE
B 4 45T TR AR o

% 7S K2 B 17 R

As at 31 December 2020, items (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) are provided
to secure the Group's HK$ and RMB bank loans; and item (v) is
provided to secure the Group's RM bank loans.

29. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES 29.

Number of
ordinary shares

EBRUB

Nominal value
HfE

‘000 HK$'000

T FTAET

Authorised: FE .
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each SREEBTHNEER 7,500,000 150,000 156,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
At 31 December 2020 and 2019 RIB_ZEEER
—Z-NEF
+-A=+—H 2,634,532 52,601 55477

228

No transactions occurred in the Company's issued share capital
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

30. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 10 to 11 of the financial
statements.

(a) PRC reserve funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of
the Group's joint ventures which are established in the PRC
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted
as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

30. RESERVES (continued) 30. f#E (@)
(a)  PRC reserve funds (continued) (a) HELXEE @
Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, Sino- RIBMEBEFRBEIERERER R
foreign joint venture companies registered in the PRC are PHGEHNFINESE AT
required to transfer a certain percentage, as approved by BEESEFIHENE T T R
the board of directors, of their profit after income tax, as EE s AR B R FRAE 15 R
determined in accordance with PRC accounting rules and FriEiR & HE—Eaatt
regulations, to the reserve fund, the enterprise expansion EEFENBEE -PEERES
fund and the employee bonus and welfare fund. These funds UK R BTEAL K@ H B o 5%
are restricted as to use. ZEESNREHEERS -
Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, each of 1 5 A8 fE AR B R R R A AR
the wholly-owned foreign enterprises ("WOFEs") registered RAEEFMSIIERERE
in the PRC is required to transfer not less than 10% of its (M EBELE)) BRIRE
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with generally HmEAZE st 2L (THhEA
accepted accounting principles in the PRC (the "PRC GAAP"), REEER ) BEMA LR
to the reserve funds, until the balance of the funds reaches HERENE100ERZRE A
500 of the registered capital of that company. WOFEs S EEETEREIZLT
registered in the PRC are required to transfer a certain 51 it B 4550002 Lk o 7R B 5
percentage, as approved by the board of directors, of their M EECXBIEES
profit after income tax to the employee bonus and welfare SHENIBER T » B ERFIEH
fund. These funds are restricted as to use. B EHR-—EBDEEARE
BIEARENEE - ZEEE
K AERIEB RS o
In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations, WRIEEBEPEERE R LR
PRC domestic companies are required to transfer 10% of R E R E A B AR AR R A E
their profit after income tax, as determined in accordance NRETER B ERTE
with the PRC GAAP, to the statutory common reserve, until MBI BIEBEELEANTE
the balance of the fund reaches 500 of their registered B EHEESHEREIZD
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the 5] 57 il B 45500073 1 o TR
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory common reserve RSP EERRFTE N E TR
may be used to offset against the accumulated losses, if o EE ARSI AFRER
any. sHESE (NA) -
(b)  Asset revaluation reserve (b) BESHHME

The asset revaluation reserve represented the fair value
adjustments to the property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and lease prepayments which
were already owned by the Group before the acquisition
of the remaining 44% equity interest in Parkson Retalil
Development Co., Ltd. in 2006.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rEERRMEE (8

31 December 2020 —ZE-ZF+"FH=+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 3. FERETRERME

FLOWS

(a)  Major non-cash transactions () FEIIFREXRS
During the year, the Group had non-cash increase/ FR O ANEBEHBEEEE
(decrease) of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities FHERHNEREEEER
of RMB667,431,000 (2019: (RMB131,692,000)) and HEaENIERSEM Gl
RMB677,853,000 (2019: (RMB124,684,000)), respectively, in 'l\) A7 N R 667,431,000
respect of lease arrangements for buildings for department T(ZE—hA&F: (AR
stores. 131,692,0007‘5)) N

677,853,00070 (ZZE—H F :
(AR 1%124,684,0007T) ) ©

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) éﬂiﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁ@]ﬁ@ﬁ{ﬁﬁ@j
2020 “EIEHF

Amount

due to the

ultimate

Accrued holding

interest company

E included in in other
bearing Lease  other payables payables

bank loans liabilities and accruals and accruals
HtmE

A MIERK

FEfFRRIER fEtEE$

HE FEHIEE R T RE
RITEM HE&R EHAE ZERATMIE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETFTT AREFT ARBFT

t 1 January 2020 RZE-E
—A—H 4,025,471 4,340,231 11,219 5,096
Changes from financing RER S RES
cash flows (905,563) (651,759) (142,324) -
New leases WHE - 568,614 = =
Foreign exchange movements ~ SNEEE) (169,349) (11,508) - (34)
Decrease from lease modification A& B R & IE
and termination EENRD - 120,747 = =
COVID-19-related rent concessions3 B H A B
from lessors CoVID-1918RATE &
B - (88,429) = =
Interest expense FIEHE% - 429,898 140,011 97
At 31 December 2020 R _FE
+ZA=+—-H 2,950,559 4,707,794 8,906 5,159
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 31. IFERETRERMEFE @
FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) EXERMEITHNEEEE
(continued) (48)
2019 —E—hF
Amount
due to the
ultimate
Accrued holding
IE(E company
Interest- included in in other
bearing Lease other payables and payables
bank loans liabilities aceruals and accruals
HnEs
qu?\Eﬁb FIEK
] fEsHIEEH
R ANEEES
RITEM HEaE E  BERARZEA
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRET T ANRET T ARET T ARBTT
At 31 December 2018 RZE—\F
+ B=+—H 4,042,887 = 3,831 s
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 mﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁi
ERE6ENEE - 4,770,431 = -

At 1 January 2019 (restated) RIZ—h&E

_—A—H (&=&7)) 4,042,887 4,770,431 3,831 -
Changes from financing MERERED
cash flows (100,746) (730,556) (227,616) 4,886
New leases %ﬂﬂ%ﬁ = 20,512 = =
Foreign exchange movements  JMNEE E4&) 83,330 = (2,834) 210
Decrease from lease modification A& WEQEZH\JJ:
and termination EEMRED - (145,196) = =
Interest expense FIEHE% - 425,040 237,838 -
At 31 December 2019 AZE-NEF
-I-_ﬁ =+—H 4,025,471 4,340,231 11,219 5,096
(c)  Total cash outflow for leases () THERESMHAEEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement SARERERPHNEER
of cash flows is as follows: SR ARZEIN R ¢

2020 2019
“BIERF  TNF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFR  AREBTT

Within operating activities REEEN 167,890 213,796
Within financing activities REEEN 651,759 730,556
819,649 944,352
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 31. ZERTREBRME @
FLOWS (continued)
(d)  Total taxes paid d) BffRIELEZE
The total taxes paid during the year are as follows: FRBENRIBARZENT !

2020 2019
—ECEHE —T—NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Operating activities: KETES .
PRC tax paid BEfPERIE (125,031) (153,028)
Investing activities: KEEE -
PRC tax paid BENHEIRIE (44,215) (12,645)
(169,246) (165,673)
32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. EEERH
Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group's bank loans are AEBMAEBEFETERMIKRE
included in notes 24 and 28 to the financial statements. ERF IR M B HRR M 5E245228
33. COMMITMENTS 33. HKiE
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments at the (a) AEERBRESHARBUTE
end of the reporting period: AR -

2020 2019
—E_EHE —E—NE

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRT AREBTRE

Contracted, but not provided for: BEET4 BREEE .

Leasehold improvements HEMEREE 143,642 40,829
(b)  The Group has one lease contract that has not yet b) FTcEBR_ZBE_ZFF+_H4H
commenced as at 31 December 2020. The future lease =t+—HEABERBEBEN—
payments for this non-cancellable lease contract is MHEESN - Z AR EEEEY
RMB 154,000 due within one year, RMB1,697,000 due in the R—ER - E_EFHE (8
second to fifth years, inclusive, and RMB289,259,000 due EEEME) RAFEEREN
after five years. FERMEENTD R A AR
154,0007z ~ A KR #51,697,0007T

B2 AR 15289,259,0007T ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BEARSH
(a)  The Group had the following significant transactions with (a) EW>AEBEBARKSETH
related parties during the year: BEARSZWT .

2020 2019
—EEHF —E—hnEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR#EF T

Loan to a joint venture BEY—XRXEERERN
B (i) 450,000 -

Acquisition of non-controlling We B JE I It i
interests (i) 42,283 =
Interest income A B U A (iii) 23,181 25,783
Property management expenses MEEERX (iv) 9,576 9,577
Loans from PHB K EPHRBRIE RN v) 4,852 4,886
Interest expense FERSZ (v) 307 208
Consultancy income B (vi) 3,167 3,062
Royalty expenses SRR (vii) 1,426 1,002
Notes: B5E -

(1)

(i)

The loan to a joint venture, Jiaxing Gold Lion, is unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.

On 29 July 2020, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Oroleon (Hong Kong) Limited with Parkson Credit Holdings
Sdn. Bhd., a fellow subsidiary of the Group, to acquire
the remaining 30% of non-controlling interest in Parkson
Credit with a total consideration of RM26,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB42,283,000).
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(1)

(if)

M—XEELX (FEE
W) RENERSER
7R BREEEERH
R

N ZEZEFLAZTA
H AR BEBHE2EN
&2 E)0roleon (Hong Kong)
Limited B 2 £ B [B] & Y /&8
‘A B]Parkson Credit Holdings
Sdn. Bhd.5] 17 B B %
LW BEParkson CreditHy
T BR300 IE ARG HE 1 48
1B % M E 526,000,000
T (HERYOAEREK
42,283,0007T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
rEERRMEE (8

31 December 2020 —ZE-ZF+"FH=+—H

34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

The Group had the following significant transactions with

related parties during the year: (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iif)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The interest income is received or receivable from Parkson
Newcore, an associate of the Group. The interest income
is resulted from the financing lease which is leased out
from Shanghai Honggiao Parkson Development Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Group.

The property management expenses are payable to
Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd.,
an associate of the Company. The property management
fee of RMB9,576,000 (2019: RMB9,577,000) per annum
was charged according to the underlying contract.

PHB granted a one-year loan to Parkson Credit with
an aggregate amount of RM3,000,000, equivalent to
RMB4,886,000 in April 2019, and charged interest at a
fixed interest rate of 6.18% per annum. According to the
underlying loan agreement, the loan was rolled over, and
will be mature in April 2021. The interest expense is paid or
payable to PHB.

The consultancy income received or receivable from
Xinjiang Parkson, a joint venture of the Group, amounted
to RMB1,302,000 (2019: RMB1,741,000), from Parkson
Newcore and Nanchang Parkson Newcore Retail Limited,
associates of the Group, amounted to RMB1,321,000
and RMB544,000, respectively (2019: RMB1,321,000 and
nil, respectively). The consultancy income is determined
according to the underlying contracts.

The royalty expenses are paid or payable to Smart
Spectrum Limited before June 2020 and to Parkson
Services Pte. Ltd. after June 2020, two fellow subsidiaries
of the Company, for the Group's entitlement to use the
"Parkson" trademark in the PRC.

2020 ANNUAL REPORT fE[ERE

34.

3R B 75 32

(a)

FA RER LR T E

(r\\a)
78
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(iif)

(iv)
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35.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

34.

AR5 (&)

(a)  The Group had the following significant transactions with (a) E=W> A~EBEEMEBRSETH
related parties during the year: (continued) BARZWOT . (8)
Notes: (continued) BMis: : (&)
The royalty expenses generated from a subsidiary of the Group KEBENBABTEENFE
and the loan and related interest expense generated from the S R AREERARTERATFTE
ultimate holding company of the Group constitute connected ENER KA BT S5 28
transactions and continuing connection transactions as defined BEROGRFERERS (EXR
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, as these continuing EMHEANE+EAZE) -8/ B
connected transactions represent less than 0.1% of the relevant RZEFERERSNEEE 2
percentage ratios, pursuant to paragraph 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing EE R K010 0 iR EmRAISE
Rules, these continuing connected transactions are exempted from 14A76(1)(a)ER » ZEIFEBRIER 57
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent ERGETRHR - FTEEBH A
shareholders' approval requirements. EREBIURERERT
The consultancy income generated from the joint venture and an KEESGELER—FKHENT
associate of the Group, the property management expenses payable FREENBHAWA BN RER
to an associate of the Group, and the interest income generated — RS ATNYEEERST K
from an associate of the Group do not constitute connected REBR —KBE QB PTEEMNA
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in BEWALAEREER S HFF
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. BREEXS (EER LHHRAUSE
+IUAS) o
As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in AR EEESEATSEREET
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) in respect of the consideration REN—EBEXZEBEHADLER
under the Joint Venture Cooperation Agreement are more than (E&R EmRAIE14.0718) 8
25% but all of such ratios are less than 100%, the entering into B25% B EF100% » 5T IL &
the Joint Venture Cooperation Agreement constitutes a major BERNRAEmEERAATN L
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing TRWE+HEZEBEB TN —IEE
Rules and is therefore subject to the announcement, circular and BR G5 AILBEEST EHRAIS
shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the THEETHAS BRKERKRE
Listing Rules. HEEFRTE ©
(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) AREEZEEEAEHBN
Company:
2020 2019
—g-EF —T-Af
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT
Fees e 1,219 1,499
Other emoluments: HE = -
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and other ¥ ~ AL fEAL &
benefits HA1EH] 5,608 8,736
6,827 10,235
Further details of directors' and the chief executive's BEERRETHRAEMEZE—D
emoluments are included in note 7 to the financial EE N EE ELEYE
statements.
DIVIDENDS 35. KRR

No interim or final dividends have been proposed for 2020 and

2019.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IME (R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. EMI AN
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZEEMTARRSHERNIREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: W

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E—hF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT

Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost: BEIEN A ENTREE |
Trade receivables FEW & 5 =hia 360,659 344,018
Financial assets included in prepayments 5T AT 7R I8 B EL A FE USRR
and other receivables IENEMEE 467,101 206,668
Financial assets included in other assets FAEMEENESHEE 536,956 257,910
Investments in principal guaranteed REERKE
deposits 15,600 250,050
Time deposits EHAITER 834,726 1,727,381
Cash and cash equivalents B RIBEEHEY 1,499,324 2,265,508
3,714,366 5,051,535
Financial assets at fair value: BARBEFENTREE !
Financial assets at fair value through BAnEBESEAEHES
profit or loss FFABENEREE 242,472 250,761
3,956,838 5,302,296

2020 2019
“BITF  ETNF

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Financial liabilities EHaRE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: RIH AT IR SR B
Trade payables FEI B 5 IE 979,721 1,136,563
Financial liabilities included in ST AEMENRIBER
other payables and accruals FEstIEENERAasE 118,004 90,964
Interest-bearing bank loans STEIRITER 2,950,559 4,025,471
Lease liabilities HEAaR 4,707,794 4,340,231

8,756,078 9,588,228
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37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits, investments in principal guaranteed
deposits, financial assets included in prepayments and other
receivables, trade receivables, trade payables and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by a director is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The director reports directly
to the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
manager analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the director.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of time deposits and
interest-bearing bank loans have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank loans as at 31 December
2020 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The
Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by
using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market
interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. EMITAAREBERAAEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) g4 (&)
For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the ML ARBESEHEET T AE
following table gives information about how the fair values of mZEMBEEMS  MTRIEHEBRH
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation MECZEEHREEN A AEE
technique and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value ER $FR) 2T B NG ERMT & @
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised AEIR) » URIBIEAAEBEFEN
(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair WAHEBOEREE 9820
value measurements are observable. BEFENL2ABEBHRKTE (B—

REF=M) -

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—E- RBRREZEEZEER

markets for identical assets or liabilities HIEETIE 2 RE CGREK
FEE) 58

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the F_EB—- IREHEEMEE G
lowest level input that is significant to the fair BERyEETERY
value measurement is observable, either directly or NABEAEMES B
indirectly EEREEH AH

®)

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest FZEB— IEERMEE GBIt
level input that is significant to the fair value FTHBERHAALEE
measurement is unobservable STEMEEBEEZ&

188 & A BU%)

Fair value as at Level 3

RT3 BBRZAREE B=[E
31 December 31 December  Valuation Significant Weighted
2020 2019  technique and unobservable average

—ECEE “E—NF key inputs inputs yield rate
Financial assets +=A +ZRB (HERTR EEMNRA miEFss
EMEE =+—H =+—H XEBARE BHEHOAME Wy =
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT

Financial assets at fair value 242,472 250,761 Discounted Expected 2.90%
through profit or loss cash flows yield rate (2019: 3.649%)
- wealth management IRBER LTS CE—hF:
products 3.64%)
BANBESEEHES
SPABEZERMEE
— B Em
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38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank loans, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, investments in principal guaranteed deposits, time deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities, such as
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments and
other receivables, trade payables and financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank loans with
floating interest rates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IR IME (R

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's loss after tax and equity through the
impact on interest-bearing bank loans with floating interest rates.

2020 —EBETHF

HK$ bank loans BITIRITER
HK$ bank loans BITIRITER
RM bank loans MEFIRITE

o
N
RM bank loans MEFIRITER

RMB bank loans AR KIRITER
RMB bank loans ARH¥IBITER
2019 —E—hEF
HK$ bank loans BITIRITER
HK$ bank loans BITIRTTER
RM bank loans MERFIRITER
RM bank loans MERFIRBITER

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk mainly arises from
the Group's debt financing denominated in HK$, US$ and RM, other
than the units' functional currencies.

Since the Group mainly engages in the operation of department
stores in the PRC, the transactional currency exposure arising from
sales or purchases in currencies other RMB has an immaterial
impact on the Group's loss after tax and equity.
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ERES FFAXRG BIRITER
TENREBEBEBEREaHFRGE
PIAEEENRIERRLE ©

(Increase)/
decrease (Decrease)/
in loss increase

after tax in equity
WiEEE R
(g R GRL)
RMB'000

ARBT T ARBT T

5 (1,374) (1,374)
(5) 1,374 1,374
5 (81) (81)
(5) 81 81
5 (21) (21)
(5) 21 21
5 (1,939) (1,939)
(5) 1,939 1,939
5 (73) (73)
(5) 73 73
4 1 JeE| B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. MBRAMEBEEERERBE &
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) S s JEL b (48)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at 31 December TREVWEMEB SEFTAE R
2020 to a reasonably possible change in the HK$, US$ and RM _ECEFE+_B=+—HAKXEER
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the EEHEEBT ETEMTEFERXRY
Group's equity (due to the translation of the operating results and AEAGEZFNHMKE (HREXR
financial position of each subsidiary with functional currencies M B A BB E = E KRB
other than RMB into the presentation currency of RMB used for the ARARBLUIINNEEBRERS XK
consolidated financial statements of the Group). EHESUHFREEIFMANAR
i) o

(Increase)/
(Decrease)/ decrease (Decrease)/
increase in loss increase
in US$ rate after tax in equity
EEXR

GR) KRR Ex
wm  GEm R GRL) 1Eim

% RMB'000 RMB'000

oS ARBTT ARBT T

2020 - 32 3
RMB strengthens against US$ ARERETFHE (5) (2,036) (2,036)
RMB weakens against US$ ARBRETEE 5 2,036 2,036
2019 —E-NF
RMB strengthens against US$ ARBERETHE (5) (788) (788)
RMB weakens against US$ ARBRETEE 5 788 788

Decrease/
(Decrease)/ (increase) Increase/
increase in loss (decrease)
in HK$ rate after tax in equity

GRi) REER REzRIgm,
wgm R () GRi L)

% RMB'000 RMB'000

EE= ARBTT ARETTT

2020 —ETEHF
RMB strengthens against HK$ ARBREBTHE (5) 136,758 136,758
RMB weakens against HK$ AR RBTEE 5 (136,758) (136,758)
2019 —E—-NEF
RMB strengthens against HK$ ARBREEBTHE (5) 193,163 193,163
RMB weakens against HK$ ARERABTERZE 5 (193,163) (193,163)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. MFEAMEEEEREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) ShE LB (48)

Decrease/
(Decrease)/ (increase) Increase/
increase in loss (decrease)
in RM rate after tax in equity

MEHFER MEBE REzRIgm,
GRL) /tgm w7 (GEm) GRi L)
% RMB'000 RMB'000

EEE ARBT T ARBT T

2020 —EITHE

RMB strengthens against RM AEBEMEREAE (5) 7,765 7,765

RMB weakens against RM AREMOMEHEE 5 (7.765) (7,765)

2019 —BNEF

RMB strengthens against RM AREIMEEFHE (5) 7,022 7,022

RMB weakens against RM ARMOIMEHEE 5 (7,022) (7,022)
Credit risk EERRE
The Group trades on credit only with third parties who have an AEBREARERRAR GBI E
established trading history with the Group and have no history of WRARIENE=FETREREXZ °
default. It is the Group's policy that new customers who wish to RIBRAEBNEE  BZEERRIER
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. REMNMEERNERR T EHE
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by analysis by customer/ ERERER REZEFHLNE
counterparty. There are no significant concentrations of credit B-AEFHBRERWESGRBEBEREZ
risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group's trade DHC BT EEREREERMRK-

receivables are widely dispersed.
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38.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38.
POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2020

MEERME (48)

31 December 2020 —E_TFE+_"H=+—H

FHEREEERRERER (&)

AR B E R4

TR TEBERNEEBRWNIGE
BEEEERRAREEER  TE2RE
BHEN GRIFEMENARLES
WERR AL BRI ER) R
+TRA=+—BZEXREERDE-
oA TRMEENREME.

R-B2-ZFF+-RA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8 8
FHEE
518 FRAFEREEEHR
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BB 5 REER BEREER HEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTRT AR®BTT AR¥TRx AREBTRT
Trade receivables B 1A 268,118 67,888 31,739 367,745
Financial assets included in FTABNRIER
prepayments and other receivables  EfthFEUTRIBEARY
THEE 469,133 - 26,680 495,813
Financial assets included in SFARMBEAN
other assets TRBEE 536,956 - - 536,956
Investments in principal guaranteed  RAZREE
deposits 15,600 - - 15,600
Cash and cash equivalents RBERAEEEY 1,499,324 - - 1,499,324
Time deposits TEHREM 834,726 - - 834,726
3,623,857 67,888 58,419 3,750,164
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2020 —E - TFE+_F=+—H

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38.
POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2019

FHEREEERRERER (&)

BARBREREEAE (@
RoE—

hE+-_B=1+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12188
TRHIEE
518 FRATEREERSE
NELS Stage 2 NELK Total
—PE5EL B PEEL F=[EEE HEEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR AR®BTT
Trade receivables FE U B 52 018 320,650 20,358 11,873 352,881
Financial assets included in FTATBNRIER
prepayments and other receivables  EAEKFIBARY
TREE 210,322 = 4,242 214,564
Financial assets included in STAHEMEERN
other assets ETHEE 257,910 - - 257,910
Investments in principal RAGFERKE
guaranteed deposits 250,050 - - 250,050
Cash and cash equivalents RERIFEEEEY 2,265,508 = = 2,265,508
Time deposits EEGER 1,727,381 = = 1,727,381
5,031,821 20,358 16,115 5,068,294

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables and other receivables
are disclosed in notes 20 and 21 to the financial statements,
respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank
loans and lease liabilities. 21% of the Group's lease liabilities and
interest-bearing bank would mature in less than one year as at
31 December 2020 (2019: 18%) based on the carrying value of
borrowings reflected in the financial statements. The directors have
reviewed the Group's liquidity position, working capital and capital
expenditure requirements and determined that the Group has no
significant liquidity risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38.
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

MHBEREEBREREE (&)

REBEZERE (@
AEERKRSHRNEREGEER
BHRBBEAROEBPEAT

2020
“EIEE

Within 1t05 Over 5
1 year years years Total
—FR —EHEF AEMUE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFRT ARETT AR®TRT ARETRT
Trade payables EESE 979,721 - - 979,721

Financial liabilities included in EPNCS N EREY

other payables and accruals FEEIEE AN ERAaE 118,004 - - 118,004
Lease liabilities HEEE 956,275 3,244,199 2,919,210 7,119,684
Interest-bearing bank loans STEIRITER 1,230,566 1,876,706 - 3,107,272
3,284,566 5,120,905 2,919,210 11,324,681

Within 1t05 Over 5
1 year years years
_EEW _E:EELE EELXJ: ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®BFT AEREBTRT
Trade payables N E L] 1,136,563 = = 1,136,563
Financial liabilities included in STARMEANRIAER

other payables and accruals EstEERNSRIEE 90,964 = - 90,964
Lease liabilities HEaE 701,973 2,894,533 2,620,494 6,217,000
Interest-bearing bank loans STRIRITER 1,165,781 3,200,891 = 4,366,672
3,095,281 6,095,424 2,620,494 11,811,199
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders' value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, taking into consideration changes
in economic conditions, future capital requirements of the Group,
prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
adjusted debt divided by the capital plus net adjusted debt. The
net adjusted debt includes interest-bearing bank loans, long term
payables, trade payables, contract liabilities and lease liabilities, and
other payables and accruals less cash and cash equivalents, time
deposits, investments in principal guaranteed deposits and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The gearing ratios as at
the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

38.

MHBEREEBREREE (&)

BEAXEE
AEFREFEENTZERERE
AEEFECEEXRTHE I URE
FRENBEARLERUFHES R
BERARREE.

FEEERRSREEABEAR
BoRUTRAEHEETHEE &
BIRIBEE AEBRRKERT R
ERAAABNEN KERERM
B RAASARAX KRB KRE
A=

AEBEREFEREXREEHE
Ao ZEERTIREHEFEHIRU
EAMEHAEFEHABE - KRHE
BEZEESBRITER RIAE
REBNEZRIE - aNEER
HEAR HMEMREKRESE
BB MRFEEEEY ERER
FREERRERBANEEFER
HEHGFABaZEMEE -INR
SHRNEXRBBLEROT ¢

2020 2019

—E_THF —E—NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AER®EF T

Interest-bearing bank loans stREIRITE®R 2,950,559 4,025,471

Trade payables FETE 5 mE 979,721 1,136,563

Other payables and accruals BB ESIER 598,919 637,769

Contract liabilities EHaE 629,237 685,792

Lease liabilities GEN ==X 4,707,794 4,340,231

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERIBEEBY (1,499,324) (2,265,508)

Time deposits EHTER (834,726) (1,727,381)

Investments in principal REERKE

guaranteed deposits (15,600) (250,050)
Financial assets at fair value BAREBEEHEES)

through profit or loss SAEGZ EMEE (242,472) (250,761)

Net adjusted debt B ERETS 7,274,108 6,332,126
Capital: equity attributable to BE  BAEMEBE AEGER

owners of the parent 4,122,700 4,230,661

Capital and net adjusted debt BA KK AR FER 11,396,808 10,562,787

Gearing ratio BAREBL=R 64% 60%
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39.

40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR MEE (47)

31 December 2020 —E_FFE+_HA=+—H

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

39.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform

with the current year's presentation.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY  40.

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

EEEREER

ETHEREBRECEMDBUNEE

FEMNZEHKTN -

ERBIRBRRE

AABRREMARABYHFR TR

WERIT :

2020 2019
—EEHF —Z—NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥EFT AR T IT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREEE
Investments in subsidiaries Rt B ATNEE 2,492,641 3,500,458
Total non-current assets ERBNEELRRE 2,492,641 3,500,458
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments and other receivables YA I8 K E A FE U R IE 18,899 20,136
Cash and cash equivalents BEMRIEEEEBY 3,561 5,689
Total current assets RN E EAERE 22,460 25,825
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaR
Other payables and accruals Hh e RIE R EETIEB (2,083) (5,071)
Interest-bearing bank loans HEIRTER (969,522) (781,137)
Total current liabilities e B EARER (971,605) (786,208)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES VL II=REPEE-E (949,145) (760,383)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES MEERREE 1,543,496 2,740,075
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans tEIRITEM (1,777,459) (2,923,891)
Total non-current liabilities JEME A E4EEE (1,777,459) (2,923,891)
Net liabilities BEFEE (233,963) (183,816)
EQUITY e i
Issued capital BETRA 55,477 55,477
Reserves (Note) EE () (289,440) (239,293)
Total deficit AR ES Al (233,963) (183,816)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I ERRIMEE (4R)

31 December 2020 —E_TF+ " H=+—H

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 40. ZSATBMBRRER (&)

(continued)
Note: P EE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: NG EFEBREWT :
Exchange Retained
reserve earnings Total
E R s REEF AE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBETTT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 RIZE—hF—H—H (421,898) 447,484 25,586
Total comprehensive income FEZEUWALLE
for the year (9,828) (255,051) (264,879)
At 31 December 2019 RIZ—hF
+ZB=+—H (431,726) 192,433 (239,293)
Total comprehensive income FEZEWBALRE
for the year 64,602 (114,749) (50,147)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZIEF
+=B=+—H (367,124) 77,684 (289,440)
41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 41. HLEBIFEIRER
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by BExegdR _E_—F_/F_+—
the board of directors on 22 February 2021. Bt E R ISR B TR IR % o
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